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November 6,2013 

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council and City Manager: 

Submitted herewith is the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Milpitas (the 
City) for the fiscal year ended June 30,2013. The report was prepared by the Finance Department of the 
City. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. The data, as presented, is accurate in all 
material aspects; and is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position and 
results of operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its various funds. All disclosures 
necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the City's financial affairs have 
been included. The organization of the financial report follows the guidelines set forth by the 
Government Finance Officers' Association of the United States and Canada. 

A separate single audit report has been prepared in conformity with the provisions of the Federal Single 
Audit Act amendments of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of 
State and Local Governments!' 

THE REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES 

This report reflects the entity concept prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles. It 
combines the financial statements of the Milpitas Economic Development Corporation (the EDC), the 
Milpitas Housing Authority (the Housing Authority) and the Terrace Gardens Inc. with those of the City 
to constitute a single reporting entity The EDC, Housing Authority, and Terrace Gardens are separate 
legal entities from the City and are controlled by the City. The EDC and the Housing Authority have the 
same governing board as the City and the City also has control of the Terrace Gardens' governing board. 
However, the Terrace Gardens Inc. issues its own component unit financial statements. 

Milpitas is a general law city of the State of California. The City was incorporated in 1954 and operates 
under a Council-Manager form of government. The City's political and legislative body is the City 
Council and is empowered by the general laws of the State of California to formulate citywide policy, 
including a fiscal program, City services, and appointment of the City Manager and City Attorney. There 
are four City Council members who arc elected at-large for staggered four-year terms, and the Mayor is 
selected every two years in a separate citywide election. 

The City provides a full range of municipal services. These include: police, fire, community services, 
public improvements, planning, building and public facility inspection, engineering, water and sewer 
utilities, and general administrative services. 

Citizens of the City desiring to assist the City Council in forming government policy may do so by 
serving on a City commission. The commissions act in an advisory capacity to the City Council. They 
are: Planning Commission; Community Advisory Commission; Library Advisory Commission; Parks, 

General Information: 408-586-3000 



Recreation and Cultural Resources Commission; Telecommunications Commission; Arts Commission, 
Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Commission; Emergency Preparedness Commission; Senior Advisory 
Commission; Recycling and Source Reduction Advisory Commission; Sister Cities Commission; Youth 
Advisory Commission; Economic Development Commission, Veterans Commission, Public Art 
Committee and the Mobile Home Park Rental Review Board. 

ECONOMIC CONDITION. OUTLOOK AND ACTIVITY 

Milpitas is situated within the Silicon Valley region, known throughout the world as the home of high 
technology, innovation and research. Milpitas, considered the "Crossroads of Silicon Valley," with most 
of its 13.6 square miles of land situated between two major freeways, 1-680 and 1-880, has experienced 
tremendous growth since its incorporation in 1954. Over the past 40 years, the population growth has 
increased from 26,561 in 1970 to over 66,790 in 2010 (latest census). The Bay Area has experienced 
significant employment growth from 1992 through 2000, adding more than 170,000 jobs. However, in 
2001, Santa Clara County experienced its first negative job growth since 1992. Between 2001 and 2004, 
over 130,000 jobs were lost as a result of the economic recession. Between 2005 and 2007, the local 
economy began to recover slowly until 2008 when the economy went into global recession due to 
subprime mortgages, plummeting home sales and meltdown of the financial market. This region was 
severely impacted due to a concentration of the high-tech indushy, heavy reliance on exports, decline of 
home prices, and reduced consumer spending. Milpitas was similarly impacted because of its location 
and comparable economic mix. In 2012, the local economy has finally emerged from the most 
unprecedented and prolonged economic recession in recent history. The housing market also showed 
substantial recovery. The section below entitled "Major Development Activities in the City" will discuss 
some of the development activities that are occurring in Milpitas. 

There are approximately 1,790 acres or 2.6 square miles of land area in the City limits designated for 
various industrial uses; about 271 acres are vacant and available in parcels ranging in size from !h acre to 
75 acres. Included in this acreage total are eight industrial parks and 550 manufacturing plants. An 
estimated 410 acres of land are dedicated to regional and community retail centers supporting 3.5 million 
square feet of commercial shops. The Great Mall of the Bay Area is the largest enclosed mall in 
Northern California, with approximately 1.1 million square feet of leasable space for retail and 
entertainment operations. Several local shopping centers serve regional needs for Asian-oriented retail 
and services. 

The leading economic segments are office equipment, apparel stores, restaurants, and electronic 
equipment. The five largest manufacturing employers are Cisco Systems, Inc., KLA-Tencor 
Corporation., SanDisk Corporation, Headway Technology, Inc. and Spectra Laboratories. Several of 
these top employers, including SanDisk Corporation and Linear Technology, make Milpitas their 
corporate headquarters. The two largest non-manufacturing employers in Milpitas are the Milpitas 
Unified School District and Vitas Healthcare Corporation of CA. 



Many of the major activities initiated in FY12-13 were consistent with the City Council's direction to 
focus on projects and funding that will provide for the economic stability of the community, especially 
developments in the Midtown and the Transit Area that will enhance the City's long-term financial 
condition. 

Maior Develooment Activities in the CiQ 

Midtown Specific Plan - The vision for this area includes high density housing within walking distance 
to light rail and BART to support the public investment in mass transit, transforming neighborhoods into 
an attractive and economically vital district with plazas and a network of pedestrian and bicycle trails, a 
vibrant streetscape along the north end of Main Street and a mixture of housing, shopping, employment, 
entertainment, and cultural and recreational opportunities. The implementation efforts began with 
several capital improvement projects such as the new Library, parking garage, Main Street and Abel 
Street infrastructure improvements. Other development activities undertaken by outside agencies include 
the construction of a County Health Center, a parking garage and a 103-unit Senior Housing apartment 
building. Major residential development includes completion of the Centria West project in 2012 for 366 
condominium dwelling units. Other development in process includes 203 housing units developed by 
Shea Homes. 

Transit Area SpeciJic Plan - The City adopted a Transit Area Specific Plan in June 2008 which provides 
for medium to high density development smounding the future MontagueICapitol BART station and two 
VTA Light Rail Stations. The intent of the Plan is to foster economic development of the area, 
strengthen and expand retail uses to increase sales tax revenues, attract major retailers and provide 
housing and amenities such as parks, retail and restaurants. Current development activities include a 276 
unit single family attached homes and condo project and a mixed-use commercial and high density 
residential project that will be constructed in phases, Other residential development includes 732 
housing units developed by CitationHomes that is still in the planning stage. 

Residential Development - Although residential development activities in this region were impacted by 
the soft housing market in the last few years, there is a renewed interest in residential developments 
recently. Outside of the Midtown and Transit Area, there are several residential developments that are 
either under construction or completed and occupied. These projects include Cerrano (374 apartment 
units), Murphy Ranch Townhomes (285 townhomes), Robson Homes (83 units) and Sinclair Renaissance 
(80 single family detached units). 

Non-residential Development - Major commercial construction includes relocation of SanDisk to a new 
campus within Milpitas, addition of a clean room for KLA-Tencor, and expansion of Solexel's facility. 
Temporary building permits were issued to EL0 Touch, a touch screen manufacturer for the construction 
of a new facility in Milpitas. 

Budper Strategies in Fiscal 2012-13 

As a result of the ruling by the California Supreme Court, all the redevelopment agencies throughout the 
State were dissolved as of January 31, 2012. The consequences of the dissolution of the Redevelopment 
Agency were particularly difficult for the City of Milpitas. In addition to the loss of funding for many 
major infrastructure and economic development projects, the City also lost approximately $7 million 
annually allocated to the General Fund. The City undertook drastic cost cutting measures that included 
staff reduction, restructuring of non-core programs, and outsourcing of certain maintenance services. 
Nevertheless, the City continued to maintain core services and programs and implemented several major 
capital improvement projects to serve the community. These accomplishments will be discussed in the 
next section, City Annual Performance Report. 
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Consumer Confidence Level 
The consumer confidence survev reuort in June 2013 showed the index at a recovew best. Consumers - A 

had more confidence in the long-term outlook for the job markets and hinted at Gins for consumer 
spending. The increase in consumer confidence was lifted by a stable jobs market, rising home prices, 
and stable gasoline prices. 

I Consumer Confidence 

I Source: Consumer Conference Board I 

Too Ten Sales Tax Generators bv Economic Segment 
The chart below 0rovide.s a snavshot of the City's sales tax revenue bv economic sement. Total amount 
of sales tax revenue for the latest benchmark year was about $17.6 -million, with h e  top ten economic 
segments generating about $15.4 million. Economic segments such as apparel stores, auto sales, office 
equipment, electronic equipment and restaurants increased over a year ago. The sales tax generated from 
all these economic segments was the highest that it has been in the last eight quarters. 

City Sales Tax Revenues 
Top 10 Eoonomlc Segments 

Sawlss Slatlons 8.7% 
Bldg MIds-Retall 3.5% 

OMca Equip 16.4% 

Auto Sslos 10.0% 

Source: MlniServlces Company 
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CITY ANNUAL PERFORMANCE REPORT 

During fiscal year 2012-2013, City staff initiated and implemented various programs and projects that 
significantly improved services to the citizens and the community. These efforts are consistent with the 
City mission statement and the City Council's priorities and policy direction. A listing and brief 
description of these programs and projects is as follows: 

Responded to 4,356 emergency incidents with an average response time of 4:23 minutes. 
Presented fire prevention information at over 45 public events. 
Conducted 807 plan reviews, issued 860 approvals/permits and performed 1,159 fire inspections. 
Certified 238 new "Strategic Actions For Emergencies" (SAFE) team members in various 
neighborhoods. 

Increased the number of burglary arrests in 2012 by 4%. 
Reduced average emergency response time to 236  minutes in 2012, the lowest average emergency 
response time in the last twelve years. 
Eradicated 8 illegal marijuana growing operations netting over 2,200 plants with a value of 
approximately $1.5 million. 
Completed evidence warehouse inventory which included over 11,000 pieces of evidence. 

Engineering 

Participated in the Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) project design and construction team for the 
extension of BART to the South Bay. The project is administered by the Valley Transportation 
Authority. 
Completed construction of Phase 4 of the Alviso Adobe improvement project and opened the park to 
the public in 2013. 
Completed construction of two federally funded street enhancement projects and received $1.7 
million federal funding. 

a Coordinated major flood control improvements with the Santa Clara Valley Water District. 

Public Works Maintenance 

Successfully implemented City Council direction to outsource maintenance of parks, street 
landscaping, street trees, and building custodial services. 
Investigated 3,500 customer service requests and provided immediate response for urgentlsafety 
related service requests. 
Provided cross-training and safety training to staff to improve efficiency and reduce injuries. 
Responded immediately to all roadway hazards, graffiti abatement, and emergency storm service 
requests. 

Plannin~/Neiehborhood Services 

Completed Citywide Climate Action Plan. 
Made recommendations to Planning Commission and City Council on General Plan update. 
Updated Planning website to enable effective dissemination of information. 
Completed home repairs for a property that was under court-appointed receivership. 



Human Resources and Recreation 

Implemented the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act of 2013. 
Successfully completed negotiations with the Mid-Management and Confidential employees group 
and the ProTech employees group. 
Senior Center Case Manager served over 772 needy senior clients with social services including 
housing, Medicare, medical, social security, disability and supplemental security income assistance 
during the fiscal year. 
Successfully partnered with Pacific Autism Center for Education and Milpitas Unified School 
District to provide volunteer opportunities to special needs youth and adults. 

Building & Safety 

Achieved highest rating in International Organization for Standards ('TSO") quality standards, 
making Milpitas one of the very few cities in California with this top rating. 
Enhanced the online plan submittal permitting process and increased the types of permits available 
for issuance online. 
Participated in outreach events hosted in public schools, in Building Safety Month and published 
newsletter to promote building safety awareness in the community. 
Introduced customer satisfaction survey and received highest customer service satisfaction rating. 

Administration 

Implemented strategies to narrow the General Fund originally projected deficit from $12 million in 
the fiscal 2012 budget to $1.5 million in the fiscal 2013 budget. 
Maintained the city at "AA+" general credit rating. 
Continued to improve and diversify the economic base of the City. 
City Clerk Office administered Municipal Election on November 6, 2012 .including candidates' 
filing and reporting final results on December 5. 

City Attorney 

Provided training on Brown Act, open government, ethics, and sexual harassment. 
Provided hands-on legal guidance through Redevelopment Agency wind down. 
Advised management through continuing labor negotiations. 
Represented the City in numerous administrative/court cases. 

Information Services 

Completed the Fire Mobile computer upgrade. 
Completed Citywide phone system upgrade. 
Completed Council Chamber audiolvisual system upgrade. 
Maintained network availability at 99.9% of the time. 



Finance 

Implemented financial system changes due to the Public Employees' Pension Reform Act. 
Worked with the County Auditor and State Department of Finance on completion of the Agreed 
Upon Procedures and Due Diligence Reviews of the Redevelopment Agency. 
Revised business license tax billing cycle from fiscal year to calendar year to combine with Fire 
Annual Permit fees to achieve streamlining of billing and collection efforts. 
Bid various frequently used commodities and services and created annualized contracts with the 
vendors to achieve savings and efficiency. 

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND BUDGETARY CONTROL 

In developing and evaluating the City's accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of 
internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but @ 
absolute, assurances regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or 
disposition; and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining 
accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control 
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires 
estimates and judgments by management. 

AU internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. The Finance Department staff 
remains committed to improving the City's accounting system; to maintain the City's internal accounting 
controls to adequately safeguard assets; and to provide reasonable assurances of proper recording of 
financial transactions. Budgetary control is directed by the City Council by resolution when the budget is 
adopted each year. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the department level by fund. 
The City utilizes the encumbrance system as a management control technique to assist in controlling 
expenditures. The City Manager has limited budget appropriation authority in an amount not to exceed 
1% of the total General Fund budget, although the appropriations must be reported to the City Council on 
a periodic basis. Periodic reports of revenue, expense, and investment activity are prepared and 
distributed to the City Council and City departments to monitor spending in relation to the budget. At 
fiscal year-end, open encumbrances are reported as an assignment of the fund balance. The City's 
accounting records are organized and operated on a "fund" basis, which is the basic fiscal and accounting 
entity in governmental accounting. Each fund is classified by category and find type: 

Categorv and Fund Tvpe 

Governmental Funds: 

Proprietary Funds: 

General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and Capital 
Projects Funds 

Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Fund 

Fiduciary Funds: Private-Purpose Trust Fund and Agency Funds 

Governmental Funds: The basic financial statements necessary to fairly present the financial position 
and operating results .from major governmental funds are the balance sheet, and the statement of 
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance. These funds are maintained using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, which is more thoroughly explained in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 



Proprietarv Funds: Generally accepted accounting principles applicable to private commercial business 
are applicable to proprietary funds of a government agency. The basic financial statements required to 
present the financial position and operating results from major proprietary funds are the statement of net 
position, statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in find net position, and the statement of cash 
flows. The accrual basis of accounting is utilized as explained in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Fiduciaw Funds: Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by a government agency acting as a 
trustee or agent for individuals, assessment districts, organizations, other governmental units or  other 
funds of the same entity. These funds are also identified in this report as a Private-Purpose Trust Fund 
and Agency Funds. The full accrual basis of accounting is used as explained in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve 
measurement of results of operations. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require that management provide a narrative 
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic fmancial statements in the form of 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement 
the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Milpitas' MD&A can be found 
immediately following the report of the independent auditors. 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT 

Each year the City requires an independent annual audit of the City's fmancial records, the results of its 
operations, and cash flows. This report includes the opinion of the City's independent auditors, Maze & 
Associates, for the basic financial statements of the City. In addition, a separately issued document 
contains the auditors' reports on the internal control structure and compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations related specifically to the single audit. 

AWARDS 

The Government Finance Officers' Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30,2012. The Certificate of Achievement is the 
highest form of recognition for excellence in state and local government financial reporting. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable 
and efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, whose contents conform to program 
standards. Such CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principals and applicable legal 
requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City has received the GFOA 
Certificate of Achievement for twenty-four of the last twenty-five years (fiscal years ended 1988-2012). 
The 1992-93 report was not submitted to GFOA due to timing delays. 

We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate program requirements. This report 
will be submitted to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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The City of Milpitas is located near the southern tip of San Francisco Bay, forty-five miles south of San 
Francisco. Milpitas is often called the "Crossroads of Silicon Valley" with most of its 13.56 square miles of 
land situated between two major freeways (1-880 and 1-680). State Route 237, and a county expressway. 
The light rail line opened for service in 2004 and an extension of BART, with a major multi-modal station, is 
in the planning stages. 
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MAZE 
& A S S O C I A T E S  

INDEPENDENT AUDJTOR'S REPORT 

To the Honorable Members of the City Council 
City of Milpitas, California 

Report on Financial Statements . 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Milpitas as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the f a c i a l  statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
fmancial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Sfatemenis 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these fmancial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the 
fmancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions ofi these fmancial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the 
discretely presented component unit financial statements of Terrace Gardens, Inc. as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2012, which represent 1.82%,1.93%, and 1.36% of the assets, net position, and revenues, 
respectively, of the primary government. These component unit financial statements were audited by another 
auditor, whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts 
included for this entity, is based solely on the report of these other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing StandurdF, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fiee from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
f m c i a l  statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the fmancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Accountancy Corporation 
3478 BusbrKAvenus, Suite215 
Pleasant Hill. CA 94523 



Opinions 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the govenunental activities, the business- 
type activities, each major fund, the aggregate remaining fund information, and discretely presented component 
unit of the City as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in the financial position an4 where applicable, 
cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons listed as part of the basic financial statements for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Mutters 

As discussed in Note 16, pursuant to ABxl 26 adopted by the State of California which was validated by the 
California Supreme Court on December 28,201 1, the Milpitas Redevelopment Agency was dissolved and its assets 
turned over to and liabilities assumed by a Housing Successor and a Successor Agency effective January 3 1,2012. 
Certain transactions undertaken by the Milpitas Redevelopment Agency prior to the date of dissolution were 
subjected to a review by the State and the State has ordered the return of certain assets to the Successor Agency to 
the Redevelopment Agency. The order included assets that had been transferred in fiscal 2011 to the Milpitas 
Economic Development Corporation, a component unit of the City, pursuant to operating, assignment and 
assumption agreements. The City complied with certain aspects of the State's order during fiscal year 2012 and 
transferred applicable assets to the Housing Successor, but the City contends that the remaining transactions 
undertaken were legally placed with the Economic Development Corporation at the time of the transfer. 
Therefore, assets totaling $54,854,616, comprised of current assets of $31,485,664 and capital assets of 
$23,368,952, remain with the Economic Development Corporation as of June 30, 2013. As discussed in Note 16, 
the City was awaiting the results of a Due Diligence Review (DDR) to determine the amount of the remaining 
assets that should be transferred to the Milpitas Successor Agency. The DDR indicated assets totaling 
$31,877,702 were to be returned, but that amount was later adjusted by the State Department of Finance to 
$38,775,908. The City disputes the results of the DDR and the City has filed suit against the County of Santa 
Clara and the State of California, claiming amongst other things, the unconstitutionality or other unlawfulness of 
the State legislation under which the State made its DDR orders. The County and State have filed responses to the 
City's complaint. The two cases have been coordinated and will proceed to hearing in February 28,2014. 

Prior to the Redevelopment Agency dissolution, the Agency board approved various agreements which obligated it 
to repay certain advances to the City. These advances have been recorded as liabilities by the Successor Agency as 
management believes these amounts are valid obligations, as discussed in Note 16, Repayment of these 
agreements is subject to certain administrative procedures and review and approval by the California Department 
of Finance andlor the Oversight Board, and as a result the amount disallowed is not determinable at this time. 

The City's position on these matters is not a position of settled law and there is considerable legal uncertainty 
regarding these matters. It is possible that a legal determination may be made at a later date by an appropriate 
judicial authority that would resolve this issue favorably or unfavorably to the City. No provision for liabilities 
resulting from the outcome of these uncertain matters has been recorded in the accompanying fmancial statements. 

Management adopted the provisions of the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements, 
which became effective during the year ended June 30, 2013 that affected the format and nomenclature of the 
financial statements: 

Statement 63 -Financial Reporting of Deferred OutJows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Net Position. See Notes 1B and 1F to the financial statements for relevant disclosures. 

Management early-implemented the provisions of the following Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement during the year ended June 30, 2013 that also affected the format and nomenclature of the fmancial 
statements: 

Statement 65 -Items Previously Report as Assets and Liabilities. See Note IF to the financial statements 
for relevant disclosures. 

The emphasis of these matters does not constitute a modification to our opinions. 



Other Mafters 

Required Supplementmy Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's Discussion 
and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic fmancial statements. Such information, although not a part of 
the basic fmancial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic fmancial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic or historical conkxt. We have applied certain limited procedures to tbe required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stat8s of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic fmancial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the City's basic fmancial statements as a whole. The Introductory Section, Supplemental Information, and 
Statistical Section as listed in the Table of Contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 
required parts of the basic fmancial statements. 

The Supplemental Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic fmancial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic fmancial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
our opinion, the Supplemental Information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic fmancial 
statements as a whole. 

The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic fmancial statements and, accordimgly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Otlter Reporting Required by Gover~tment Ariditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 27,2013, on 
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that 
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governnzent Avditing Standards in 
considering the City's internal control over fmancial reporting and compliance. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
September 27,2013 





MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The following discussion provides readers of the City of Milpitas' financial statements a narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Milpitas for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2013. Please read this document in conjunction with the accompanying Transmittal Letter and Basic 
Financial Statements. 

FISCAL 2013 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The City's revenues in fiscal 2013 reflect continued economic recovery in the South Bay region, 
primarily driven by improved employment and rebound of the housing market. The unemployment rate 
for the San Jose-Sunnyvale-Santa Clara metropolitan area in June 2013 was at 6.9%, an improvement 
over last year's 8.7%. The property tax revenue has shown substantial recovery due to double digit 
increase of medium home prices. The foreclosures and property tax appeals have been trending 
downward. Sales taxes, building permit fees and Transient Occupancy Tax revenues were better than last 
fiscal year, reflecting a steadily improving economy. 

Fiscal 2013 financial highlights include the following: 

Citywide: 
The City's total net position was $529.2 million at June 30, 2013. Of this total, $370 million 
were Governmental assets and $159.2 million were Business-type assets. 
City-wide revenues include program revenues of $64 million, general revenues and transfers of 
$52.9 million, totaling $116.9 million, a decrease of $75.6 million from the prior year's total of 
$192.5 million. 
Total City-wide expenses were $105.3 million, a de~rease of $7.7 million fiom the prior year's 
$1 13 million. 

Fund Level: 
Govemmental Fund balances were $123.9 million, an increase of $7.6 million fiom fiscal 2012. 
Governmental Fund revenues were $82.2 million in fiscal 2013, down $11.4 million kom the 
prior year's $93.6 million. 
Governmental Fund expenditures were $77.2 million in fiscal 2013, a decrease of $39 million 
from f~cal2012's level of $1 16.2 million. 
General Fund revenues of $62.7 million represented a decrease of $0.2 million from fiscal 2012% 
revenues of $62.9 million. 
Total other fmancing uses of the General Fund were $4.4 million in fiscal 2013 while fiscal 2012 
had a total other financing sources of $2.6 million. 
General Fund balance of $32.8 million atthe fiscal 2013 year-end was $2.9 million less than the 
fund balance at fiscal 2012 year-end. 

OVERVIEW OF THE COF/IPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is in six parts: 
1) Introductory section, which includes the Transmittal Letter and general information, 
2) Management's Discussion and Analysis (this part), 
3) The Basic Financial Statements, which include the Government-wide and the Fund fmancial 

statements, along with the Notes to these financial statements, 
4) Supplementary Information, 
5) Combining statements for Non-major Governmental Funds and Fiduciary Funds, 
6) Statistical information. 



The Basic Financial Statements 

The Basic Financial Statements comprise the City-wide Financial Statements and the Fund Financial 
Statements. These two sets of financial statements provide two diierent views of the City's fmancial 
activities and financial position-long-term and short-term. 

The City-wide Financial Statements provide a longer-term view of the City's activities as a whole, and 
comprise the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. The Statement of Net Position 
provides information about the financial position of the City as a whole, including all its capital assets and 
long-term liabilities on the full accrual basis, similar to that used by corporations. The Statement of 
Activities provides information about all the City's revenues and all its expenses, also on the full accrual 
basis, with the emphasis on measuring net revenues or expenses of each of the City's programs. The 
Statement of Activities explains in detail the change in net position for the year. 

The Fund Financial Statements report the City's operations in more detail than the City-wide statements 
and focus primarily on the short-term activities of the City's General Fund and other Major Funds. The 
Fund Financial Statements measure only current revenues and expenditures, current assets, liabilities, 
deferred inflows/outflows of resources and fund balances, but exclude capital assets, long-term debt and 
other long-term amounts. 

Major Funds account for the major financial activities of the City and are presented individually, while 
the activities of Non-major funds are presented in summary, with subordinate schedules presenting the 
detail for each of these Non-major funds. Major Funds are explained below. 

The City is the Successor Agency of the Milpitas Redevelopment Agency. It holds fi~nds to make 
payments according to the enforceable obligations schedules and eventually dispose of other assets and 
properties of the former Redevelopment Agency for the benefits of the taxing agencies. The City is also 
the depository agent for Local Improvement Districts and certain other entities. The fiduciary statements 
provide information about the cash balances and activities of the Successor Agency, Local Improvement 
Districts and other entities. These statements are separate from the City's financial statements and their 
balances are excluded from the City's fund balances. 

Together, all these statements are called the Basic Financial Statements. 

The City-wide Financial Stafenrenfs 

AU of the City's basic services are considered to be governmental activities, including general 
government, community development, public safety, public works, parks & recreation, public 
improvements, planning and zoning, and general administration services. These services are supported by 
general City revenues such as taxes, and by specific program revenues such as fees. The basic financial 
statements can be found in pages 21-23 of this report. 

All of the City's enterprise activities, including water, recycled water, and sewer are also reported in the 
basic financial statements. Unlike governmental services, these activities are supported by charges paid 
by users based on the amount of their service consumption. 

The City's governmental activities include the activities of three other separate legal entities, Milpitas 
Economic Development Corporation ("EDCL'), the Milpitas Housing Authority (L'Housing Authoritfl, 
and Terrace Gardens, Inc., because the City is either financially accountable for these entities or has 
control of the governing board of these entities. 

Citywide financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis, which means they measure the flow of all 
economic resources of the City as a whole. 



Fund Financial Stafemenls 

Governmental Fund financial statements are prepared on the modified accrual basis, which means they 
measure only current fmancial resources and uses. Capital assets and other long-lived assets, along with 
long-term liabilities, are presented only in the citywide financial statements. 

Enterprise and internal service fund fmancial statements are prepared on the full accrual basis and include 
all these funds' assets and liabilities, both current and long-term. 

The Fund financial statements provide detailed information about each of the City's most significant 
hnds, called Major Funds. Each Major Fund is presented individually, with all Non-major Funds 
summarized and presented only in a single column. Subordinate schedules present the detail of these 
Nan-major funds. Major Funds present the major activities of the City for the year. The General Fund is 
always a Major Fund, but other funds may change from year to year as a result of changes in the pattern 
of the City's activities. 

The City has four other Major Governmental Funds in fiscal 2013 in addition to the General Fund. These 
are the Economic Development Corporation Fund, Housing Authority Fund, the Street Improvement 
Fund and the Transit Area Impact Fee Fund, each of which is discussed in detail below. 

Both of the City's Enterprise Funds are reported as Major Funds. 

Comparisons of Budget and Actual financial information are presented only for the General Fund and 
other Major governmental funds that are Special Revenue Funds. The City does not have any major 
Special Revenue Funds. 

Fidzrciay Statements 

The City is the Successor Agency of the former Redevelopment Agency and the agent for certain local 
improvement districts C'Districts"). The City holds property tax revenue distributed from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund ("RF'TTF") to pay outstanding recognized obligations. The City 
also holds amounts collected from property owners which await transfer to these Districts' bond trustees. 
These activities are excluded from the City's other fmancial statements because the City cannot use these 
assets to fmance its own operations. The City's fiduciary activities are reported in the separate Statement 
of Fiduciary Net Position, Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position and the Agency Funds 
Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities. 



CITYWIDE EINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

This analysis focuses on the net position and changes in net position of the City as a whole. Comparisons 
of the current year's net position and activities with fiscal 2012 are presented in table form. Any 
significant changes are analyzed and discussed. 

Governnzental Activities 

Table 1 
Governmental Net Position at  June 30 

(in Millions) 

Governmental Activities 
2013 2012 

Cash and investments 
Other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 

Long-term debt outstanding 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital 

assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

The City's governmental net position was $370 million at June 30,2013, an increase of $6.7 million from 
2012. This increase is reflected as Change in Net Position in the Governmental Activities column of the 
Statement of Activities and is also shown in Table 2 of this analysis: 

Cash and investments increased $1 1 million principally due to increased revenue. 

Other assets decreased $1.9 million fiom last year primarily due to the sale of several affordable 
housing units with a book value of $1.9 million. 

Capftal assets decreased $5.9 million fiom last year, resulted h m  $14 million depreciation, 
partially offset by $8.1 million asset additions net of retirements in fiscal 2013. 

Long-term debt decreased $3.8 million due to $4.3 million debt repayments, partially offset by 
addition of $0.5 million debt from a capital lease. 

Other liabilities increased $0.3 million due to increased refundable deposits and unearned 
revenue. 



Fiscal Year 2013 Governmedtal Activities 

Sources of Revenue 

. 
Bullding - ,lea and urn bxm 

6% 25% 

As the Sources of Revenue Chart above shows, $20.5 million or 25% of the City's fiscal 2013 
governmental activities revenue came from property taxes, while $20.2 million or 25% came from sales 
and use taxes. The remainder came from a variety of sources, including charges for services, grants and 
contributions, franchise fees, hoteYmote1 taxes, and building fees. 

The Functional Expenses Chart above includes only current year expenses, which are discussed in detail 
below. It does not include capital outlays, which are added to the City's capital assets. The composition 
of Fiscal 2013's capital assets is shown in detail at Table 8. 



The Statement of Activities presents program revenues and expenses and general revenues in detail. All 
these are elements in the Cbanges in Governmental Net Position as summarized below. 

Table 2 
Changes in Governmental Net Position 

(in Millions) 

Expenses 
General Government 
Building 
Public Works 
Planning &Neighborhood Svcs 
Recreation 
Police 
Fire 
Interest on long term debt 

Total expenses 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services 
Operating contributions and grants 
Capital Grants 
Total program revenues: 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 
Propem taxes 
Sales and uses taxes 
Hotelhlotel taxes 
Other taxes 

Franchise fees 
Investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 
Total general revenues 

Total Revenues 
Surplus (Deficit) before transfers 

Transfers 
Extraordinary item 
Cbanges in net position 
Beginning net position 

Ending net position 

Governmental Activities 
2013 2012 

Table 2 compares fiscal 2013 expenses and revenues with those of fiscal 2012. Expenses decreased by 
$10 million in fiscal 2013, due to the reduction of workforce and a decrease in interest expense on long 
term debt when the long-term liability was transferred to the Successor Agency at the end of January 
2012. Almost all of the program expenses experienced decreases due to reduction of workforce and 
outsourcing of certain maintenance services as a cost savings strategy. In fiscal 2013, the park 
maintenance function was transferred to Public Works while previously it was part of Parks and 
Recreation. Fire program expenses increased $0.9 million due to the increase of overtime expenses. 



Table 2 shows that total govemment revenues decreased $8.4 million in fiscal 2013. Program revenues 
increased $3.4 million while general revenues decreased $1 1.8 million. The increase in program revenues 
was due to increased charges for services and increased operating grants. The decrease in general 
revenues was due to decreased property tax revenue as a result of the dissolution of the RDA in fiscal 
year 2012. Beginning February 1,2012, tax increment revenues were distributed to the Successor Agency 
to pay recognized obligation payments and administration costs, and are no longer considered revenues of 
the General Government. Sales tax revenue in fiscal 2013 was $1.4 million more than fiscal 2012, 
reflecting improved consumer spending in all the economic segments such as apparel stores, oEce 
equipment, automobile, and electronic equipment. Transient Occupancy Tax increased $0.8 million in 
fiscal 2013 reflecting recovery in the economy. The decrease of investment earnings by $0.8 million in 
fscal 2013 was in large part due to the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency, in addition to lower 
reinvestment yield and fair market value adjustment. 

Table 3 presents the net cost of each of the City's largest programsgeneral government, building, public 
works, planning & neighborhood services, parks & recreation, police, f ~ e ,  and interest expense. Net cost 
is defined as total program cost less the revenues generated by those specific activities. The net cost of 
providing similar programs decreased $13.4 million. The primaty reasons for increased program revenues 
were due to economic recovery and increased operating grants. The major reasons for decreased program 
costs were due to reduction of workforce and outsourcing of certain maintenance services as mentioned 
above. 

Table 3 
Governmental Activities 

(in Millions) 

Net (Expenses) Revenue 

General Government 
Building 
Public Works 
Planning & Neighborhood Services 
Recreation 
Police 
Fire 
Interest on long term debt 

From Services 
2013 2012 

Totals 



Business-fype Acfivities 

Cash and investments 
Other assets 
Capital assets 

Table 4 
Business-Type Net Position at  June 30 

(in Millions) 

Business-Type Activities 
2013 2012 

Total assets 

Other liabilities 
Long-term Debt 

Total liabilities 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

The net position of business-type activities were $159.2 million in fiscal 2013, an increase of $5 million 
from fiscal 2012. Total assets increased $4.6 million while total liabilities decreased $0.4 million. The 
increase in net position was due to increased customer service charges and capital contributions for the 
Water and Sewer Funds. 



Expenses 
Water Utility 
Recycled Water Utility 
Sewer Utility 

Total expenses 

Table 5 
Changes in Business-Type Net Position 

(in Millions) 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services 
Operating Grant 
Capital Grants 
Total program revenues: 

General revenues: 
Investment earnings 
Total general revenues 

Total Revenues 
Excess before transfers 

Transfers 
Changes in net position 
Beginning net position 

Ending net position 

Business-Type Activities 
2013 2012 

Table 5 compares fiscal 2013 expenses and revenues with those of fiscal year 2012. Total expenses 
increased by $2.4 million in fiscal 2013 due to increased water purchase and usage. In fiscal 2013, the 
recycled water fund was combined with the water utility as one fund. Total program revenues increased 
by $2.2 million primarily due to increased charges for services and capital contributions received from 
developers. Total general revenue was $0.1 million from interest earnings, $0.3 million lower than last 
year due to lower reinvestment yield and fair market value adjustment. The net transfers represent 
reimbursements of administration costs to the General Fund. 



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF TJXE CITY'S FUNDS 

Table 6 below summarizes activities and balances of the governmental funds at the fund level: 

Table 6 
Financial EIighlights of Governmental Funds at Fund Level at June 30 

(in Millions) 

Total assets 
Total liabilities 
Total deferred inflows of resources 
Total fimd balances 
Total revenues 
Total expenditures 
Total other financing sources 
Total extraordinary items 

The new balance sheet category of deferred inflows of resources was established in fiscal year 2013 with 
the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements No. 63 and 65 and 
represents an acquisition of fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and is not recognized as an 
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues in this 
category from three sources: interest on interfund advances, grants receivable and loans receivable. These 
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become 
available. These balances were previously reported as a component of liabilities. 

At June 30, 2013, the City's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $123.9 million, an 
increase of $7.6 million from last year. The fund balances of the General Fund, Economic Development 
Corporation, Street Improvement Fund, and Transit Area Impact Fee Fund decreased $2.9 million, $4.8 
million, $1 million, and $0.7 million respectively while the fund balances ofthe Housing Authority Fund, 
and Other Governmental Funds increased $2.3 million and $14.7 million, respectively. 

Revenues at the fund level totaled $82.2 million, a decrease of $11.4 million. Revenues for the Housing 
Authority Fund, Street Improvement Fund and Other Governmental Funds increased $2.4 million, $2 
million, and $2.8 million respectively while the General Fund, Economic Development Corporation, and 
Transit Area Impact Fee Fund declined $0.3 million, $0.8 million and $0.6 million, respectively. The 
Housing Reserve Fund and Redevelopment Project Fund received $0.2 million and $16.7 million 
revenues respectively in fiscal 2012. However, due to dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency, 
property tax revenues are no longer distributed to these funds. The Housing Reserve Fund and 
Redevelopment Project Fund were closed in fiscal 2012. 

Expenditures decreased $39 million this year to $77.2 million from last year's $116.2 million. The 
expenditures of the Housing Authority Fund and Other Governmental Funds increased $0.2 million and 
$1.5 million, respectively while the General Fund, Economic Development Corporation, Street Fund and 
Transit Area Impact Fee Fund decreased by $1.8 million, $24.8 million, $0.1 million, and $0.1 million, 
respectively. In fiscal year 2012, the Housing Reserve Fund and Redevelopment Project Fund had 
expenditures of $0.4 million and $13.5 million respectively. Due to dissolution of the Redevelopment 
Agency, these funds were closed in fiscal 2012. 



Analyses of Major Governmental Funds 

General Fund 

General Fund revenues decreased to $62.7 million this fiscal year, down $0.3 million from the prior fiscal 
year. Increases came from sales taxes, other taxes, licenses and fmes, and charges for services categories 
while decreases came from property tax revenue, use of money and property and intergovernmental 
revenue. Property tax revenue decreased $0.9 million due to residual distributions from the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund ("RPTTFf') are no longer recorded in the General Fund in fiscal 
2013. The City Council provided policy direction that distributions from the RF"ITF will be used to 
address capital improvement funding needs. Consequently, approximately $3.9 million of the 
distributions from the RP'MF consisted of $2.3 million ongoing residual distribution of the 
Redevelopment property tax and $1.6 million one-time distributions were recorded in the Government 
Capital Improvement Fund. If the RPTTF distributions were removed from the General Fund in both 
fiscal years 2013 and 2012, the property tax revenue would have shown an increase of $0.4 million. The 
increase is due to recovery in the housing market thus increasing the assessed valuation of the properties. 

Sales tax increased by approximately $1.5 million reflecting improved consumer spending in all 
economic segments such as apparel stores, office and electronic equipment, and automobile sales. Other 
taxes increased by $1 million primarily due to increased Transient Occupancy Tax revenue and change in 
the payment period for the annual business license tax from fiscal year to calendar year that caused a one- 
time increase in business license tax revenue by $120,000. Licenses and permits increased $0.9 million 
primarily from the building permit and inspection fees as a result of increased development activities. 
Charges for services also increased by $0.8 million due to increased revenues for planning and 
engineering fees received from private developments and increased police, fie,  and recreation service 
charges. 

Interest income was down $3.6 million due to an interest payment received in fiscal 2012 from the former 
Redevelopment Agency related to the sale of properties between these two entities. As a result of the 
RDA dissolution, the $3.6 million interest payment received in fiscal 2012 was the fmal payment until the 
Successor Agency receives a Finding of Completion from the California Department of Finance (see 
Notes 5K and 16). 

General Fund expenditures decreased $1.8 million to $61.2 million in fiscal 2013 primarily due to 
reduction of workforce and outsourcing of certain maintenance services to achieve cost savings. 

Net transfers out were approximately $4.4 million, as compared to net transfers in of $2.6 million in fiscal 
2012. Net transfers consist of $3.3 million reimbursements from other funds for administrative and 
overhead expenditures and transfers out of $7.7 million. The hansfers out of $7.7 million were primarily 
for fimding of capital projects. 

Economic Develoament Coraoration 

This fund accounts for the activities of the Economic Development Corporation ("EDC"). The EDC is a 
tax-exempt organization that was formed in fiscal 2011 for the purpose of facilitating and fostering the 
City's economic development and elimination of blight through public-private partnerships. During fiscal 
2013, EDC had a negative interest income of $0.5 miIlion entirely due to reduction of market value gain 
from previous fiscal year. Expenditures of $5.5 million were primarily for consulting services, capital 
improvement project funding and interest and principal payments on a property. The EDC assumed the 
liability of the former Redevelopment Agency for the purchase of one property located in the Transit 
Area. Under the Purchase and Sale Agreement with Mission West, the EDC was to pay the purchase price 
of $21.8 million in installments, as stipulated in a promissory note. In fiscal 2013, $3 million of the EDC 
fund along with $1.2 million collected from the City's Transit Area Impact Fee Fund were applied toward 
the repayment of the promissory note. 



Operating transfers in of approximately $1.2 million were from the Transit Area Impact Fee Fund and 
were used to pay a portion of the promissory note as mentioned above. 

Housine Authorit]l 

This Fund accounts for the housing activities assumed from the former Redevelopment Agency designed 
to increase the amount of low and moderate-income housing available in the City. Total revenues were 
$3.2 million in fiscal 2013, comprised of $0.8 million of interest and rental income, $0.6 million from 
repayment of housing Ioans, $0.3 million proceeds from the sale of an affordable housing unit, and $1.5 
million developer contributions for affordable housing. Total expenditures were $0.3 million for 
administration and operation of the "Silent Second" loan program and management of ten housing units 
that were transferred fiom the former Redevelopment Agency's Housing Reserve Fund. 

Other financing uses are related to the loss on sale of six affordable units to low-income households. 
These units were converted from moderate to low-income housing units in order to attract willing buyers 
to maintain the affordability restrictions. The reduction of the sales price for these units created a loss on 
sale in the accounting records of the Housing Authority. 

Street Im~rovement Caoital Proiect 

This Capital Project Fund accounts for the majority of the capital projects activity in the City that is not 
developed in the Transit Area. The Fund's revenues were $2.7 million in fiscal 2013, an increase of $2 
million from fiscal 2012. The increase was due to increased intergovernmental revenues and developer 
contributions. Fund expenditures were $5.1 million in fiscal 2013, a decrease of $0.1 million from fiscal 
2012, attributed to capital outlay decrease. Operating transfers in of $1.5 million were from the Gas Tax 
Special Revenue Fund for capital improvement project funding. 

Transit Area Imoact Fee 

The Transit Area Impact Fee Fund was established in fiscal 2009 to account for impact fees revenue 
collected from developers and related capital expenditures in the Transit Area. In fiscal 2013, fund 
revenues were $1.2 million, primarily from fees collected from developers. Expenditures were $0.7 
million, consisted of $0.1 million capital improvement project expenditures and $0.6 million for accrued 
interest expenditures on advances received from other funds. The advances bear simple interest of 5% 
annually. The operating transfer out of $1.2 million to the Economic Development Corporation was used 
to pay for aportion of installment payment pursuant to a promissory note. 

Other Governmental Funds 

These funds are not presented separately in the Basic Financial Statements, but are individually presented 
as Supplemental Information. 



Fund Balance Classifications 

Fund balances are classified in five categories: nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and 
unassigned based on a hierarchy of constraint. Further details on fund balance classifications can be 
found in Note 10B. 

Table 7 shows the classification ofthe fund balances of the major governmental funds. 

Table 7 
Fund Balances at  June 30 -Major Governmental Funds 

(in Millions) 

General Fund 
Nonspendable 

Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total 

EDC Fund 
Restricted 

Housing Authority Fund 
Restricted 

Street Improvement Fund 
Restricted 

Transit Area Impact Fee Fund 
Unassigned 

At June 30,2013, the fund balance of the General Fund was $32.7 mi1Iion: $0.5 miIlion was classified as 
nonspendable, comprised of prepaid materials and supplies; $5.4 million for PERS Rate Stabilization was 
classified as committed; $10.4 million of the fund balance comprised of $7.2 million for capital 
improvement, $2.8 million for uninsured claims and $0.4 million for encumbrances, was classified as 
assigned; $16.4 million was classified as unassigned. 

The fund balance of the Economic Development Corporation Fund was $26.8 million, all restricted for 
economic development purposes. 

The fund balances of the Housing Authority Fund and Street Improvement Fund were also classified as 
restricted because the amounts were restricted for specific purposes. 

The fund balance of the Transit Area Impact Fee Fund was classified as unassigned due to its negative 
amount. 



Analyses of Major Proprietary F14nds 

Total operating revenues of Business-type Activities increased $1.8 million &om last year, while 
operating expenses increased $2.4 million. Total revenues and total operating expenses were $32.4 
million and $26.3 million respectively. Non-operating revenues were $0.6 million in fiscal 2013, an 
increase of $0.4 million from the prior year. Capital contributions decreased by $1.4 million while net 
transfers out also decreased by $1.4 million. 

Water Utility 

The operation of the Recycled Water Utility Fund was combined with the Water Utility Fund in f ~ c a I  
2013. Total revenues were $19.8 million in fiscal 2013, up $1.6 million from the combined total of the 
two funds in prior year. The increase in revenues was primarily due to increased water rates and usage. 
Expenses were $17.2 million in fiscal 2013, up $1.4 million from the prior year's combined total of the 
two funds, primarily due to increased purchased water expense. Net position of the Water Utility Fund 
increased $1.7 million in the current year to a total of $66.6 million. The increase comprised of $2.6 
million in operating income for the current year, $0.1 million in non-operating revenues, $0.7 million 
capital contributions from developers, offset by net transfers out of $1.7 million. The transfer out of $1.7 
million was for reimbursements of administration costs incurred by the General Fund. 

This Fund's Net Position includes $47.7 million invested in capital assets, $14.3 million in restricted net 
position, and $4.6 million in unrestricted net position. 

Sewer Utility 

Sewer fund revenues were $12.6 million in fiscal 2013, up $0.2 million fiom the prior year due to 
increased usage. Expenses were $9.1 million in fiscal 2013, up $1 million from the prior year due to 
increased contribution requirements for the City's share of the operating expenses at the Waste Water 
Treatment Plant and increased depreciation expense. Non-operating revenues in fiscal year 2013 
consisted of $0.2 million interest income, $0.3 million interest expense, and $0.6 million developer 
contributions. Net position of the Sewer Utility Fund increased $3.3 million in the current year to a total 
of $92.6 million. This increase comprised of $3.5 million in operating income, $0.5 million in non- 
operating income, $0.6 million in capital contributions by developers, and net transfers out of $1.3 million 
for reimbursements of administration costs incurred by the General Fund. 

$15.2 million of the Fund's Net Position was unrestricted at the fiscal year end. Of the remainder, $58.8 
million was invested in capital assets and $18.6 million was restricted as to use. 



CAPITAL ASSETS 

The City records the cost of all its infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges, signals and similar assets 
used by the general population and computed the amount of accumulated depreciation for these assets 
based on their original acquisition dates. At the end of fiscal 2013, the cost of infrastructure and other 
capital assets recorded on the City's financial statements was as shown in Table 8 below: 

Governmenin1 Activities: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Buildings and improvements 
Other improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Landscape system 
Storm system 
Street system 
Traffic system 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Totals 

Table 8 
Capital Assets at Year-end 

(in Millions) 

2013 

$ 58.6 
10.9 
96.3 
26.2 
35.8 
29.6 
74.3 

229.5 
18.9 

(352.9) 

$227.2 

Business-type Acfivifies: 
Land 
Construction in progress 
Distribution facilities 
Service l i e s  
Sewer lines 
Capacity rights 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Totals 

The principal additions in fiscal 2013 were to the street system and construction-in-progress. Construction 
in progress included the Alviso Adobe Renovation, City Hall AV system upgrades and Fire Station 
Improvements. 

The City depreciates all its capital assets over their estimated useful lives. The purpose of depreciation is 
to spread the cost of a capital asset over the years of its useful life so that an allocable portion of the cost 
of the asset is borne by all users. Additional information on depreciable lives may be found in Note 8. 



DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

A portion of the City's debt was issued to finance Sewer infrastructure improvements. This debt issue is 
secured by the sewer revenue. In fiscal 2012, the EDC purchased a property and entered into a promissoty 
note with the seller. The promissory note requires annual installment payments until fiscal 2016. In fiscal 
2013, the City entered into a capital lease for the purchase of a phone system and equipment. The lease 
requires annual payments until fiscal 2017. Each of the City's debt is discussed in detail in Note 9 to the 
financial statements. At June 30,2013 the City's debt comprised: 

Table 9 
Outstanding Debt 

(in Millions) 

Balance Balance 
June 30,2013 June 30,2012 

Governmental Activity Debt: 

Purchase Agreement with Mission West Properties 
due February 15,20 16 

Cisco Phone System Capital Lease due 
Due September 18,2016 

Total Governmental Activity Debt 

Business-type Activity Debt: 

Sewer Certificates of Participation, 2006 Series A 
3.4% -4.2%, dueNovember 1,2026 

Total Business-type Activity Debt 

LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT DEBT 

Local improvement districts in different parts of the City have issued debt to finance infrastructure and 
facilities construction entirely in those districts. At June 30, 2013, a total of $1 1.1 million in local 
improvement district debt was outtstanding, issued by two local improvement districts. This debt is 
secured only by special assessments on the real properties in the district issuing the debt, and is not the 
City's responsibility. The City does act as these Districts' agent in the collection and remittance of 
assessments, and in the management of facilities construction. Further detail on these districts may be 
found in Note 15 to the fmancial statements. 

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK AND MAJOR INITIATIVES 

The economy of the City and its major initiatives for the coming year are discussed in detail in the 
accompanying Transmittal Letter. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, and 
creditors with a general overview of the City's fmances. Questions about this Report should be directed 
to the Finance Department, at 455 East Calaveras Boulevard, Milpitas, CA 95035-5479 or to the City's 
website at www.ci.milpitas.ca.gov. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 



STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

The Statement of Net Position reports the difference between the City's total assets and deferred outflows of 
resources and the City's total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, including all the City's capital assets 
and all its long-term debt. The Statement of Net Position focuses the reader on the composition of the City's net 
assets by subtracting total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources from total assets and deferred outflows of 
resources. 

The Statement of Net Position summarizes the financial position of the City's Governmental Activities in a single 
column, and the financial position of all the City's Business-type Activities in a single column; these columns are 
followed by a Total column that presents the financial position of the primaty government. This column is 
followed by a column that displays the discretely presented component unit. 

The City's Governmental Activities include the activities of its General Fund, along with all its Special Revenue, 
Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds. Since the City's Internal Service Funds service these Funds, their 
activities are consolidated with Governmental Activities, after eliminating inter-fund transactions and balances. 
The City's Business-type Activities include all its Enterprise Fund activities. 

The Statement of Activities reports increases and decreases in the City's net position. It is prepared on the full 
accrual basis, which means it includes all the City's revenues and all its expenses, regardless of when cash 
changes hands. This differs from the "modified accrual" basis used in the Fund financial statements, which 
reflect only current assets, current liabilities, deferred inflows/outflows of resources, available revenues and 
measurable expenditures. 

The Statement of Activities presents the City's expenses first, listed by the program, and follows these with the 
expenses of its Business-type Activities. Program revenues - that is, revenues which are generated directly by 
these programs -are then deducted from program expenses to arrive at the net expense of each governmental and 
business-type program. The City's general revenues are then listed in the Governmental Activities, Busiuess- 
type Activities or discretely presented component unit column, as appropriate, and the Change in Net Position is 
computed and reconciled with the Statement of Net Position. 

Both of these Statements include the financial activities of the City and the blended component units: the 
Milpitas Public Financing Authority (Financing Authority), the Milpitas Economic Development Corporation 
(EDC) and the City of Milpitas Housing Authority (Housing Authority). The Financing Authority and Housing 
Authority are legally separate component units of the City, because they are controlled by the City and the City is 
financially accountable for their activities. The EDC is a California nonprofit public benefit Corporation that is 
also a legally separate component unit of the City because it is governed by a board consisting of the members of 
the City Council. The balances and the activities of the discretely presented component unit of Terrace Gardens, 
Inc. are included in these statements as separate columns. 

These financial statements along with the fund financial statements and footnotes are called Basic Financial 
Statements. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30,2013 
Component 

Primary Government Unit 

Governmental Businw-Type 
Activitie Activities Total Tenace Gardens Inc. 

ASSETS 
Cash and invesbnents available for operations (Note3) 
Resticted invesbmnts (Note 3) 
Reaivables: 

Accauot8 
Due 6om other governments 
Interest 

Internal balances (Note 4) 
Loans rece~vable, net (Note 5) 
Prepids, materials, supplies and deposits (Note IF) 
Property heldfm resale (Note 6) 
Capital assets aodcapacityrights (Note 8): 

Land md wosrmction in progress 
Depreciable capital assetsts net 

Tolal assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Interest payable 
Unimed  claimspayable (Note 13). 

Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Refundable deposiis 
Unearned revenue 
Acemedvacation (Note 12): 

Due within one year 
Due inmare fhan one year 

Sick leave payable (Note 12): 
Dne within one year 
Due in more fhan one year 

Long term debt (Note 9): 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION (Note 10) 
Net investment in capital awts  and capacity rights 
Rmtricted for: 

Capital projects 
Redevelopment and comsuni$ development act hi ti^. 

Total remictednetposition 

Total net position 

Seeacwmpanying nates to financial sstatements 



Function&'mgram 
Primary Government: 

Governmental Activities: 
General Government 
Buildii  
Recreation 
Public Works 
Planning and Neighborhood S e M w  
Police 
Fire 
Interest on long term debt 

Total Govemmenlsl Activities 

Businesstype Activities: 
Water Utility 
Sewer Utility 

Total Busiaess-typc Activities 

Total Primary Government 

CompooentUnit: 
Term- Gardens Inc. 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes 
Sales and use taxer 
HoteVMotel taxes 
Other faxes 

Franchise fees, mestrioted 
Motor vehicle in lieu, unresmcted 
Investment earnmngs 
Gain on sale ofpmperty 
Miscellaneous 

Transfen (Note 4) 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FORTHE YEARENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Nct (Exoense) Revenueand 
Program Rwenues c&n& i n ~ e t  ~osition 

owatin&! Capital Primaly Government 
Chargesfor Gmts  and Grants and Governmental Business-type 

Expenses Services Contibutions Contributions Activities Activities 

Total general revenues and namfers 

Change inNet Position 

Net posilian-Beginning 

net position-Endmg 

See aceomplnying notes to hancial statements 



Net (Expen=) 
Revenue and 

Changeg inNet Pasition 
Component Unit 

Temce 
Total Gardens Inc. 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
The Fund Financial Statements present individual major funds, while non-major funds are 
combined in a single column.  Major funds are defined generally as having significant activities or 
balances in the current year.  No distinction is made between Fund types.   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
 
The funds described below were determined to be Major Funds by the City.  Individual non-major 
funds may be found in the Supplemental section. 
 
GENERAL FUND 
 
The General Fund is used for all the general revenues of the City not specifically levied or collected 
for other City funds and the related expenditures.  The general fund accounts for all financial 
resources of a governmental unit, which are not accounted for in another fund. 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION FUND 
 
Established to account for the activities of the Milpitas Economic Development Corporation formed 
for the purpose of providing physical, economic and educational development, redevelopment and 
revitalization efforts within the City.  Since the Corporation’s only funding source was from the 
former Redevelopment Agency, the proceeds and revenues from any of the Corporation’s activities 
are restricted to redevelopment activities. 
 
HOUSING AUTHORITY FUND 
 
Established to plan and address the housing needs of the City and to act as the Housing Successor 
Agency for the former Redevelopment Agency.  The main source of the revenue for this fund is the 
repayment of loans restricted for housing activities. 
 
STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND 
 
Established to account for the construction and maintenance of the street system in Milpitas.  
Financing may be provided through state and federal grants. 
 
TRANSIT AREA IMPACT FEE FUND 
 
Established to account for capital projects in the transit area.  A special transit area impact fee is 
imposed on developments to provide financing. 
 





CITY OF MJLPITAS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30,2013 

Economic 
Oevelopment Housing Sbeel 

General Carpomtion Authon'ty lmpmvement 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments available for operatians(Note 3) 
ReshicW inveslments (Note 3) 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Due fiom other governments 
Interest 

Loans receivable, net (Note 5) 
Prepaids, materials, supplies and dewits (Note IF) 
Properly held for male (Note 6) 
Advances to other funds (Noted) 

Tobl &Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Refundable depasik 
Unearned revenue 
Advances fiom other finds (Nate4) 

Total Liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Unavailnble revenue - interest an advances 
Unavailable revenue - loans receivable 

Total Deferredlnflows of Resources 

FUND BALANCES 

Fund balances (Note 10): 
Nonopeodable 468,464 4,470 
Reshicted 26,802,470 24,559,909 9,767,879 
Commined 5,432,703 
Assigned 10,433,754 
Unassigned 16,444,253 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 32,779,174 26,802,470 24,564,379 9,767,879 

Total Liabilities, Defwred Inflows ofResourees and FundBalances $50,949,608 $31,485,664 $54,224,298 $10,023,356 

Amounhreported for Governmental Activities in thc Statement ofNet Pasition 
are ditferent 60m those reported in the Governmental Funds above because of the following: 

CAPITAL ASSETS 
Capital asets used in Governmental Activities are not ouneof assets or financial resources and thereforeare not reported in the Ciovemmental Funds 

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND NET POSITION 
l~~lernal service funds are not govcmmcntal funds. llnwevcr, lhcy are uacd by mauagcmunl tu charge chc cork ofcertain aclivilies, s.eh or insuranec and 

central services and m.tint~.nanu., to individual gavcmmenlnl funds. 'The nct cuncnt a w n  ofthc Internal Service Funds are therefore included 
in Guvernmenlal Aetivilies in lhc Stalemcnt ofNct Position. 

ACCKllAL OF NON-CURRIINT WVI:NUI:S AND EXPENSES 
Kewnurr rvhieh are unawilnble on tho I'und Hslsnee ShceL~ hrrausell~ey ;ue no1 available cunenlly are taken 

into revenue in the Statement of Adivitiw. 

LONG TERM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
The assets and liabilities Mo\vare not dueand payable in the current periodand therefore are not reported in the Funds: 

Long-term debt 
Noncurrent portton ofaccrued vacation and sick leave 
Noncurrent portion afuninsnred claim payable 

NET POSITION OFGOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See accompanying nates to financial statements 



Other Tolal 
Trmit Area Governmental Gouemmmlal 
lrnpnct Fee Funds Funds 



REVENUES 
Property taxes 
Sales taxes 
Giher taxes 
Licenses and 6nes 
Use ofmoney and property 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Developer cnnlribotions 
Other 

Total Rovenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Cment: 

General Government 
Bulld~ng and Safely 
HumanResources and R e t i o n  
Public Works 
Planning and Neighborhood Services 
Pol,ce 
Fire 

Capital outlay 
Debt service. 

Principal 
Interest and fecs 

Total Erpendihlres 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Pmceeds fmmsale ofproperty 
(Loss) on saleofproperty held for resale 
Transfers in (Note 4) 
Transfers (out) (Note4) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20 13 

Eennomio 
Development Housing Street 

General corporation Authotiiy Impmvemcnt 

Fund balances (deficits) at beginning ofyear 35,713,744 31,628,982 22,190,783 10,742,916 

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) AT END OF YEAR $32,779,174 $26,802,470 $24,564,379 $9,767,879 

See acenmpanying notes to financial rtatemenfs 



Transit Area Ciovemmental 
Impact Fee Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Reconciliation of the 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
with the 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ESDEDJUNF 30,2013 

The schedule below reconoiles the Net Changes in Fund Balances reported on the Governmental Funds Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, which measures only changes in current assets and e n m t  
liabilities on the msdified accrual basis, with the Change inNel Position of Gownunental Activities reported in the 
Statement ofActivities, which is prepared on the full accwal basis. 

NET CHANGE Dl FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities 
are different because of the following: 

CAPITAL ASSETS TRANSACTIONS 

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the Statement of Aotivitiesthe cost of those assets is oapitalized and allocated over 
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

The capital outlay expenditures are therefore added back to Fund balance 
(Internal service 'nd additions of $994,780 have already been added to capital assets) 7>497,076 

Depreciation expense is deducted from the fund balance 
(Depreciation expense is net of in temal service fund depreciation of 
$81 1,620 which Itas already been allocated to serviced funds.) (13,560,615) 

LONG TERM DEBT PAYMENTS 

Repayment of principal is an expenditure in the govermental h d s ,  but 
in the Statement ofNet Position the repayment reduces long-term liabilities. 

Repayment of principal is added back to fund balance 

ACCRUAL OF NON-CURRENT ITEMS 

The amounts below included in the Statement of Activities do not provide or (require) the use of 
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as revenue or expenditures in 
governmental funds (net change): 

Non-current portion of accrued vacation and nck leave 
Non-current portion ofuninsured claims payable 
Unavailable revenue 

ALLOCATION OF INTERNAL SERVICE FUND ACTIVITY 

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the 0 0 s  of certain activities, 
such as equipment acquisition, maintenance, and insurance to individual funds. 
The portion of the net revenue (expense) of these Internal Service Funds arising out 
of their transactions with governmental funds is repoited with governmental activities, 
because they service those activities. 

Change in Net Position - All Internal Service Funds 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See acoompanying notes to financial statements 



Revenues 
Pmperty taxes 
Sales taxes 
Other taxes 
Lieenses and iines 
Use ofmoney and property 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Other 

TOM Revenues 

Expendihues 
Current: 

Oeoeral Oovemment' 
City Manager 
City Aliomey 
Finance 
Information Services 
Nmdepamental 

Building and Safely 
Human Resources and Recreation 
Public Works 
Planning and Neighborhwd Services 
Police 
Fire 

Total ExpendiNres 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
O~REXPENDITLRES 

OTHERFINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
P d s  fmm sdle ofpmpwty 
Transfers in 
Tmnsfers(out) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net change in fund bal;mce 

Adjustment to budgetary basis: 
Encumbrance expendiires 

Fuod balance at beginning ofyear 

Fund balance at end of year 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Budget 

Actual Amounts Positive 
Original Final Budgetary Basis (Negative) 

See accompanying notes to iinanoial s ta tem& 



Revenues 
Use of money and prqerty 
Doveloper eonh~ibutians 
Other 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General G a v m e n t :  
Finance 
Nondepartmental 

Plsnning and Neighborhood S e ~ i w s  

Total Expendihmes 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY] OF REVENUES 
OVEREXPENDITURES 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
HOUSING AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE$ EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCX 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON GAAP LEGAL BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,20 13 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts Budget 

Actual Amounts Positive 
Original Final Budgetary B s i s  (Negative) 

OTHERFINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
(Loss) onsale of property for resale 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net change in find balance 

Fund balance at beginning ofyear 

Fund balance at endofyear 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 



1 MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 1 
Proprietaty funds account for City operations fmanced and operated in a manner similar to a private business 
enterprise. The intent of the City is that the cost of providing goods and services be financed primarily through user 
charges. 

The concept of major funds extends to Proprietaty Funds. The City has identified the funds below as major 
proprietary funds. 

Financial reporting standards do not provide for the disclosure of budget vs, actual comparisons regarding 
proprietary funds that are major funds. 

WATER UTILITY FUND 

Accounts for the provision of water services to residents and businesses of the City. All activities necessary to 
provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration, operations, capital 
improvements, maintenance, billing and collection. 

SEWER UTILITY FUND 

Accounts for the provision of sewer services to residents and businesses of the City. All activities necessaty to 
provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, administration, operations, capital 
improvements, maintenance, financing, billing and collection. 

NON-MAJOR INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

EQUIPMENT MANAGEMENT INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

The Equipment Management Internal Service Fund is used to fmance and account for the replacement of equipment 
used by City departments and the maintenance of computer systems on a cost reimbursement basis. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30,2013 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and investments 
available for operations (Note 3) 

Receivables: 
Accounts 
Due from other governments 
lnterest 

Governmental 
Activities- 

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Equipment 
Maoagemcnt 

Sewer Intern1 Service 
Water Utility Utility Totals Fund 

Loans (Note 5) 42,283 
Prcpaids, materials, supplies and deposits (Note IF) 372,831 21,439 394,270 103,355 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent asscts: 
Advanco to other Funds (Note 4) 
Capital assets and capacity rights (Note 8): 

Land and construction in progress 
Depreciable capital assets, net 

Total noncurrent assets 

T o t ~ l  assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payablc 
Accrued payroll 
Interest payablc 
Refundable deposits 
Accrued vacation (Note 12) 
Sick leave payable (Notc 12) 
Capital lease (Note 9) 
Certiricatcs of Participation (Note 9) 

Total current liabilities 

Non-current liabilities: 
Accrued vacation (Note 12) 
Sick leave payable (Note 12) 
Capital lease (Note 9) 
Certificates of Participation (Note 9) 

Totnl non-current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION (Note 10) 
Net investment in capital assets and capacity rights 
Re&cted for capital projects 
Unreskictcd 

Total net position 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 



OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Other operating revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Purchased water 
Sewer treatment services 
Personnel services 
Services and supplies 
Depreciation 
Repairs and maintenance 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating lneome (Loss) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Subventions and grants 
Gain on sale of assets 
Developer contributions 

Total Nonoperating Revenues 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 

Capital contributions 
Capital contributions - connection fees 
Transfers in (Note 4) 
Transfen (out) (Note 4) 

Change in net position 

Net position-beginning 

Net position-ending 

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Equipment 
Management 

Sewer htemal Service 
Water Utility Utility Totals Fund 

See accompanying notes to tinancial statements 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Governmental 
Activioeb 

Business-type Activ~ties-Enterprise Funds Equipment 
Management 

Sewer Internal Service 
Water Utility Utility Totals Fund 

CASH mows FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from customers $19,386,649 $12,594,901 $31,981,550 $1,786,610 
Payments to suppliers (13,798,558) (4,974,981) (18,773,539) (890,483) 
Payments to employees (2,224,291) (1,281,455) (3,503,744) (600,102) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,363,800 6,338,465 9,702,265 296,025 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPlTAL 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Subventions and grants 11 1,436 720 (12,156 
Advance to other funds (225,050) (225,050) 
Loans receivable 42.282 
Transfers in 9,962 9,962 19,924 
Transfers (out) (1,706,077) (1,358,559) (3,064,636) 

Cash Flows from Noncap~tal Financing Act~vitier (1,584,679) (1,572,927) (3,157,606) 42,282 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal paid on long-term debt (395,000) (395,000) (120,666) 
Interest paid (292,966) (292,966) 
Proceeds from sale of capltal assets 30,955 
Acquisition of capital assets (435,004) (689,767) (1,124,771) (890,664) 
Proceeds from cnpital lease 480,302 
Cap~tal contributions - connecllon fees 656,244 605,862 1,262,106 
Developer contributions 7 1,407 640,258 711,665 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related 
Fmancing Activities 292,647 (131,613) 161,034 (500,073) 

CASH FLOWS PROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest rece~ved 148,496 148,496 
Interest paid (48,644) (48,644) (5,543) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities (48,644) 148,496 99,852 (5,543) 

Net increose (decrease) ~n cash and cash equivalents 2,023,124 4,782,421 6,805,545 (167,309) 

Cash aid investments at beginning of period 16,869,305 23,224,838 40,094,143 9,206,730 

Cash and investments at end of per~od $18,892,429 $28,007,259 $46,899,688 $9,039,421 

Reconciliation of operatmg income to net cash provided by 
operating activitier 
Operating income (lass) $2,605,722 $3,504,499 $6,110,221 ($519,581) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating mcome (loss) Lo net cash provided 

by operating aativities: 
Depreciation 1,405,229 2,770,707 4,175,936 81 1,620 

Change in assets and liab~lities: 
Rece~vables, net (370,344) (36,926) (407,270) 
Materials, supphes and deposits (135,539) (5,190) (140,729) 2,335 
Aecrued payroll (8,031) 3,683 (4,348) 
Accounts and other payables (133,237) 101,692 (31.545) 1,65 1 

Net cash provided by operating activities $3,363,800 $6,338,465 $9,702,265 $296,025 

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS: 

Contributions and transfers of capital assets, net $104,116 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS I 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

These funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, and 
other governments. The financial activities of these funds are excluded from the Government-wide financial 
statements, but are presented in separate Fiduciary Fund financial statements. 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE MILPITAS REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY PRIVATE-PURPOSE 
TRUST FUND 

The Successor Agency to the Milpitas Redevelopment Agency Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the 
acculnulatio~l of resources to be used to make payments that are on the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule 
and to dispose of assets and propel9 of the former Redevelopment Agency for the benefit of the taxing agencies. 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, and 
other governments. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCJARYNET POSITION 
JUNE 30,2013 

Successor Agency 
to the Milpitas 

Redevelopment Agency 
Private-purpose Agency 

Trust Fund Funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments (Note 3) 
Interest receivable 
Property held for resale (Note 168) 
Capital assets (Note 16D): 

Land and construction in progress 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Rehdable deposits 
Due to Local Improvement Districts 
Interest payable 
Long-term obligations (Note 16E): 

Due in one year 
Due in more than one year 

Total Liabilities 

NET POSITION (DEFICIT) 

Held in trust for other governments ($79,209,556) 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANOES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30,2013 

Successor Agency 
to the Milpitas 

Redevelopment Agency 
Private-purpose 

Trust Fund 

Additions: 
Taxes 
Use of money and properties 

Total additions 

Deductions: 
General and administrative 
Payment of low and moderate income housing 

funds to the County (Note 16A) 
Debt Service: 

Interest and fees 

Total deductions 

Net Change in net position 

Net position (deficit) -beginning 

Net position (deficit) - ending 

See accompanying notes to financial statements 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
N o w  to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Milpitas was incorporated as a general law city on January26, 1954. The City operates under the 
Council-Manager form of govemment and provides the following services: public safety, police, f ~ e  and 
building inspection; parks and streets; water; sanitation; recreation services; planning and zoning; general 
administration services, redevelopment and economic development. 

The fmancial statements and accounting policies of the City conform with generally accepted accounting 
principles applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and fmancial reporting principles. Significant 
accounting policies are summarized below: 

A. Reporting Enti@ 

The accompanying basic fmancial statements present the financial activity of the City, which is the primary 
government presented, along with the fmancial activities of its component units, which are entities for which 
the City is fmancially accountable. Although they are separate legal entities, blended component units are in 
substance part of the City's operations and are reported as an integral part of the City's financial statements. 
Each discretely presented component unit, on the other band, is reported in a separate column in the basic 
fmancial statements to emphasize it is legally separate fiom the government. 

PlUMARY GOVERNMENT 

The fmancial statements of the primary government of the City of Milpitas include the activities of the City as 
well as the Milpitas Public Financing Authority, the Milpitas Economic Development Corporation and the 
City of Milpitas Housing Authority, all of which are controlled by and dependent on the City. While these are 
separate legal entities, their fmancial activities are integral to those of the City. Their fmancial activities have 
been aggregated and merged (termed "blended") with those of the primary govemment of the City in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

Blended Component Units 

The Milpitas Public Financing Authority is a separate govemment entity whose purpose is to assist with the 
financing or refmancing of certain public capital improvements within the City. The Authority has the power 
to purchase bonds issued by any local agency at public or negotiated sale and may sell such bonds to public or 
private purchasers at public or negotiated sale. The Authority is controlled by the City and has the same 
governing body as the City, which also performs all accounting and administrative functions for the Authority. 
The fmancial activities of the Authority are included in the Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

LNOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) I 
The Milpitas Economic Development Corporation, formed in February 201 1, is a California nonprofit public 
benefit Corporation formed by the City and the former Milpitas Redevelopment Agency under the laws of the 
State of California. As discussed in Note 16, the Redevelopment Agency was dissolved effective January 3 1, 
2012. The Corporation was organized for the purpose of encouraging and facilitating the City's economic 
development, affordable housing and other community programs. The Corporation is governed by a board of 
directors consisting of the members of the City Council. Under an operating agreement with the 
Redevelopment Agency, the Corporation received funding fiom the Agency and will use the funds for 
redevelopment purposes consistent with the California Community Redevelopment Law, Health and Safety 
Code Section 33000 and to implement and cany out the Redevelopment Plans. The Corporation also 
entered into a Service Agreement with the City under which the City will perform the necessary services on 
an independent contractor basis to eliminate blight, provide affordable housing, improve the public realm, 
facilitate public and private developments, stimulate economic development, and create jobs. The 
Corporation is controlled by the City and has the same governing body as the City, which also performs all 
accounting and administrative functions for the Corporation. The fmancial activities of the Corporation are 
included in the Economic Development Corporation Special Revenue Fund. 

The City of Milpitas Housing Authority, formed in February 2011, is a separate government entity whose 
purpose is to assist with the housing for the City's low and moderate income residents. The Housing 
Authority is controlled by the City and has the same goveming body as the City, which also performs all 
accounting and administrative functions for the Housing Authority. The Financial activities of the Housing 
Authority are included in the Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund. 

Financial statements for the Milpitas Economic Development Corporation may be obtained fiom the City 
of Milpitas located at 455 East Calaveras Blvd., Milpitas, CA 95035 or www.ci.milpitas.ca.aov/ 
govenunent/finance. Separate financial statements are not issued for the Public Financing Authority or the 
City of Milpitas Housing Authority. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Terrace Gardens, Inc, is a non-profit public benefit corporation organized in September 1986 for the purpose 
of developing and managing the operations of a residential complex known as Terrace Gardens, which is 
located in the City of Milpitas and is dedicated to the needs of elderly persons. The former Milpitas 
Redevelopment Agency funded the construction of Terrace Gardens. City Council can appoint a voting 
majority of the governing board and approves the annual budget. The City Council exercises control over the 
Board of Terrace Gardens. Therefore, the fmancial activities of Terrace Gardens, Inc. as of and for the year 
ended December 3 1,2012 are discretely presented in the Terrace Gardens Inc. Component Unit column of the 
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. 

Financial statements for Terrace Gardens, Inc. may be obtained fiom Terrace Gardens, Ino., 186 Beresford 
Court, Milpitas, CA 95035. 

B. Basis of Presentation 

The City's Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board is the 
acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and fmancial reporting standards followed 
by governmental entities in the United States of America, 

These Standards require that the financial statements described below be presented. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financia1 Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

(NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I 
Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display 
information about the primary government, the City and its blended and discretely presented component 
units. These statements include the financial activities of the overall City government, except for fiduciary 
activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These 
statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the City. Governmental 
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange 
transactions. Business-type activities are fmanced in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each 
segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental 
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, 
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the 
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to 
meeting the operational needs of a particular prog~am and (c) fees, grants and contributions that are 
restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified as 
program revenues, including franchise fees that are based on gross receipts and all taxes, are presented as 
general revenues. 

Fund Financial Sfatenzents: The fund fmancial statements provide information about the City's funds, 
including fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category-- 
governmental, proprietary, and$duciary--are presented. The emphasis of fund fmancial statements is on 
major individual governmental and enterprise funds, each of which is displayed in a separate column. All 
remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues and expenses, such as charges for services and the related costs, result 
from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are 
those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues and 
expenses, such as subsidies, investment earnings and any related costs, result from nonexchange 
transactions or ancillary activities. 

C Major Funds 

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and 
deferred inflows of resources, revenues or expenditures/expenses equal to ten percent of their fund-type 
total and five percent of the grand total. The General Fund is always a major fund. The City may also 
select other funds it believes should be presented as major funds. 

The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying fmancial statements: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The major revenue sources for 
this Fund are sales taxes, property taxes, unrestricted revenues from the State, fmes and forfeitures and 
interest income. Expenditures are incurred for public safety, most street work and the other services described 
above. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

(NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Economic Development Corporation Fund - Established to account for the activities of the Milpitas 
Economic Development Corporation, a nonprofit public benefit Corporation formed in fiscal 201 1 by the 
City and the former Redevelopment Agency, established to ~rovide physical, economic and educational 
development, redevelopment and revitalization efforts within the City. Since the Corporation's only funding 
source was firom the former Redevelopment Agency, the proceeds and revenues from any of the Corporation's 
activities are restricted to redevelopment activities. 

Housing Authority Fund -Established to plan and address the housing needs of the City and to act as the 
Housing Successor of the former Redevelopment Agency. The main source of the revenue for this fund is 
the repayment of loans restricted for housing activities. 

Street Improvement Fund - Established to account for the construction and maintenance of the street 
system in Milpitas. Financing is provided through State and Federal grants. 

Transit Area Impact Fee Fund - Established to account for the capital projects in the transit area. A special 
transit area impact fee is imposed on developments to provide fmancing. 

The City reported all its enterprise funds as major funds in the accompanying fmancial statements: 

Water Utility Fund - Accounts for the provision of water services to residents and businesses of the City. 
All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this find, including, but not limited to, 
administration, operations, capital improvements, maintenance, billing and collection. 

Sewer Utility Fund -Accounts for the provision of sewer services to residents and businesses of the City. 
All activities necessary to provide such services are accounted for in this fund, including, but not limited to, 
administration, operations, capital improvements, maintenance, fmancing, and billing and collection. 

The City also reports the following fund types: 

Internal Service Fund - The Equipment Management Internal Service Fund is used to fmance and account 
for the replacement of equipment used by City departments and the maintenance of the onlme permit 
development system on a cost reimbursement basis. 

Fiduciary Funds - Trust funds account for assets held by the City as an agent for various functions. The 
Successor Agency to the Milpitas Redevelopment Agency Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for the 
accumulation of resources to be used for payments at appropriate amounts and times in the future. This fund 
accounts for winding down the affairs of the former Milpitas Redevelopment Agency and makes payments 
on the Enforceable Obligation Schedule and disposes of assets and property of the former Redevelopment 
Agency for the benefit of taxing agencies. 

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for negotiated employee benefits, the 
Senior Advisory Commission, and Local Improvement Districts. The fmancial activities of these funds are 
excluded fiom the City-wide financial statements, but are presented in separate Fiduciary Fund financial 
statements. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

D. Basis of Accounting 

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund fmancial statements are reported using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take 
place. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of 
results of operations. 

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modij7ed accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and 
available. The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the 
revenues are collected within forty-five days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, 
and accumulated unpaid vacation, sick pay and other employee benefit amounts, which are recognized as 
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital 
leases are reported as otherfinancing sources. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving 
equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On the accrual basis, 
revenue from taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied or assessed. Revenue 
from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied. 

Other revenues susceptible to accrual are sales taxes, significant building permit fees, and interest revenue. 
Forfeitures, licenses, other permits and miscellaneous revenue are not susceptible to accrual because they are 
not measurable until received in cash. Grant funding received in advance of the related expenditure is . . P ... ..> accountea Ior as unewicu rcvcuut;. 

r,-"t rpr,pnlrme r ~ r n m i ~ e r l  in the f i ~ r a l  vpnr in which all eli~ihilitv reauirements are met. Under the Y.YL...l .--- "" ...->.,- .-. --- --" --,-- - ----.-.-., -.l..-.----- ~- ~~.~ ~. ~ - - ~  

terms of grant agreements, the City may fund certain programs with a combination of cost-reimbursement 
grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net position 
may be a&lable to finance program expenditures. The City's policy is to frst  apply restricted grant 
resources to such programs, followed by unrestricted resources if necessary. 

E. Prepaids, Materials, Supplies and Deposits 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid items 
in both government-wide and fund fmancial statements. 

Materials and supplies are valued at cost on a fust-in frst-out basis. Supplies in the enterprise and internal 
hnds consist principally of materials and supplies for utility and internal operations. Materials and 
supplies of the governmental funds consist of expendable supplies and materials held for consumption. 
The cost is recorded as an expense or expenditure in the funds at the time individual inventory items are 
consumed. 

Prepaids, materials, supplies and deposits in governmental funds are equally offset by nonspendable fund 
balance which indicates that they do not constitute available spendable resources even though they are a 
component of net current assets. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

- 

INOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I 
F. DeferredInjlows and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outfIows of resources. This separate fmancial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position or h d  balance that applies to a future period(s) and so 
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expenselexpenditure) until then. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of fmancial position or balance sheet will sometimes report a 
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future 
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has 
only one item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting, that qualifies for reporting 
in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds 
balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues fiom three sources: interest on 
interfund advances, grants receivable and loans receivable. These amounts are deferred and recomized as 
an innow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. 

G. Proper@ Tar 

Santa Clara County assesses properties and bills, collects, and distributes property taxes to the City. The 
County remits the entire amount levied and handles all delinquencies, retaining interest and penalties. 
Secured and unsecured property taxes are levied on January 1. 

Secured property tax is due in two installments, on Nuvember 1 and March 1, and becomes a lien on those 
dates. It becomes delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. Unsecured property tax is due 
on July 1, and becomes delinquent on August 3 1. Collection of delinquent accounts is the responsibility of 
the County, which retains all penalties. 

The term "unsecured" refers to taxes on personal property other than real estate, land and buildings. These 
taxes are secured by liens on the property being taxed. Property tax revenues are recognized by the City in 
the fiscal year they are assessed, provided they become available as defmed above. 

H. Revenue Recognition for Water UtiIity andsewer UtiIi@ 

Revenues are recognized based on cycle billings rendered to customers. Revenues for services provided 
but not billed at the end of a fiscal period are not material and are not accrued. 

I.  Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fmancial statements 
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

J.  Recateporized Fund 

The activities of the former Recycled Water Utility Enterprise Fund are now reported within the Water 
Utility Enterprise Fund as of July 1,2012. 



CITY OF IMILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

(NOTE 2 -BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING ( 

A. Budgets and Budgetaory Accoun fing 

The City adopts an annual operating budget on or before June 30 of the previous fiscal year. The operating 
budget takes the form of a one year financial plan which is adopted in its entirety by the City Council by 
resolution. Because Milpitas is a general law city, it is not subject to a budgetav process prescribed by 
statute or charter. 

The operating budget is subject to supplemental appropriations throughout its tern in order to provide 
flexibility to meet changing needs and conditions. The City Manager may approve supplemental 
appropriations in the General Fund providing the total increase does not exceed 1% of the original total 
General Fund budget subject to the following. All additional appropriations that require the use of reserves 
must be approved by City Council. Expenditures cannot exceed the appropriated budget at the department 
level without City Council approval. 

The City Manager is authorized to amend appropriations within the various departments and projects 
within a fund, provided that the amount of the amended appropriation is $20,000 or less. Interfund transfers 
or transfers of an appropriation amount within a fund in which any single instance exceed $20,000 require 
prior approval of the City Council. 

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council. Individual amendments 
were not material in relation to the original appropriations which were amended. 

B. Aii'jrixtments to GAAP Basis from Budgefaory Basis 

City budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
except that encumbrances are considered budgetary expenditures in the year of the commitment to 
purchase, and capital projects expenditures are budgeted on a project length basis rather than a fiscal year. 
The effects of these differences are shown as encumbrance adjustments, expenditures capitalized for 
GAAP purposes and capital outlay in the budget and actual statements. The Park Improvement, General 
Government Project, Storm Drain Development and Transit Area Impact Fee Capital Projects Funds are 
budgeted on a project length basis and therefore are not comparable on an annual basis. The bylaws of the 
Economic Development Corporation do not require the adoption of an annual budget. 

C. Expenditrrres in Excess of Budget 

The Public Art Capital Projects Fund had general government non-departmental expenditures in excess of 
budget in the amount of $1,004. Sufficient resources were available within the fund to finance the 
expenditures. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

I NOTE 3 - CASH AND JNVESTMENTS I 
The City pools cash from all sources and all funds except Cash and Investments held by Trustees and 
Terrace Gardens, Inc. so that it can be invested at the maximum yield consistent with safety and liquidity, 
while individual funds can make expenditures at any time. 

A. Policies 

The City invests in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual investments are evidenced 
by specific identifiable sectnities inshumenfs, or by an electronic entry registering the owner in the records 
of the institution issuing the security, called the book enhy system. In order to increase security, the City 
employs the Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of certain City managed investments, regardless 
of their form. 

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities with a 
market value of 110% of the City's cash on deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes with a market value 
of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this collateral is held in a 
separate investment pool by another institution in the City's name and places the City ahead of general 
creditors of the institution. 

The City's investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting principles. 
The City adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each fiscal year end, and 
it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year. 

Cash and investments are classified in the fmancial statements as shown below, based on whether or not 
their use is restricted under the terms of City debt instruments or other agreements. 

Cash and investments available for operations 
Reshkted investments 

Total Primary Government cash and investments 
Cash and iovestments available for operations 
Restricted investments 

Total Component Unit cash and investments 
Cash and investments 

in Fiduciary Funds (separate statement) 

Total cash and investments 

Cash and Investments Available for Operations is used in preparing proprietary fund statements of cash 
flows because these assets are highly liquid and are expended to liquidate liabilities arising during the year. 



CITY O F  MlLPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financia1 Statements 
For  the Year Ended June 30,2013 

I NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) I 
C Investments Authorized by the Calqornia Government Code and the CiQ's Investment Policy 

The City's Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the City to invest in the following 
provided the credit ratings of the issuers are acceptable to the City; and approved percentages and maturities 
are not exceeded. The table below also identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code or the 
City's Investment Policy where it is more restrictive: 

Minimum Maximum Maximum 
Maximum Credit Percentage Investment 

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality of Portfolio In One Issuer 
Repurchase Agreements l Year 100% No Limit 
State of California Local Agency Upon Demand 100% $50,000,000 per 

Investment Fund (LAIF Pool) account 
U. S. Treasury Bonds, Notes and Bills 5 Years 100% No Limit 
Federal Agency Obligations 5 Years 100% No Limit 
Bankers Acceptances 180 Days 20% $5 million or 10% 
Commercial Paper 270 Days 15% (A) 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 2 Years 30% No L i t  
T i e  Certificates of Deposit - Banks 2 Years 10% No L i t  

or Savings and Loans 
Medium Term Corporate Notes 5 Years AA 30% (-4) 
Money Market and Mutual Funds of Upon Demand Top Rating 

Government Securities Category 20% 10% 
Security Swaps N/A 100% No L i t  

(A) Eligible Commercial Paper and Medium Term Corporate Notes combined may not represent more 
than 10% of the outstanding paper of an issuing corporation. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

1 NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

D, Inveshnenfs Authorized by Debt Agreements 

The City must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal agents under the 
terms of certain debt issues. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged reserves to be used 
if the City fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The Califomia Government Code requires 
these funds to be invested in accordance with City resolutions, bond indentures or State statutes. The table 
below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The table also 
identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements: 

Authorized Investment Type 

U. S.  Treasury Bonds, Notes and Bas 
Federal Agency Obligations 
Time Certiiicates of Deposit - Banks 

or Savings and Loans 
Bankers Acceptances 
Commercial Paper 
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 
Repurchase Agreements 
Medium Tern Corpomte Notes 
State of California Local Agency 

Investment Fund (LATF Pool) 
Money Market and Mutual Funds 
California Asset Management Program 

(CAMP) 

Maximum 
Maturity 

5 Years 
5 Years 

1-2 Years 

180 Days 
270 Days 
2 Years 
1 Year 
5 Years 

Upon Demand 

Upon Demand 
Upon Demand 

Minimum Maximum 
Credit Percentage 
Quality of Portfolio 

A 
AA, A1 

20% 
15% 
30% 
100% 
30% 

No Limit 

20% 
No Limit 

Maximum 
Investment 

In One Issuer 

No Limit 
No Limit 
No Limit 

$5,000,000 or 10% 
(A) 

No L i  
No L i t  

(A) 
$50,000,000 per 

account 
10% 

No Limit 

(A) The combined total of commercial paper and medium term corporate notes may not represent more 
than 10% of the outstanding paper and notes of an issuing corporation. 

E. Znvestmenb Auflzorized for Terrace Gardens Znc. 

Terrace Gardens, Inc. investments conform with the California Government Code. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Por the Year Ended June 30,2013 

I NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) I 
F. Inieres! Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates. The City generally manages its interest rate risk by holding investments 
to maturity. 

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City's investments (including investments held by 
bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the 
distribution of the City's investments by maturity or earliest call date: 

Inveshnent Type 

city: 
Federal Agency Obligations 

Medium Term Corporate Notes 

U.S. Treasury Notes 

California Local Agency Investment Fund 

Mutual Funds (U.S. Securities) 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 

Terrace Gardens, Inc: 

C d ~ c a t e s  of Deposit 

Total Investments 

DemandDeposits - Cfty of Milpitas 

Demand Deposils - Terrace Gardens 

Total Cash and Investments 

12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60 
or less Months Months Total 

The City is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California 
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The City 
reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value of 
the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on demand, and is based on the accounting records 
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF'S investment 
portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, 
loans to certain state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored 
enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations. At June 30, 2013 these investments 
matured in an average of278 days. 

Mutual funds are available for withdrawal on demand and at June 30,2013 matured in an average of 56 days. 



CITY O F  MILPITAS 
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For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

NOTE 3 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 

G. Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization. Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2013 for each of the Primary 
Government's investment types as provided by Standard and Poor's investment rating system: 

Federal Agency Obl~gallonr 

Medlu~n Term Corponlc Notes 
M~lhld Fwdr  (U.S Securities) 

Negotbable Certificates of Depostt 
TMaln 

No1 rnred: 

CalifomiuLocal Agency Investment Fund 
Negotiable Certilicater of Deposit 

E x c r n p l ~ , ~ l  ereJi, mrr. di,~c/osure: 
U.S. Trurury Nates 

Told lnvnfrnentr 

All the rated and unrated negotiable certificates of deposit were fully insured by Federal Deposit Insurance 
at June 30,2013. 

Terrace Gardens, Inc. invests only in Time Certificates of Deposit. At June 30, 2013, all of Terrace 
Gardens' Time Certificates of Deposit were fully insured by Federal Deposit Insurance. 

Investments in the securities of any individual issuers, other than U. S. Treasury securities, mutual funds 
and the California Local Agency Investment Fund, that represent 5% or more of total Entity-wide 
investments are as follows at June 30,2013: 

Investment 
Issuer Type Amount 

Federal Farm Credit Bank Federal Agency Obligations $25,926,360 
Federal Home Loan Bank Federal Agency Obligations 20,152,544 
Federal National Mortgage Association Federal Agency Obligations 16,815,550 



CITY OF MJLE'ITAS 
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For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

[NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS I 
A. Transfers Between Funds 

With Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another. The purpose of the 
majority of transfers is to reimburse a fund which has made an expenditure on behalf of another fund. Less 
often, a transfer may be made to open or close a fund. 

Transfers between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30,2013 were as follows: 

FundReceiving Transfers Fund Making Transfen 
Major Funds: 

General Fund Solid Waste Reduction and Senices Special Revenue Fund 
General Fund Hetch Hetchy GroundLease Special Revenue Fund 
General Fund Water Util~ty Enterprise Fund 
General Fund Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund 
Economic Development Corporatron Special Revenue Fund Transit Area ImpactFee Capital Projects Fund 
Street Improvement Capltal Projects Fund Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Water Utility Enta'prise Fund General Government Project Capital Projects Fund 
Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund General Government Project Capital Projects Fund 

No,,-Mujar FlrlrdF: 
Park Improvement Capital Pmjects Fund 
General Government Project Capital Projects Fund 

Total IntetiimdTransfers 

Amounl 
Tmsferred 

$242.472 (A) 
1,925 (A) 

1,706,077 (A) 
1,358,559 (A) 
1,208,419 (B) 
1,453,000 (C) 

9,962 (Dl 
9,962 (Dl 

Housing & Community Development Special Revenue Fund 77,778 (C) 
General Fund 7,731,885 (C) 

The reasons for these transfers are set forth below: 
(A) Reunbursement of costs incurred 
(6) Transfer Park in Lieu Fees for payment related to purchase of McCandless properly 
(C] To find capital pmjects 
(D) Return of unused capltal projects funds 

B. Long-Term InterfrrrrdAdvasees 

On May 6, 2008, the City appmved the purchase of 0.75 million gallons per day wastewater treatment 
capacity at the San JoseISanta Clara Sanitaty District via a purchase from the Cupertino Sanitary District 
(CuSD). The capacity is for build-out of the Transit Area Specific Plan. Funding for this purchase was 
included in the Transit Area Development Impact Fee Program. The Transit Area Impact Fee Capital 
Projects Fund does not have funding available since fees have not yet been collected. Therefore, the 
Redevelopment Project Capital Projects Fund advanced $4,549,161 to the Transit Area Impact Fee Capital 
Projects Fund to cover the payment to CuSD and $200,000 to cover other associated costs. The advances 
are due on April 7, 2029 and bear simple interest of 5% annually. During fiscal year 2011, the 
Redevelopment Project Capital Projects Fund transferred the advance to the Economic Development 
Corporation Special Revenue Fund. At June 30, 2013, the balance of the advance including principal and 
accrued interest was $5,705,487. 
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NOTE 4 - lN'rEKFUNU TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 

During fiscal year 2010 the Redevelopment Project Capital Projects Fund advanced $1,330,000 to the 
Transit Area Development Impact Fee Capital Projects Fund for the preparation costs of the Transit Area 
Specific Plan. The Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund advanced $4,356,000 to the Transit Area Development 
Impact Fee Capital Projects Fund for costs associated with the main sewage pump station improvements in 
the Transit Area. The Transit Area Impact Fee Capital Projects Fund does not have fundmg available since 
fees have not yet been collected. The advances are due on April 7, 2029 and bear simple interest of 5% 
annually. During fiscal year 2011, the Redevelopment Project Capital Projects Fund transferred the 
advance to the Economic Development Corporation Special Revenue Fund. At June 30,2013, the balance 
of the Economic Development Corporation Special Revenue Fund advance including principal and accrued 
interest was $1,596,000 and the balance of the Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund advance including principal 
and accrued interest was $5,227,200. 

During fiscal year 201 1 the Redevelopment Project Capital Projects Fund advanced $2,550,000 to the 
Transit Area Development Impact Fee Capital Projects Fund for the Light Rail Median Landscaping 
Project. The advance is due on August 2,2030 and bear simple interest of 5% annually. During fiscal year 
2011, the Redevelopment Project Capital Projects Fund transferred the advance to the Economic 
Development Corporation Special Revenue Fund. At June 30,2013, the balance of the advance including 
principal and accrued interest was $2,920,623. 

During fiscal year 2012 the Sewer Utility Enterprise Funds advanced $145,000 to the Transit Area 
Development Impact Fee Capital Projects Fund for costs associated with evaluating the existing 
development in the transit area. The advance is due on May 1, 2014 and bears simple interest of 5% 
annually. At June 30, 2013, the balance of the advance including principal and accrued interest was 
$153,442. 

C Infernal Balances 

Internal balances are presented in the entity-wide financial statements only. They represent the net 
interfund receivables and payables remaining after the elimination of all such balances within 
governmental and business-type activities. 
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I NOTE 5 - LOANS RECEIVABLE I 
The City and former Redevelopment Agency entered into the loan programs below to improve the quality of 
housing and to increase the availability of affordable housing, and for other purposes. With the dissolution of 
the Redevelopment Agency as discussed in Note 16, the City agreed to become the successor to the 
Redevelopment Agency's housing activities and as a result the City of Milpitas Housing Authority assumed 
the loans receivable of the Redevelopment Agency's Housing Reserve Special Revenue Fund as of February 
1, 2012. In addition, the General Fund loan to the Redevelopment Project Capital Projects Fund was 
assumed by the Successor Agency to the Milpitas Redevelopment Agency. 

These loans were comprised of the following at June 30,2013: 

Housing and Community Development Loans: 

Rehabilitation Loans 

Housing Authority Loans: 

Milpitas Housing Associates 

Parc Metropolitan Housing Development 

Montague Parkway Associates, LP 

Parc North Associates LLC 

Mid-Peninsula Milpitas Affordable Housing Associates 

KB Home South Bay Inc. 

Western Pacific Housing Inc. 

Shapell Industries 

MIL Aspen Associates, Ltd. 

Successor Agency 

Total Housing Authority Loans Receivable 

General Fund Loan: 

Successor Agency 

Internal Service Fund Loan: 

Terracare Associates 

Total Loans Receivable 

Less: Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 

Net Carrying Value 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

1 NOTE 5 - LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) I 
A. Rehabilitation Loans 

The City administers a housing rehabilitation program using Housing and Community Development Act 
funds. Under the Program, individuals with incomes below a certain level are eligible to receive low or no 
interest loans, secured by deeds of trust, for construction work on their homes. At June 30,2013 the City 
had outstanding rehabilitation loans of $3,458,537 in its Housing and Community Development Special 
Revenue Fund. During the year ended June 30,2013, the City received $47,331 from all participants, and 
made new loans totaling $214,972. 

B. Milpitas Housing Associates Loan 

In fiscal 1997, the former Redevelopment Agency loaned the Milpitas Housing Associates, a partnership of 
Bridge Housing and a developer, $3,000,000 to assist in the financing of the conshvction of a 306 unit 
apartment complex. Fifty percent of the units were made available to very low and low income tenants. 
The Loan bears interest at the rate of 5.45% per year, compounded annually and is repayable in 2040, 
subject to certain conditions. The loan is secured by a subordinated deed of trust in the third position on 
the property. During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Housing Authority received a payment of 
$262,022. As of June 30,2013, principal and accrued interest totaled $4,418,211, 

C. Parc Metropolitan Housing Development Loans 

The Housing Authority provides loans to eligible low-income families for the purchase of townhome units 
at the Parc Metropolitan Housing Development. During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Housing 
Authority received principal payments of $88,667 and as of June 30,2013, there were $125,007 in loans 
outstanding. 

D. Montague Parkway Associates, LP 

The former Redevelopment Agency loaned the Montague Parkway Associates, LP, a California limited 
partnership, $1,193,580 in fiscal 2001 to develop 464 units of rental multi-family housing. Ninety-four of 
the units were made available to low income households. The loan bears interest at the rate of 3.00% per 
year, compounded annually. The principal and all accrued interest are due and payable in 203 1. For the 
frst  five years, only interest is due and payable; principal payments commence on the sixth year and 
continue for the remainder of the term. The loan is secured by a third deed of trust on the property. 
Principal of $39,137 was paid in fiscal 2013, and as of June 30, 2013, the outstanding balance totaled 
$941,164. 

E. Parc North Associates LLCLoan 

In September 2003, the former Redevelopment Agency entered into an Owner Participation Agreement 
with Parc North Associates LLC for the development of 285 town homes and condominiums. Eighteen of 
the units were made available to very low income households, six of the units were made available to low 
income households, and thirty-four units were made available to moderate income households. In 
exchange, the Agency provided a grant of $1,823,480 to the Developer for permits, fees, and infrastructure, 
along with silent-second loans to eligible low-income families for the purchase of these town homes and 
condominium. Interest of 5% begins on the 61* month after the recordation of the deeds of trust and 
continues until the loans are paid in full. As of June 30, 2013, there were $1,320,134 of such loans 
outstanding. 
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NOTE 5 - LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 

F. Mid-Peninsula Milpitas Affordable Housing Associates 

In December 2005, the former Redevelopment Agency entered into a Disposition and Development 
Agreement with Mid Peninsula Milpitas Affordable Housing Associates for the development of a 103-unit 
senior housing project with long-term affordability to extremely low and very low income seniors. Under 
the terms of the Agreement, the Agency provided a grant of $1 million to the Developer and will provide a 
development loan up to $14.6 million to the Developer. No interest is accrued on the fust $5 million of 
loan proceeds. The remaining $9.6 million bears simple interest of 3.00% annually. Repayment of interest 
and principal is payable from surplus operating cash subject to certain conditions as defmed in the 
Agreement, and unpaid principal and accrued interest is due in December 2062. The loan is secured by a 
second deed of trust on the property. Construction began in fiscal year 2006 and was completed in 
December 2008. During fiscal year 2013, interest of $288,000 was accrued, and as of June 30, 2013, 
principal and accrued interest outstanding totaled $15,856,090. 

G. I03 Home South Bay Znc. Loans 

In January 2005, the former Redevelopment Agency entered into a Disposition and Development 
Agreement with KB Home South Bay Inc. for the development of a public park and approximately 700 
housing units on the two parcels (Parcels C and D). In addition, the former Redevelopment Agency would 
provide a total of $4,250,000 of silent-second mortgages to eighty-five moderate income households on 
Parcel C, approximately $5,000,000 of subsidies to twenty-five moderate income households on Parcel D. 
The silent-second mortgages are not due for 45 years or upon the sale, renting or leasing of the property. 
Interest begins on the 37' month after the recordation of the Deed of Trust and continues until the loans are 
paid in full. 

Due to changes in the housing market and stricter lending requirements which had created unforeseen 
challenges in finding qualified buyers for the affordable units, the former Redevelopment Agency amended 
the Agreement in February 2009 to establish an in-lieu housing payment of $1,702,000 to remove the 
affordable restrictions on 46 of the 67 remaining unsold affordable units (537,000 for each unit). This 
amount was paid in equal parts to the Agency and to the County. In addition, the commitment for silent- 
second mortgages was reduced $2,300,000 to $1,950,000, and the total number of affordable units was 
reduced from 110 to 64. 

As of June 30,2013, there were $1,700,000 of loans to Parcel C households outstanding. As of June 30,2013 
subsidies totaling $4,707,542 had been provided. 

H. Western Pacipc Housing Znc., Loans 

In August 2005, the former Redevelopment Agency entered into an Owner Participation Agreement with 
Fairfield Development, LLC for the development of a 464- unit residential apartment project called Centria, 
of which 93 units will be deed-restricted for very low- to moderate- income households. In November 2005, 
the project was purchased by Western Pacific Housing Inc. and obligations of the Owner Participation 
Agreement were assigned to Western Pacific Housing Inc. The former Redevelopment Agency will provide 
a grant of $379,480 for permits, fees, and infrastructure. The former Redevelopment Agency also will 
provide a total of $770,000 for silent-second down payment assistance loans for the 22 very-low income units. 
The loans are not due for 25 years or upon the sale, renting or leasing of the property. Interest will begin 
on the 61'' month after the recordation of the Deed of Trust and continues until the loans are paid in full. 
As of June 30,2013, there were $644,126 such loans outstanding. 
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1 NOTE 5 - LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 

In August 2008 the Owner Participation Agreement was amended to reduce the number of units to be 
constntcted by Western Pacific Housing Inc. to 137 and provide for the conversion of 7 of the moderate 
income units to low income units. In addition, in August 2008 the 327 unconstructed units of the project were 
sold to Lyon Milpitas LLC and the Agency entered into a new Owner Participation Agreement with Lyon 
Milpitas LLC to complete the construction of the affordable housing units. 

In September 2006, the former Redevelopment Agency entered into an Owner Participation Agreement 
with Western Pacific Housing, Inc. for the development of a 147-unit townhome project called Paragon 
that includes nine units deed-restricted to very low income residents and twenty units deed-restricted to 
moderate income residents. The Agency will provide silent-second loans of $133,333 to each of the very 
low income households. Interest will begin on the date of the promissory note, but will be forgiven on the 
fourth anniversruy of the date the Deed of Trust recorded at a rate of 20% per year, and principal is due 45 
years from the date the Deed of Trust was recorded. As of June 30,2013, there were $1,197,000 of silent 
second loans outstanding. 

I.  Slf apell Industries 

In June 2004, the former Redevelopment Agency entered into an Agreement with Shape11 Industries of 
Northern California for the development of a 65-unit townhorne development, which will include twenty 
deed-restricted affordable housing units for very low- and moderate-income units. In August 2005 the 
Agency entered into an Owner Participation Agreement with the Developer that, in exchange for the 
development of housing units, the Agency will provide a total of $800,000 silent-second mortgages to 
sixteen moderate-income households. In addition, under the terms of the Agreement, the Agency assisted in 
the rehabilitation of four existing very low-income units in fiscal 2006. Interest will begin on the date of 
the promissory note, but will be forgiven on the fourth anniversary of the date the Deed of Trust recorded 
at a rate of 20% per year, and principal is due 45 years from the date the Deed of Trust was recorded. As of 
June 30,2013, there were $800,000 of silent second loans outstanding. 

A MIL Aspen Associates, Ltd 

In April 2007, the former Redevelopment Agency entered into an Owner Participation Agreement with 
MIL Aspen Associates, Ltd. for the development of a 101-unit multi-family project, of which 100 units will 
be deed-restricted for very low-income households. Under the terms of the Agreement, during fiscal year 
2011 the Agency provided a $2,300,000 loan to the Developer. The loan bears 5% interest compounded 
annually on outstanding principal balance, and is repayable in April 17, 2037. Upon June 1 of the year 
following the issuance of the final certificate of occupancy of the project and the first day of the each June 
during the term of the loan, the Developer shall pay 50% of Surplus Cash generated by the Project, as 
defined in the Agreement, during the previous calendar year. During the year ended June 30, 2013, the 
Housing Authority received a payment of $70,138. As of June 30, 2013, principal and accrued interest 
totaled $2,615,483. 
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I NOTE 5 - LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) I 
K Successor Agency Loans 

On September 7,2004, the former Redevelopment Agency entered into an Agreement with the City for the 
purchase of eight parcels of land which are located in the Project Area. However, the terms of the purchase 
were not finalized until August 21, 2007 under the First Amendment to Agreement of Purchase and Sale. 
Under the terms of the Amended Agreement, the purchase price of the parcels was $20,455,191. The 
advance from the General Fund to the Redevelopment Project Capital Projects Fund was due on September 
7, 2044 and bore simple interest of 10% annually. The balance of the advance, including principal and 
accrued interest, was $21,670,757 as of January 31, 2012. This loan had previously been reported as an 
interfund advance. However, with the transfer of the associated liability to the Successor Agency, repayment 
of the loan is based upon whether the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency receives a Finding of 
Completion from the State as discussed in Note 16. In addition, the interest rate on the loan is limited to the 
Local Agenoy Investment Fund interest rate calculated from the inception of the loan. Therefore the loan 
balance was adjusted in fiscal year 2012 to reflect the revised interest rate and is offset with unavailable 
revenue in the General Fund. The balance of the loan as of June 30, 2013 is $9,472,571, which has been 
offset by an allowance for doubtful accounts in the Statement of Net Position. 

During fiscal year 2011 the Housing Reserve Special Revenue Fund advanced $6,800,000 to the 
Redevelopment Project Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a land parcel. The advance was due on 
April 17,2037 and bore simple interest of 5% annually. The balance of the advance, including principal and 
accrued interest, was $7,094,356 as of January 31, 2012. The loan had previously been reported as an 
interfimd advance. However, with the transfer of the housing assets to the Housing Authority Special 
Revenue Fund and the associated liability to the Successor Agency, repayment of the loan is based upon 
whether the Successor Agencyto the Redevelopment Agency receives a Finding of Completion from the State 
as discussed in Note 16. In addition, the interest rate on the loan is limited to the Local Agency Investment 
Fund interest rate calculated from the inception of the loan and the loan balance was adjusted in fiscal year 
2012 to reflect the revised interest rate. However, this loan was not deemed an enforceable obligation by the 
State Department of Finance, therefore the City is unable to determine whether it is collectible from the 
Successor Agency and has been offset with an allowance for doubtful accounts. The balance of the loan as of 
June 30.2013 is $6,874,647. 

In June 2012, the City entered into Contract, Promissory Note and Security Agreement with Terracare 
Associates, for Parks and Maintenance Service and the net negotiated value of the motor vehicles, trailers and 
equipment was $84,565; this amount is being financed by the City. Terracare and Associates' financing bears 
no interest and is payable in equal monthly installments of $3,524, over a twenty-four month period over the 
f ~ s t  two years of the Parks Maintenance Contract in the fom of credit deductions from the monthly invoices 
to the City for parks and maintenance services. As of June 30,2013, the principal outstanding was $42,283. 

6 - PROPERTY HELD FORRESALE OR REDEVELOPMENT I 
The former Redevelopment Agency had purchased parcels of land as part of its efforts to develop or 
redevelop blighted properties within the Redevelopment areas. Such land parcels are accounted for at the 
lower of cost or net realizable value or agreed-upon sales price if a disposition agreement has been made 
with a developer. The City agreed to become the successor to the Redevelopment Agency's housing 
activities and as a result the City of Milpitas Housing Authority assumed the property held for resale of the 
Redevelopment Agency's Housing Reserve Fund as of February 1,2012. 
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1 NOTE 6 - PROPERTY HELD FOR RESALE OR REDEVELOPMENT (Continued) I 
In fiscal year 2010 the Agency purchased five housing units for $1,503,718 in the Parc Metro Subdivision. 
During fiscal year 201 1, the Agency purchased one additional Parc Metro Subdivision unit for $305,095, 
one Centria Subdivision housing unit for $248,056, and four KE? Home Subdivision housing units for 
$1,273,892. One of the KE? Home Subdivision units with a book value of $374,253 was sold in August 
2011. Two of the KE? Home Subdivision units with a book value of $376,795 and $294,921 were sold in 
December 2012 and February 2013, respectively. Four of the Parc Metro Subdivision units were sold in 
fiscal year 2013, with a total book value of $1,245,559. The units were purchased in order to retain them 
as affordable housing units and are being held for future resale. Four of the units are rented to tenants. 

In November 2009 the Agency purchased property along South Main Street in the amount of $12,443,137, 
which is intended to be sold to a developer for development of senior housing with low income housing 
units. In March 2012, the Economic Development Corporation purchased two additional privately held 
properties along South Main Street in the amount of $4,200,000 pursuant to the two year extension to the 
Disposition and Development Agreement with the South Main Senior Lifestyles, LLC, as discussed in 
Note 7B below, and subsequently transferred the properties to the Housing Authority. 

In February 2011, the Agency purchased additional property along South Main Street in the amount of 
$1,800,000 which is intended to be incorporated into the Midtown Specific Plan for housing development. 
The purchase of this property had been funded by a loan from the Housing Reserve Special Revenue Fund 
to the Redevelopment Capital Projects Fund, and with the dissolution of the Agency as of February 1, 
2012, the State Department of Finance approved the property as a housing asset and the property was 
transferred to the Housing Authority as the successor housing agency. 

As of June 30,2013, property totaling $19,482,370, is being held by the Housing Authority. 

NOTE 7 - DEVELOPMENT AND TAX SRARING AGREEMENTS 

The City and former Redevelopment Agency have entered into the development agreements below in an effort 
to provide incentives to develop new businesses, new tax revenues and affordable housing. 

A. The Crossing at Montague 

In November 1999, the City approved the development of a 468 unit apartment complex, known as the 
Crossing at Montague Project (Project). As part of the conditions of approval, the developer of the Project 
is required to restrict 20% (94 units) of the units to very low income households. On behalf of the 
developer, the City issued $45,000,000 in tax exempt bonds and $15,000,000 in taxable bonds in June 
2000. As of June 30, 2013, the outstanding principal of the debt was $52,000,000. The debt service 
payments on these bonds are solely the responsibility of the developer. 
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NOTE 7 - DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENTS (Continued) 

B. Soutt~ Main Senior Lifes@Ies, LLC. 

In August 2009, the former Redevelopment Agency entered into a Disposition and Development 
Agreement with the South Main Senior Lifestyles, LLC (SMSL) to develop 180 units of "Continuum of 
Care Senior Housing" (Phase 1 Parcel), of which 63 units will be for very low and low income households, 
and 207 units of family housing (Phase 2 Parcel) which will be market rate units. In accordance with the 
terms of the Agreement, the Agency will acquire the properties and resell them in two phases to the 
developer prior to construction, subject to certain conditions in the Agreement. The sales price for the 
Phase 1 Parcel will be $5,022,129, and the sales price for the Phase 2 Parcel will equal the greater of the 
fair market value of the Phase 2 Parcel as defined in the Agreement or $7,377,871. In addition, the 
Agency's Housing Reserve Special Revenue Fund will provide a grant in the amount of $7.7 million to 
support the development and operation of the Phase 1 Parcel project. As of June 30,2010, the Agency had 
acquired the properties as discussed in Note 6 above, but had not resold the parcels to the developer. 

In March 201 1, the Economic Development Corporation assumed the obligations of the Disposition and 
Development Agreement and on October 18,201 1, atwo year extension to the Agreement was approved to 
include a more extensive high density residential development plan of sixty-three residential units available 
at affordable housing cost to income-qualified very low and low income households and combine two 
additional privately held properties and the Housing Authority owned property at 1440 South Main Street 
with the SMSL development site. During fiscal year 2012, the Economic Development Corporation 
acquired the properties and transferred them to the Housing Authority as discussed in Note 6 above, but the 
properties have not been resold to the developer and as of June 30,2013, the Corporation had not expended 
any funds on the grant. 

C. D.R Horton Bay, Inc 

In November 2012, the City entered into an Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement with D.R. Horton 
Bay, Inc., which requires the developer to pay Transit Area Specific Plan (TASP) and park in lieu 
developer impact fees of $8,007,3 12 to defray all or a portion of the costs of sewer facilities and to mitigate 
other impacts of the Harmony Project. Under the terms of the Agreement, D.R. Horton will receive fee 
credits totaling $7,316,605 for impact fees, including park fee credits, and will be reimbursed $914,405 for 
the cost of improvements to the Sewer Lines IlN11B. As of June 30,2013, the City had not reimbursed 
any funds to D.R. Horton, and no fee credits had been issued. 

D. iU,A-Tencor Corporation 

In June 2009, the City entered into a Sales Tax Sharing Agreement with KLA-Tencor Corporation m A ) .  
Under the terms of the Agreement, the City agreed to pay KLA 50% of the calendar year sales and use tax 
revenues paid by KLA and collected by the State Board of Equalization for the City that exceed the tax 
base. The tax base is defmed in the Agreement as the average amount of annual sales tax increment 
received by the City from KLA for calendar years 2006, 2007 and 2008. The agreement terminates in 
2025. The City paid $175,539 of sales tax to KLA duringfiscal year 2013. 
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All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not 
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date contributed. 
The City's policy is to capitalie all assets with costs exceeding certain minimum thresholds and with 
useful lives exceeding two years. 

The City has recorded all its public domain (infrastructure) capital assets, which include landscape, storm, 
street, and traffic systems. 

All capital assets with limited useful lives are required to be depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 
The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life of 
these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year's pro rata share of 
the cost of capital assets. Depreciation of all capital assets is charged as an expense against operations 
each year and the total amount of depreciation taken over the years is reported on the statement of net 
position as a reduction in the book value of capital assets. 

Depreciation is provided using the straight line method which means the cost of the asset is divided by its 
expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense each year until the asset is fully 
depreciated. The general capitalization threshold is $5,000. The City has assigned the useful lives below 
to capital assets: 

Useful Lives 

Buildings and improvements 
Other improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Landscape system 
Storm system 
Street system 
Traffic system 
Water system 
Sewer system 
Capacity rights 

Years 
30 

Terrace Gardens, Inc, has assigned the following useful lives to its capital assets: Buildings, 50 years; 
Building improvements, 10-50 years; and Equipment, 5-7 years. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest 
incurred during the construction phase is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of 
interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
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)NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

A. Governmental Capital Asset Additions, Retirements and Balances 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Bulldings and improvements 

Other improvements 

Machinery and equipment 

Landscape system 

Storm system 
Street system 

Traftic system 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 

Other improvements 

Machinery and equipment 

Landscape system 

Storm system 

Street system 

Traftic system 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Net capital assets being depreciated 

Governmental activity capital assets, net 

Balance at Balance at 
June 30,2012 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30,2013 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
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I NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) I 
Governmental activities construction in progress comprised the following at June 30,2013: 

Project 

Midtown Parking Garage East 
Library Project 
Senior Center 
City Building Improvements 
Storm Pump Station Improvements 
Soundwall Renovation 
Department of Energy - Grant Project 
Street Light Pole Improvement 
Abel Street Transit Connection 
Library Design 
City Building Improvements 
Deparhent of Energy - Grant Project 
Street Light Pole Improvements 
City Hall AV Equipment 
Library Project 
City Building Improvements 
Alviso Adobe Renovations 
Park irrigation System Rehabilitation 
Park Renovation Project 
Main Street Park 
Deparhnent of Energy - Grant Project 
Park Renovation Project 
Pinewood Park Picnic Renovation 
2009 Finance System Upgrade 
McCarthy Blvd Landscape 
Fire Station Improvements 
City Building Improvements 
Midtown Parking Garage 
Storm Drain System 
Fuel Tank Improvements 
Minor Storm Drain Project 
Storm Pump Station Improvements 
Transit Area Stom Drive 
Light Rail Median Lane 
Second SCVWD WaterReservoir & Pump Station 

Total construction in progress 

Total 
Budget 

$140,688 
90,154 
6,126 

473,000 
846 

59,521 
32,732 
18,491 

600,000 
23,556 
10,681 
8,545 

56,509 
1,500,000 

400,000 
200,000 

5,594,272 
400,000 
277,778 
350,000 
63,786 

400,000 
350,000 
125,000 
200,000 

1,500,000 
200,000 
113,804 
700,000 
188,000 
216,729 
28,590 

150,000 
6,005,000 

200,000 

$20,683,808 

Actual 
Expenditures 

$140,688 
90,154 
6,126 

473,000 
846 

59,521 
32,732 

Unexpended 
Budget 
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I NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

B. Business-Type CapifalAsset Additions, Refirements andBalances 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Distribution facilities 

Service lines 

Sewer lines 

Capacity rights 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Distribution facilities 

Service lines 

Sewer lines 

Capacity rights 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Net capital assets being depreciated 

Business-type activity capital assets, net 

Balance at Balance at 
June 30,2012 Additions Transfers June30,2013 
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I NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 

Business-type activities construction in progress comprised the following at June 30,2013: 

Project 

Main SPS Site Improvements 
Minor Sewer Projects 
Sewer System Replacement 1 
Sewer System Replacement 
TASP Sewer Line Replacement 
Pressure Reducing Valve Replacement 
Well Upgrade Program 
South Milpitas Water Line Replacement 
Waier System Seismic Improvements 
Gibraltar Reservoir & Pump Station 
Ayer Reservoir & Pump Station Improvements 
Water System Replacement 08-09 
Hydrant Replacement 
Minor Water Projects 
Reservoir Cleaning 
Turnout Improvements 
Water Meter Replacement 
Cathodic Protection I 
Minor Water Projects 

Total construction in progress 

Total 
Budget 

$2,302,000 
35,000 

1,500,000 
1,500,000 
5,000,000 

320,000 
4,645,000 
3,565,000 
6,187,951 
9,025,000 
1,050,000 

700,000 
170,000 
95,000 

150,000 
150,000 
75,000 

375,000 

Actual 
Expenditures 

$2,146,998 

Unexpended 
Budget 

$155,002 
35,000 

1,461,213 
1,499,473 
5,000,000 

280,221 
2,887,349 

16,468 
5,567,978 

286,525 
391,486 
585,110 
169,379 
94,998 

150,000 
150,000 
69,100 

337,176 
150,000 

$19,286,478 
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I NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) I 
C T e m e  Gmdens,hc's CapiaIAmeIs 

The following is a summary of Terrace Gardens Inc's changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended 
June 30,2013: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land 
Construction in Progress 

Total capital Bssets not being depreciated 

Capifal assets being depreciated: 

Buildings 

Furniture 
Otfice equipment 

Improvements 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Net capital assets being depreciated 

Total capital assets, net 

Balance Balance 
December 31,2011 Additions December 31,2012 

$1,565,277 $1,565,277 
$17,132 17,132 

1,565,277 17,132 1,582,409 

11,440,038 90,641 11,530,679 

198.413 9,674 208,087 

65,096 65,096 

1,938,849 203,439 2,142,288 

13,642,396 303,754 13,946,150 

(5,901,634) (365,553) (6,267,187) 

7,740,762 (61,799) 7,678,963 

$9,306,039 ($44.667) $9,261,372 

D. Depreciation Allocation 

Depreciation expense is charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the related assets. The 
amounts allocated to each function or program are as follows: 

Governmental Activities 
General Government $3,061,394 
Public Works 8,487,713 
Parks and Recreation 809,599 
Police 843,336 
Fire 358,573 
hternal Service Fund 811,620 

Total Governmental Activities $14,372,235 

Business-Type Activities 
Wafer Utility $1,405,229 
Sewer Utility 2;170,707 

Total Business-Type Activities $4,175,936 

Discrete& P r m t e d  Compo#~ent Unit: 

Terrace Gardens, Ino. 
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I NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) I 
E. Sewer Treatment Capacity Riglrfs 

The City has a contract with the San JoseISanta Clara Wastewater Treatment Plant, known as the Water 
Pollution Control Plant (WPCP), which gives Milpitas and other tributary agencies rights to a percentage 
of the capacity of their sewage treatment facilities. The contract terminates in 203 1 and requires the City 
to pay its share of operations, capital expenses and debt service on the heatment plant. The City also pays 
capital costs based on allocated flow capacity rights of 14.25 million gallons per day or about 7.638% of 
the total plant capacity. The City has capitalized its share in the amount of $22,718,180. The operation 
and maintenance costs are calculated based upon actual sewage flow and strengths. In fiscal year 2013 the 
City's operation and maintenance share was approximately 5.99% of the total WPCP operations. 

Under a plan approved by the Regional Water Resources Control Board, the City is responsible for 
approximately 8.1% of the costs to be incurred by the WPCP to mitigate damage to an endangered species 
habitat. Approved in 1995, the South Bay Water Recycling Program (SBWRP) consisted of constructing a 
water recycling distribution system that would reduce the volume of wastewater discharged into the San 
Francisco Bay by the treatment plant. This Program was estimated to cost a total of $140 million for Phase 
I and $100 million for Phase II, of which the City's share will approximate 8.1%. At June 30,2007, Phase 
I and Phase I1 construction for Milpitas' infrastructure was completed and the City capitalized its' share of 
the Program in the amount of $14,618,561. 

During fiscal year 2010, the City also purchased 0.75 million gallons per day of wastewater treatment 
capacity from the Cupertino Sanitary District in the amount of $4,549,161. The capacity is for build-out of 
the Transit Area Specific Plan. Funding for this purchase was included in the Transit Area Development 
Impact Fee Program. 

I NOTE 9 -LONG TERM DEBT I 
The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful lives 
equal to or greater than the related debt. 

A. Current Year Trnnsactions andBaInnces 

The City's debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed io detail thereafter. 

Governments1 Activity Debt: 

Purchase Agreement 
with Mission West Properties 
036, dueFebruary 15,2016 

Cisco Phone System Capital Lease 
0.62036, due September 18,2016 

Totsl Governmental Activity Debt 

Original Balance Balanec Current 
issue Amount June 30,2012 Addit~ons Retiremenis June 30,2013 Portion 

Business-type Activity Debt: 
Sewer CerMicates of Partidpation, 2006 Series A 

3 4% -4 20%. due November 1,2026 $9,535,000 $7,71Oa0O0 $395,000 $7,315,000 $405.WO 

Total Businewlype Activity Debt 
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I NOTE 9 - LONG TERM DEBT (Continued) ( 

B. Mission Wesf Purchase Agreement 

In February 2011, the former Redevelopment Agency entered into an Agreement with Mission West 
Properties to purchase 10.89 acres of land in three parcels for $21,780,000 in the Milpitas Redevelopment 
Project Area No. 1 to be used as open space. The Agency assigned the Agreement to the Economic 
Development Corporation in March 201 1. A down payment of $3 million was due on or before December 
3 1,201 1. The remaining balance does not bear interest and is due in four annual installments of $3 million 
and one final installment. The purchase is to be funded by park in lieu fees collected by the City on certain 
land parcels as specified in the Agreement. The City agrees to transfer the park in lieu fees to the 
Corporation as they are collected and the Corporation agrees to pay the same amount to the seller in 
addition to the annual installments to reduce the outstanding balance of the purchase price. The fifth 
installment payment is contingent upon the City's receipt of the park in-lieu fees. On the fifth anniversary 
of the effective date of the Agreement, if the City has not received any park in lieu fees from one of the 
parcels, the Corporation is to pay $3 million. However, if on the fifth anniversary the City has not received 
any park in lieu fees from two of the parcels, the Corporation need not pay the remaining balance of $3.78 
million until the City collects and transfers the park in lieu fees to the Corporation. In August 2012, 
$1,208,419 in park in-lieu fees were received and paid to Mission West Properties. 

C. Cisco Phone System Capital Lease 

In September 2012, the City entered into a purchase agreement in the amount of $480,302 at 0.62% interest 
with Key Government Finance, Inc. to finance the purchase and installation of the City's phone system. 
Principal and interest payments of $97,252 are due each September 18 through 2016. 

D. Sewer Certijicates of Participation, 2006 Series A 

On December 1, 2006, the Milpitas Public Financing Authority issued Certificates of Participation, 2006 
Series A (Sewer COPs), in the original principal amount of $9,535,000 to fmance certain sewer facilities 
within the City. The Sewer COPs are collateralized by net revenues from the City's Sewer System 
Installment Sale Agreement. For fiscal year 2013, net revenues amounted to $6,428,946, which 
represented coverage of 9.35 over the $687,966 of debt service. In lieu of a reserve fund, the COPs are 
secured by a $695,758 surety bond issued by the MBIA Insurance Corporation. Principal is payable 
annually and interest is payable semi-annually through 2027. 

E. Debt Service Requirements 

Annual debt service requirements are shown below: 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 

Year Ending Total Total Total Total 
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2014 $3,085,686 $11,566 $405,000 $278,965 
2015 3,088,442 8,810 420,000 264,528 
2016 3,919,750 5,966 435,000 249,348 
2017 94,222 3,030 450,000 233,193 
2018 470,000 216,055 

2019 - 2023 2,625,000 789,597 
2024 - 2027 2,510,000 215,102 

$10,188,100 $29,372 $7,3 15,000 $2,246,788 

67 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

I NOTE 9 -LONG TERM DEBT (Continued) I 
F. Defeased Bonk 

As of June 30, 2013, outstanding balances for defeased debt were $22,505,000 for the Redevelopment 
Agency 1997 Tax Allocation Bonds and $1,645,000 for the Sales TaxRevenue Bonds, Series 2000. 

I NOTE 10 -NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES 1 
Governmental fund balances represent the net current assets of each fund. Net current assets generally 
represent a fund's cash, receivables and deferred outflows of resources, less its liabilities and deferred inflows 
of resources. Portions of a fund's balance may be restricted, committed or assigned for future expenditure. 

Net Position is measured on the full accrual basis while Fund Balance is measured on the modified accrual 
basis, as explained in Note 1D. 

A. Net Position 

Net Position is the excess of all assets and deferred outflows of resources over all liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources. Net Position is divided into three captions. These captions apply only to Net 
Position, which is determined only for proprietary funds and at the Government-wide level, and are 
described below: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets and Capacify Rights, describes the portion of Net Position which is 
represented by the current net book value of the City's capital assets and capacity rights, less the outstanding 
balance of any debt issued to finance these assets. Net investment in Capital Assets and Capacity Rights for 
the Governmental Activities is calculated as follows: 

Total capital assets and capacity rights $227,190,287 
Total outstanding debt (10,188,100) 

Net Investment in Capital Assets $217,002,187 

Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions of 
agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions which the City cannot 
unilaterally alter. These principally include developer fees received for use on capital projects and 
redevelopment funds restTicted for community development activities. 

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Position which is not restricted as to use. 
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WE 10 - NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (Continued) I 

Governmental fund balances represent the net current assets of each fund. Net current assets generally 
represent a fund's cash, receivables and deferred oufflows of resources, less its liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources. 

The City's fund balances are classified based on spending constraints imposed on the use of resources. For 
programs with multiple funding sources, the City prioritizes and expends funds in the following order: 
Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. Each category in the following hierarchy is ranked 
according to the degree of spending constraint: 

Nonspendable represents balances set aside to indicate items do not represent available, spendable 
resources even though they are a component of assets. Assets not expected to be converted to cash, such as 
prepaids, notes receivable, and property held for resale are included. However, if proceeds realized £rom 
the sale or collection of nonspendable assets are restricted, committed or assigned, then nonspendable 
amounts are required to be presented as a component of the applicable category. 

Restricted fund balances have external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, 
regulations, or enabling legislation which requires the resources to be used only for a specific purpose. 
Encumbrances and nonspendable amounts subject to restrictions are included along with spendable 
resources. 

Committed fund balances have constraints imposed by resolution of the City Council which may be altered 
only by formal action of the City Council. Encumbrances and nonspendable amounts subject to council 
commitments are included along with spendable resources. 

Assigned fund balances are amounts constrained by the City's intent to be used for a specific purpose, but 
are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed by the City Council or its designee and may be 
changed at the discretion of the City Council or its designee, the Finance Director. This category includes: 
encumbrances; nonspendables, when it is the City's intent to use proceeds or colIections for a specific 
purpose; and residual fund balances, if any, of Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds 
which have not been restricted or committed. 

Unassigned fund balance represents residual amounts that have not been restricted, committed, or assigned. 
This includes the residual General Fund balance and residual fund deficits, if any, of other governmental 
funds. 
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I NOTE 10 -NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCES (Continued) I 
Detailed classifications of the City's Fund Balances, as of June 30,2013, are below: 

Fund Balance Clarsifiestiolu 

Nompendable: 
P~cpids, matoials, supplier 

and deposits 

Subtots1 Nonspendeble 

Restricted far: 
Redevelopmem Projects and h o p m  
Sheet andRosd Impnrvemnts 

and MakUmmce 
Houing and commuoify devclopmnt 
Law &xement sewiter 
Solid lvsste redmion and services 
ASsssrment dis6ict services 
Helch-Helchy@omd lease 
P a k  improvement projcots 
Storm drain projects 

Subtotal Reshieted 

Committed to: 
PERS stabilization 

Assigned to: 
Uninsmd claim payable 
Sales and use axes 
Public mi  projects 
Other canmcts 
General government capital pmje* 

Subtotal Assigned 

Unassigoed: 
GeneralFund 
Other governmental fund deecit residuals 

SobtatalUna~signed 

Total f w d  bstancrr (deficit) 

Major Major 

Specla1 Revrnuc Funds CapiblProjecb 
E~onomlc Sheet Trsluil Area Other 

General Development Homing Improvement ImpactFee Gavemental  
Fund Corporatlan Authority Fund Fond Funds Total 
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I N0.L.E LO - M:T POSI'I'ION AND FIJND BALANCES (Continued) I 
C. Minimtml FtandBalmtce Policies 

The City's Budget Guidelines and Fiscal Policies require the City to strive to maintain the following fund 
balances: 

1) 15% of the annual operating expenditures in the General Fund's Unassigned Fund Balance for 
emergencies and unforeseen operating or capital needs. 

2) Maintain a $5 million PubIic Employees Retirement Rate Stabilization Reserve in the General Fund. 
This reserve may be drawn on if the required employee contribution rates exceed previous year's 
contribution rates by more than 3% of payroll. The City Council must approve utilization of this 
reserve at the time of the budget hearing. This reserve will be replenished from unassigned fund 
balance after the 15% requirement of the operating expenditures has been met. 

3) Maintain a Storm Drain replacement reserve to replace and repair storm drain pump stations. The City 
will endeavor to set-aside $500,000 annually from the General Fund reserve for this purpose. 

4) Other reserves designated in the General Fund for investment portfolio market gain and uninsured 
claims payable will be calculated and adjusted annually at appropriate levels. 

5) Maintain working capital in the Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise Funds to provide for future capital 
projects and unanticipated emergencies, such as water main break repairs and pump station repairs. 
The City will attempt to maintain a working capital reserve of approximately 30% and 25% of the 
annual operating and maintenance expenses in the Water Utility Fund and Sewer Utility Fund, 
respectively. 

6) Maintain $2 million infrastructure replacement funds in both the Water and Sewer Utility Enterprise 
Funds. The goal is to accumulate at least $2 million a year from each utility fund to set-aside for 
replacement of infrastructure as the infrastructure reaches the end of its useful life. 

7) Maintain at least $300,000 in the Recycled Water Utility Enterprise Fund (a component of the Water 
Utility Enterprise Fund) for the purpose of infrastructure replacement and enhancement. 

8) Maintain a capital reserve in the Equipment Management Internal Service Fund to enable the timely 
replacement of vehicles and depreciable equipment as cost. The City will maintain a minimum fund 
balance of at least 30% of the replacement costs for equipment accounted for in this fund. 

9) Maintain a capital reserve for technological equipment replacement and will endeavor to set-aside an 
annual amount of $300,000 in the Equipment Management Internal Service Fund. 

The Transit Area Impact Fee Capital Projects Fund had deficit fund balance of $12,954,651. The deficit 
will be elimmated by future revenues. 
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( NOTE 11 - PERS PENSION PLAN 

A. CALPERSSafely and Miscellnr2eorcs Enrployees Plms 

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in pension plans offered by 
California Public Employees Retirement System (CALPERS), an agent multiple employer defined benefit 
pension plan which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member 
employers. CALPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of Iiving adjustments and 
death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. The City's etnployees 
participate in the separate Safety (police and fire) and Miscellaneous (all other) Employee Plans. Benefit 
provisions under both Plans are established by State statute and City resolution. Benefits are based on 
years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Funding contributions for both Plans 
are determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CALPERS; the City must contribute these 
amounts. The Plans' provisions and benefits in effect at June 30,2013, are summarized as follows: 

Hire Date 
Benefit vesting schedule 
Benefit payment 
Retirement Age (range) 
Monthly benefits, as a %  of annual salary 
Required employee contribution rates 
Required employer contribution rates 

Actuarially required contributions 

Hire Date 
Benefit vesting schedule 
Benefit payment 
Retirement Age (range) 
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 
Required employee contribution rates 
Required employer contribution rates 

Actuarially required contributions 

Safely 

Prior to April 8,2012 After April 8,2012 AAer January 1, 2013 
5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 

monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life 
50 50 - 55 57 

3% 2.4 - 3% 2.7% 
9% 9% 1 1.25% 

30.175% 30.175% 30.175% 

Safety 

$5,578,503 

Miscellaneous 

Prior to October 9,201 1 M e r  October 9,201 1 AAer January 1,2013 
5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 

monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life 
50 - 55 55 - 60 62 

2.0 - 2.7% 1.092 - 2% 2% 
8% 7% 6.25% 

19.769% 19.769% 19.769% 

Miscellaneous 

$2,968,004 
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1 NOTE 11 - PERS PENSION PLAN (Continued) I 
CALPERS determines contribution requirements using a modification of the Entry Age Normal Cost 
Method. Under this method, the City's total normal benefit cost for each employee from date of hire to date 
of retirement is expressed as a level percentage of the related total payroll cost. Normal benefit cost under 
this method is the level amount the City must pay annually to fund an employee's projected retirement 
benefit. This level percentage of payroll method is used to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities. The 
actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements are also used to compute the actuarial 
accrued liabilities, The City uses the actuarially determined percentages of payroll to calculate and pay 
contributions to CALPERS. This results in no net pension obligations or unpaid contributions. Annual 
Pension Costs, representing the payment of all contributions required by CALPERS, for the last three fiscal 
years were as follows: 

Annual Percentage Net 
Fiscal Year Pension of APC Pension 

Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation 
Safe@ Plan 

June 30,201 1 $4,390,648 100% $0 
June 30,2012 5,135,662 100% 0 
June 30,2013 5,578,503 100% 0 

Mircellaneous Plan 
June 30,201 1 $2,902,359 
June 30,2012 3,335,630 
June 30,2013 2,968,004 
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I NOTE 11 - PERS PENSION PLAN (Continued) 

CALPERS uses the market related value method of valuing the Plan's assets. For the most recent actuarial 
report, as of June 30,201 1, an investment rate of return of 7.50% is assumed, including inflation at 2.75%. 
Annual salary increases are assumed to vary by duration of service. Changes in liability due to plan 
amendments, changes in actuarial assumptions, or changes in actuarial methods are amortized as a level 
percentage of payroll on a closed basis over twenty years. Investment gains and losses are accumulated as 
they are realized and approximately 6 percent of the net balance is amortized annually over a rolling thirty 
year period. 

The schedule of funding progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value 
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accmed liability for benefits. 
The Plans' actuarial value (which differs from market value) and funding progress over the most recent 
three years available are set forth below at their actuarial valuation date of June 30: 

Safety Plmf: 

Actuarial 
Unfunded 

Entry Age Unfunded Annuat (Overfunded) 
Valuation Value of Accrued (Overfunded) Funded Covered Liability as 

Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll % of Payroll 
2009 $164,507,549 $203,923,730 $39,416,181 80.7% $18,838,475 209.232% 
2010 172,166,024 215,540,204 43,374,180 79.9% 19,084,180 227.278% 
2011 181,010,553 230,193,199 49,182,646 78.6% 18,135,987 271.188% 

Miscellaneous Plan: 

Unfunded 
Entry Age Unfunded Annual (Overfunded) 

Valuation Value of Accrued (Ovehded) Funded Covered Liabiitv as 
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll % of Payroll 
2009 $117,726,837 $143,591,380 $25,864,543 82.0% $21,969,787 117.728% 

Audited annual fmancial statements and ten-year trend information are available from CALPERS at P.O. 
Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709. CALPERS usually reports information for each fiscal year 
seventeen months after the end of that fiscal year. 
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I NOTE 11 - PERS PENSION PLAN (Continued) I 
CALPERS has reported that the value of the net assets in the Plans held for pension benefits changed 
during the year ended June 30,201 1 (the most recent available) as follows: 

Safety Miscellaneous 

Beginning Balance 6130110 $172,166,024 $124,779,616 
Contributions received 6,286,882 4,823,961 
Benefits and Refunds Paid (9,228,786) (5,674,025) 
Miscellaneous Adjustments (143,811) (254,458) 
Expected Investment Earnings Credited 13,219,684 9,616,641 

Expected Actuarial Value of Assets 613011 1 $182,299,993 $133291,735 

Market Value of Assets 613011 1 

Actuarial Value of Assets 613011 1 

Additional disclosures will be included when made available by PERS. 

B. Public Agency Retirement System 

The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1990 (OBRA) mandates that public sector employees who are 
not members of their employer's existing retirement system as of January 1, 1992 be covered by either 
Social Security or an alternative plan. 

The City's part-time, seasonal and temporary employees are covered under the Public Agency Retirement 
System (PARS), a defmed contribution plan, which requires these employees to contribute 6% and the City 
to contribute 1.5% of the employees pay plus administration costs. The City's required contributions of 
$17,541 and the employee's required contributions of $70,159 were made during the fiscal year ending 
June 30,2013. 
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I NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ( 

A. Deferred Contpensafwn Plan 

City employees may defer a portion of their compensation under a City sponsored Deferred Compensation 
Plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under this Plan, participants are not 
taxed on the deferred portion of their compensation until distributed to them; distributions may be made 
only at termination, retirement, death or in an emergency defined by the Plan. 

The laws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a Trust for the 
exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under these plans are 
not the City's property and are not subject to City control, they have been excluded from these financial 
statements. 

B. Retiree MedicalBenefits 

The City provides postretirement health care benefits to employees who retire in good standing from the 
City after attaining the age of 50 and to certain employees who retire due to disability. As of June 30,2013 
there were 249 participants receiving these health care benefits. 

The City joined the California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), an agent multiple-employer 
plan administered by CALPERS, consisting of an aggregation of single-employer plans. The CERBT issues 
a publicly available financial report that incIudes fmancial statements and required supplementary 
information. That report may be obtained from the California Public Employees' Retirement System, 
CERBT, P.O. Box 942703, Sacramento, CA 94229-2703. 

In order to qualify for postemployment medical and dental benefits an employee must retire from the City 
and maintain enrollment in one of City's eligible health plans. In addition, there are eligibility rules and 
contribution requirements defined in the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with each employee 
group. In the MOUs, the Benefit Cap is defined as not more than the single medical premium rate paid by 
the City for active employees, and the Retiree Cap is 15% above the single Kaiser medical premium rate. 
The eligibility rules for each MOU are summarized below. 
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I NOTE 12 -EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) I 
Eligibility Rule 

(Continuous Years 
HirelRetirement Date of Service) C i  Contribution Requirement 

I I I f f  retmment oec~nred behwen July 1, 1990 and 

Pmfess1onal1 
Techcal 

(PROTECH) 

Mid- 
Manaeement 

Fire Safety 
WFF) 

*red prior to July I, 1995 

- 

- 
and 

Confidenhal 
(LrnA)  

Unrepresented 
W E P )  

Hrred an or aflerluly 1,1995 
and retired 

on or after September 1,2002 

Hired prior to July I, 1995 

At least 5 

5 but less than 10 

Htred an oraRerJuly 1, 1995 

Hued pnor to July 1, 1995 

Hired on orafter July I, 1995 

Retired prim to Januw I , 1990 

~etired January I, 1990 -December 31, 1994 

Hired plior to January 1,1995 and 
retired on or before I'nbmary 20,2007 

Hired prior to January 1, 1995 and retireafter 
I'ebmary 20,2007 

Hired on or afterJaoanuary 1,1995 and retire on 
or beforeFebruary 20,2007 

Mired onor afterJanuary 1,1995 and 
retired after February 20,2007 

September 1,2002. 
- Any employee only med~ca.1 ppremlum rate 

Ifrettrement aecm aRer September 1,2002. 
- Benefitcap 

Up to25% afthe benefit cap 

10 but less than 15 

15 but less than 20 

Atleast20 

At least 5 

5 but less than 10 

Up to 50% aftho benefit cap 

Up to 75% ofthe benefit cap 

Up to 100% of the benefit cap 

Benefit cap 

Up to 25% ofthe benefit cap 

10 but less than 15 

15 but less than 20 

At least 20 

At least 5 

5 but less than LO 

10 but less than 15 

15 but less than20 

At least 20 

N/A 

NIA 

1 but 1-3 than 

~t 1-t 10 

1 but less than LO 

Atleastlo 

1 but less than 10 

lo . 

15 but less than 20 

At least20 

1 but less than 10 

10 butless than 15 

15 butless than20 

At least 20 

Up to 50% ofthe benefit cap 

Up to 75% of thc benefit cap 

Up to 100% ofthe benefit cap 

Benefit cap 

Up to 25% ofthe benefit cap 

Up to 50% of the benefit cap 

Up to 75% ofthe benefit cap 

Up to 100% ofthe benefit cap 

None. However, retirees may elect to continue coverage 
on selFpny basis. Note: the City does contribute the 
required minimum CALPERS conlibution ($74.75 per 
month in 2013) 

Any employeeonly premium 

50% ofthe benefit cap 

l00%0fthe benelitcap 

Up to 50% of the lesser ofthc retiree cap and the 
premium rate 
Up to 100% ofthelesseroftherelireecap andthe 
premium rate 

Up to 25% of the benefit cap 

Up lo 50% ofthe benefit cap 

Up to 75% of the benefit cap 

Up to 100% ofthe benefit cap 

25% of the lesser ofthe retire0 cap and premium rate 

50% of the lesser of the retiree cap and premium rate 

75% of the lesser ofthe retiree cap and premium rate 

100% afthe lwer  ofthe retiree cap and premium rate 
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I NOTE 12 - ICMPLOYEE BENEFI'I'S (Continucd) 
I 

Eligibility Rule 

(Continuous Years 
H i r e k t i r e r n e n t  Date of Service) City CootributionRequirernent 

1~one. However, retirees may elect to continue coverage I 
I Retired Prior to January I . 1989 IN/A 

month in 2013) 

Iffretirement occurs on or before June 30,2003 

Pollee HiredpnortoJanuary 1,1996 At least 5 
WIU)  I -Any single, medial prem~um rate 

Lfretlrement occurs on or after July 1,2003 
- uo to the retiree cao I 

Employee 
Association 

Hired on or &er January 1, 1996 

Hired prior to June 30,1996 

Hued onoraRerlune30,1996 

1 but less than 9 full years of s e ~ c e  

9 but les3 Ulan 14 full years ofsentice 

14 but less than 19 full years of service 

At I& 19 full years ofsentice 

Atleast5 

1 but less than 10 

Hired pnorto June 30,1995 

Up to25% of the rebree cap 

Up to 50% of the rebree cap 

Up to 75% of the retiree cap 

Up to 100% of the refme cap 

Ifret1romcnt ocuus on or before July 17, 1989 
-None 
Ifretffiment occurs between July 17,1989 and March 18, 
2003 
-Any employee only mcdlcal premium rate 
Ifretlrement occurs aRa March 18,2003 
-Benefit cap 

Up to 25% of the lowest cast employcc only premium but 
no more than the lowvest employee only single rate pard by 

10 but less than 15 

15 but less than 20 

supervisors 
(MSA) 

Funding Policy and Actuarial Assnmptions 

the Clty 

Up to 50% of the lowest cod employee only premium 

Up to 75% ofthe lowest cost employes only premim 

At least 20 

At leas1 5 

I 1-~eneflt cap 
5 but less than 10 to 25% ofthe beme61 cap . ---, 

The City's policy is to prefund these benefits by accumulating assets with CERBT discussed above 
pursuant to the City's annual budget approved by Council. The annual required contribution (ARC) for the 
year ended June 30, 2013 was determined as part of a July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation using the entry age 
normal actuarial cost method. This is a projected benefit cost method, which takes into account those 
benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those already accrued. The actuarial 
assumptions included (a) 7.61% investment rate of return, (b) 3.25% projected annual salary increase, and 
(c) health costs trend rates of 5.50%-7.60% for medical and 3.0% for dental. The health care cost trend rate 
is the rate of change in per capita health claims costs over time as a result of factors such as medical 
inflation, utilization of healthcare services, plan design, and technological developments. 

Up to 100% of the lowest cost employee onlypremium 

Ifretlremcnt occurs beforeNownber27,2007 
-Any employee only medial premium mte 
Ifretirement occurs an ornt?erNovember27,2007 

Hned on or afler June 30, 1995 and retire 

November 27,2Q07 

10 but less than 15 

15 but less thao20 

At least 20 

Up to 50% of the benetit cap 

Up to 75% ofthe benefit cep 

Up to 100% of the benefit cap 
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~ O T E  12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) I 
Projections of benefits for fmancial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the City and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each 
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the City and plan members to that 
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that smooth the effects of short-tenn 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Actuarial calculations reflect a 
long-term perspective and actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject 
to revision at least biannually as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. The actuarial value of assets is based upon the balance in the CERBT Trust. The City's 
OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll 
using a 30 year amortization period on a closed basis. The actuarial study indicates that as of July 1,201 I, 
the actuarial accrued liability was estimated to be $48,698,709. 

Funding Progress and Funded Status 

Generally accepted accounting principles permit contributions to be treated as OPEB assets and deducted 
from the Actuarial Accrued Liability when such contributions are placed in an irrevocable trust or 
equivalent arrangement. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the City contributed tbe ARC of 
$3,475,268 to the Plan. As a result, the City has calculated and recorded the Net OPEB AssetILiability, 
representing the difference between the ARC, amortization and contributions, as presented below: 

Annual requited contribution 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual OPEB cost 
Contributions made 

(Decrease) increase in net OPEB obligations 
Net OPEB obligation (asset) June 30,2012 

Net OPEB obligation (asset) June 30,2013 

The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) representing the present value of future benefits, included in the 
actuarial study dated July 1, 2011, amounted to $48,698,709, The AAL is partially funded since assets have 
been transferred into CERBT. The City's prior year contributions, the current year annual required 
contribution, along with investment income, net of current year premiums reimbursed to the City, resulted in 
assets with CERBT of $24,778,279 as of June 30, 2013, which partially reduces the unfunded actuarial 
accrued liability. 

The Plan's annual required contributions and actual contributions for fiscal years ended June 30,2011,2012 
and 2013 are set forth below: 

Percentage of 
Annual Net OPEB 

Annual Actual OPEB Cost Obligation - 
Fiscal Year OPEB Cost Contribution Contributed (Asset) 

June 30,201 1 $3,494,309 $3,494,309 100% $0 
June 30,2012 
June 30,2013 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30,2013 

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) I 
The Schedule of Funding Progress presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value 
of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
Trend data from the latest available actuarial studies is presented below: 

Unfunded 
Entry Age (Overfunded) 

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial 
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued 

Date Assets Liability Liability 

Unfunded 
(Overfunded) 

Actuarial 
Liability as 

Funded Covered Percentage of 
Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll 

C. Accrued Vacotion and SickLeave Liabilities 

Employees accrue vacation up to certain maximums, based on employee classification. Employees may elect 
to be paid a portion of their vacation at various times according to the applicable memorandum of 
understanding. Sick leave may be accumulated without limit. Vested sick leave may be paid upon separation 
from service in good standing and is based on a vesting schedule determined by years of service. 

The City measures and adjusts the liability for vacation and sick leave annually at its fiscal year end. During 
the year ended June 30, 2013, sick leave benefits payable decreased by $601,047 and vacation benefits 
payable decreased by $238,855. For all governmental funds, amounts expected to he paid out for permanent 
liquidation are recorded as fund liability; the long-term portion is recorded in the Statement of Net 
Position. 
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I NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 

The changes of the Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Liabilities and the allocation of each liability among the 
departments are as follows: 

Accrued Vacation Sick Leave 
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Activities Activities 

naance as or~une ju, LULL s r , r a ~ , ~ a ~  a u  I 4 v 4  o-t,~*~,-r7-1 QII_I,JU7 

Additions 2,969,854 231,161 1,310,953 97,868 
Payments and adjustments (3,185,209) (254,661) (1,899,546) (1 10,322) 

Balance as of June 30,2013 $4,267,428 $203,704 $3,557,901 $161,110 

General Government $442,678 $220,685 
Building 141,422 92,509 
Public Works 151,026 60,101 
Engineering and Planning 241,432 260,361 
Reoreation 72,171 56,552 

Police 2,204,002 1,109,368 
Fire 961,407 1,737,054 
Water Utility $101,852 $80,555 
Sewer Utility 101,852 80,555 

Internal Service 53,290 21,271 

Total $4,267,428 $203,704 $3,557,901 $161,110 
Long-Tern Portion: 

Governmental activities $3,661,961 $3,235,018 
Bnsiness-type activities 53,292 $119,806 21,271 $117,610 

Total long term portions $3,715,253 $119,806 $3,256,289 $117,610 
Current Portion: 

Governmental activities $552,175 $301,612 

Business-type activities $83,898 $43,500 
Total cment portions $552,175 $83,898 $301,612 $43,500 

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave are liquidated by the fund that has recorded the liability. The long-term 
portion of governmental activities compensated absences is liquidated primarily by the General Fund. 
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I NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT I 

The City participates in ABAG Plan Corporation, a non-profit public benefit corporation established to 
provide liability insurance coverage, claims and risk management, and legal defense to its participating 
members. ABAG Plan provides $5,000,000 of self-funded general liability and auto coverage and 
$25,000,000 excess liability coverage per occurrence and is responsible for paying claims in excess of the 
City's $100,000 deductible. ABAG Plan also provides $1,000,000 of employee theft coverage in excess of 
the City's $5,000 deductible, and $2,000,000 of cyber crime coverage (with various sub-limits depending 
on the type of cyber crime) in excess of the City's $50,000 deductible. ABAG Plan provides coverage for 
property damage up to $1 billion. The City retains a self-insured amount of $5,000 for each properfy and 
$5,000 for each vehicle per occurrence. 

During the fiscal year ended June 30,2013 the City contributed $473,037 for current year coverage. 

ABAG Plan is governed by a board consisting of representatives f?om member municipalities. The board 
controls the operations of ABAG Plan funding policies and approval of operating budgets, independent of 
any influence by member municipalities beyond their representation on the Board. 

The City's annual contributions to ABAG Plan are calculated based on the ratio of the City's payroll to the 
total payrolls of all entities participating in the program and the City's loss experience. Actual surpluses or 
losses are shared according to a formula developed fkom overall costs and spread to member entities on a 
percentage basis. 

Financial statements may be obtained from ABAG Services, P.O. Box 2050, Oakland, CA 94604-2050. 

B. Workers Compensation 

The City has a commercial insurance policy which provides workers compensation coverage up to a 
maximum of $20,000,000. The City has a deductible or uninsured liability of up to $750,000 per claim for 
miscellaneous employees and $1,000,000 for public safety employees. 

The City is self-insured for dental care for miscellaneous employees up to a maximum of $14,000 per 
family, based on years of service. Claims are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. During the year ended June 
30, 2013 the City paid $636,401 in dental claims and administrative fees. Public safety employees are 
insured under various dental care insurance plans. 
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I NOTE 13 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) I 
D. Liabili@ for Uninsured Claim 

The City provides for the uninsured portion of claims and judgments, including a provision for claims 
incurred but not reported, when a loss is deemed probable of assertion and the amount of the loss is 
reasonably determinable. 

The City's liability for uninsured claims is limited to worker's compensation and general liability claims, 
as discussed above, and was computed as follows based on claims experience: 

Beginning balance 
Liability for current fiscal year claims 
Increase (decrease) in estimated liability 
for prior fiscal year claims and claims 
incurred but not reported (IBm) 

Claims paid 

Ending balance 

Due in one year 

Worker's General 
Compensation Liability Total 2012 

$2,856,68 1 $861,203 $3,717,884 $3,452,421 
486,513 374,438 860.95 1 1,818,420 

Settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three fiscal years. 

1 NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES I 
A. Litigation 

The City is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of the City 
Attorney there is no pending litigation which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the fmancial 
position of the City, except for the lawsuit against the County of Santa Clara and the State of California 
related to activities of the former Redevelopment Agency as disclosed in Note 16F(2) below. 

B. Federal and State Grant Program 

The City participates in several Federal and State grant programs. These programs are subject to audit by 
the City's independent accountants in accordance with the provisions of the federal Single Audit Act as 
amended and applicable State requirements. No cost disallowances have been proposed as a result of 
audits completed to date; however, these programs are still subject to further examination by the grantors 
and the amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be 
determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
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I NOTE 14 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued) I 

The City uses an encumbrance system as an extension of normal budgetary accounting for governmental 
funds. Under this system, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditure of monies 
are recorded in order to reserve that portion of applicable appropriations. Encumbrances outstanding at 
year-end are recorded as restricted, committed or assigned fund balance, depending on the classification of 
the resources to be used to liquidate the encumbrance, since they do not constitute expenditures or 
liabilities. Outstanding encumbrances at year-end are automatically reappropriated for the following year. 
Unencumbered and unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end. Encumbrances outstanding by fund as of 
June 30,2013 were as follows: 

Major Governmental Funds: 
General Fund $397,598 
Economic Development Corporation 66,714 
Street Improvement Fund 1,162,965 
Transit Area Impact Fee Fund 73,563 

Non-Major Governmental Funds 932,765 

Total Encumbrances $2,633,605 

I NOTE 15 - LOCAL WHOVl*;MEN'I' 1)ISIWCT IIEIIT W l l a  NO CITY COMMITMENT 1 
Local Improvement Districts (LIDS) are established in various parts of the City to provide improvements to 
properties located in those districts. Properties in these Districts are assessed for the cost of improvements; 
these assessments are payable over the term of the debt issued to finance the improvements and must be 
sufficient to repay this debt. The City acts solely as the collecting and paying agent for the Districts' debt 
issues below, but it has no direct or contingent liability or moral obligation for the payment ofthis debt, which 
is not included in the general debt of the City. The outstanding balance of each of these issues as of June 30, 
2013 is as follows: 

Fiscal Principal Maturities 
Y e a  Interest Fiscal Years Outstanding 

Issue Issued Rate Annual Amount Ended June30,2013 

LID #I8 PhaseIl 1997 6.75% $295,000 - 360,000 2014-2017 $1,300,000 
LID #I8 1999 5.85% 215,000 -285,000 2014-2019 1,495,000 

LID#lSRehnding 1998 5.65% 660,000 - 695,000 2014-2015 1,355,000 
LID #20 1999 5.65 - 5.70% 1,010,000 - 1,330,000 2014-2019 6,985,000 

Total $11,135,000 
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NOTE 16 -REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DISSOLUTION AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES 

In an effort to balance its budget, the State of California adopted ABxl 26 on June 28,201 1, amended by 
AB1484 on June 27,2012, which suspended all new redevelopment activities except for limited specified 
activities as of that date and dissolved redevelopment agencies on January 31,2012. 

The suspension provisions prohibited all redevelopment agencies from a wide range of activities, 
including incurring new indebtedness or obligations, entering into or modifying agreements or contracts, 
acquiring or disposing of real property, taking actions to adopt or amend redevelopment plans and other 
similar actions, except actions required by law or to carry out existing enforceable obligations, as defined 
in ABxl 26. 

ABxl 26 and AB1484 created three regulatory authorities, the Successor Agency Oversight Board, State 
Controllel. and Department of Finance (DOF), to review former Agency's asset transfer, obligation 
payments and wind down activities. ABxl 26 specifically directs the State Controller to review the 
activities of all redevelopment agencies to determine whether an asset transfer between an agency and 
any public agency occurred on or after January 1, 2011. If an asset transfer did occur and the public 
agency that received the asset is not contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure or 
encumbrance of the asset, the legislation purports to require the State Controller to order the asset 
returned to the redevelopment agency. The State Controller's Office completed its asset transfer review 
of the Milpitas Redevelopment Agency for the period from January 1,201 1 through January 31,2012 in 
August 2012. The review resulted in a demand that the City return assets comprised of cash and 
investments, property held for resale and capital assets totaling $147,108,600 be transferred to the 
Milpitas Redevelopment Successor Agency. However, the results of the State Controller's review also 
included an incomplete list of housing assets that should have been transferred to the Housing Successor 
Agency, instead of the Milpitas Redevelopment Successor Agency. 

Subsequent to the State Controller's review, the DOF also reviewed the housing assets inventory list and 
approved a majority of the non-cash assets as Housing Assets. The assets that were approved included 
all the housing loans that were committed to third parties, housing properties heId for resale, and land 
planned for low-moderate income housing purposes. In November 2012, the DOF completed the first 
phase of the Due Diligence Review (DDR) of the Low and Moderate Housing Fund's cash balance 
available for allocation to the affected taxing entities. The City complied with the DOF's determination 
by transmitting the payment of $6,582,557 to the County Auditor-Controller in November 2012. 

The City returned property held for resale of $374,253 to the Agency's Housing Reserve Special 
Revenue Fund and $1,800,000 to the Redevelopment Capital Projects Fund, and $6,988,800 to the 
Successor Agency, but due to the conflicting orders of the State Controller and DOF and also to protect 
the Milpitas entities interest, the City opted to wait for the completion of the second phase of the DDR of 
the non-housing cash balance to determine the amount of the remaining assets that should be transferred 
to the Milpitas Successor Agency. Therefore, additional adjustments resulting from the State 
Controller's review were not reflected in the Redevelopment Agency's balances as of January 31,2012. 

Effective January 31, 2012, the Redevelopment Agency was dissolved. Certain assets of the 
Redevelopment Agency Housing Reserve Fund were distributed to a Housing Successor; and all 
remaining Redevelopment Agency assets and liabilities were distributed to a Successor Agency. 
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NOTE 16 -REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DISSOLUTION AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES 
(Continued) 

Under the provisions of AB 1484, the City can elect to become the Housing Successor and retain the 
housing assets. The City's Housing Authority elected to become the Housing Successor and on February 
1,2012, certain housing assets were transferred to the City's Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund. 

The City also elected to become the Successor Agency and on February 1, 2012 the Redevelopment 
Agency's remaining assets were distributed to and liabilities were assumed by the Successor Agency. 
ABxl 26 requires the establishment of an Oversight Board to oversee the activities of the Successor 
Agency and one was established on March 26,2012. The activities of the Successor Agency are subject 
to review and approval of the Oversight Board, which is comprised of seven members, including one 
member of City Council and one former Redevelopment Agency employee appointed by the Mayor. 

The activities of the Housing Successor are reported in the Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund as 
the City has control of those assets, which may be used in accordance with the low and moderate income 
housing provisions of California Redevelopment Law. 

The activities of the Successor Agency are reported in the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment 
Agency Private-Purpose Trust Fund as the activities are under the control of the Oversight Board. The 
City provides administrative services to the Successor Agency to wind down the affairs of the former 
Redevelopment Agency. 

Cash and investments of the Successor Agency as of June 30, 2013 are discussed in Note 3 above. 
Information presented in the following footnotes represents other assets and liabilities of the Successor 
Agency as of June 30,2013. 

B. PROPERTYHELD FOR RESALE OR REDEVELOPMENT 

In August 2000, the Agency purchased land f?om the Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority in the 
amount of $6,988,800 which is being held for future development projects. 

The Successor Agency assumed the obligations of the Redevelopment Agency's Disposition and 
Development Agreements as follows: 

I. Installment Purchase Agreement 

The Redevelopment Agency agreed to purchase two parcels of land comprising thirty-five acres 
surrounding the County Correctional Facility for $57,750,000 in cash and $135,000,000 payable 
over eighteen years at no interest. 

The Agency also agreed to re-sell this land to developers for a total of $57,750,000, of which 
$40,000,000 was received in fiscal 2005 and the remainder was received on the close of escrow 
on the second parcel in fiscal 2006. The Agency's intent in purchasing this land was to 
simultaneously re-sell it for development. 

In addition, starting in 2024 the Agency is required to pay the County the greater of $2,000,000 
or 50% of the sales tax revenue arising out of sales originating on certain properties that are in 
the Midtown Area, but not to exceed $5,000,000 annually, until the earlier of either June 30, 
2038, the date that tax increment revenue allocated to the Agency has reached its limit; or the 
termination of the Redevelopment Plan. 

86 
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NOTE 16 - REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DISSOLUTION AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES 
(Continued) 

2. CounQ of Sanfa Clara 

In August 2006, the Agency entered into a Disposition and Development Agreement with the 
County of Santa Clara to construct a health center and a public parking garage. Under the terms 
of the Agreement, the Agency sold a parcel of land to the County for the construction of the 
health center for $1,862,360. In addition, the Agency entered into a Ground Lease Agreement to 
lease a parcel of land to the County for 75 years for constructing and operating a public parking 
garage adjacent to the health center site. The Agency constructed certain public off-site 
improvements in the area, including underground utilities, roadway improvements and 
streetscape improvements. 

I Sun Power Corporation 

In February 2011, the Agency entered into a Financing Agreement with SunPower Corporation 
to reimburse the Corporation for the acquisition and installation of capital equipment for the 
purpose of producing SunPower solar panels. The Corporation intends to contract with 
Flextronics Americas to receive shipments of specialized manufacturing equipment and to install 
and operate the equipment for an initial period of five years and hire and continually employ at 
least 80 new employees (employment goal). Under the terms of the Agreement, the Agency will 
reimburse the Corporation $700,000 after receiving documentation of achieving the employment 
goal and confirming the applicable equipment was installed. The Agency also committed to 
reimburse the Corporation an additional $200,000 per year over a four year period ending on 
January 1, 2014, if the Corporation continues to meet the manufacturing and employment 
obligations and has unreimbursed capital equipment and facilities improvement costs. The 
funding will he incrementally forgiven so long as the Corporation does not cease its relationship 
with Flextronics Americas or stop using the site for indush-ial/manufacturing purposes on or 
before January 1, 2014, but the remaining balance is payable if the Corporation does cease the 
activities as noted. The agreement terminates January 1,2016. The Successor Agency expended 
$700,000 under the agreement during the year ended June 30, 2012, and $400,000 under the 
agreement during the year ended June 30,2013, which has been recorded as a conditional grant, 
therefore the balance of the loan is offset with an equal allowance for forgiveness of the loan. An 
additional payment of $200,000 was due to Sun Power during fiscal year 2013 but the payment 
was denied by the Department of Finance. 

D. CAPITAL ASSETS 

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not 
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date 
contributed. The Successor Agency's policy is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding certain 
minimum thresholds and with useful lives exceeding two years. 

Capital assets at June 30, 2013 were comprised of land of $23,394,884 and construction in progress of 
$78,533,256. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
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NOTE 16 - REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DISSOLUTION AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES 
(Continued) 

E. LONG-77ZRM OBLIGATIONS 

I. Current Year Transactions and Balances 

The Successor Agency's debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in detail 
thereafter. 

Balance Bdaoce Current 
June 30,2012 Additions Retirements June 30,2013 Portion 

2003 Tar Allocation Bonds 
2%5.25%, due September 1,2032 $163,530,000 $5,595,000 $157,935,000 $5,825,000 

losrallmcnl Purchdsc Agrru#nclll 
with the County of Sonts Clara 
due June 30,2023 

Successor Agcncy Loan 
Purchase and Sale Agreement 

with the City ofMilpitas 

2. 2003 Redevelopment Agency TaxAIIocation Bonds 

In November 2003, the Agency issued Tax Allocation Bonds in the original principal amount of 
$200,000,000 to advance refund and defease the outstanding 1997 and 2000 Tax Allocation 
Bonds, and to provide fmancing for various redevelopment projects. The Bonds are secured by 
the Agency's Tax Increment Revenue. In lieu of a reserve fund, the 2003 Bonds also are secured 
by a $13,687,858 surety bond issued by Municipal Bond Investors Assurance Corporation. 
Principal is payable annually and the interest is payable semi-annually through 2033. 

The pledge of all future tax increment revenue (housing and non-housing revenue) ends upon 
repayment of the $237,413,669 remaining debt service on the bonds which is scheduled to occur 
in fiscal year 2033. Projected non-housing revenues are expected to provide coverage over debt 
service of 1.58 over the life of the bonds. Projected revenues for the low and moderate income 
housing set-aside amounts required to he deposited into the Agency's Housing Reserve Special 
Revenue Fund (housing revenue) are expected to provide coverage over debt service of 13.79 
over the life of the bonds. W i i  the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency discussed above, 
Tax Increment is no longer distributed and housing set-aside amounts are no longer required, and 
instead the Successor Agency receives payments from the County's Redevelopment Property Tax 
Trust Fund (RP'M'F) that are to be used to fund debt service on the Bonds, with no distinction 
between housing and non-housing revenues. The Successor Agency only receives the funds 
necessary to fulfill its approved obligations. In fiscal year 2013, total tax increment calculated 
and available for distribution by the County Auditor-Controller was $33,351,162, and the total 
received by the Successor Agency was $18237,007. The tax increment available for distribution 
represented coverage of 245% of the $13,568,533 of debt service. 
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NOTE 16 - REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DISSOLUTION AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTMTIES 
(Continued) 

3. Installment Purchase Agreement with the County of Safrla CIara 

The Redevelopment Agency has a non-interest bearing Installment Purchase Agreement with the 
County of Santa Clara in the original principal amount of $135,000,000, as mentioned in Note 
16B(1) above. As discussed in Note 16B (I), under the Agreement, the City purchased two 
parcels of land that were later sold to developers. The amount due under the Agreement does not 
bear interest and is payable annually through 2023. The Successor Agency has therefore 
recorded a liability of $28,427,885 at June 30, 2013, representing the present value of future 
payments due under this Agreement. 

4. Loans From the City 

On September 7, 2004, the Agency entered into an Agreement with the City for the purchase of 
eight parcels of land which are located in the Project Area. However, the terms of the purchase 
were not fmalized until August 21, 2007 under the First Amendment to Agreement of Purchase 
and Sale. Under the terms of the Amended Agreement, the purchase price of the parcels was 
$20,455,191. The advance from the General Fund to the Redevelopment Project Capital Projects 
Fund was due on September 7, 2044 and bore simple interest of 10% annually. The balance of 
the advance, including principal and accrued interest, was $21,670,757 as of January 31, 2012. 

The loan had previously been reported as an interfund advance between the City and 
Redevelopment Agency, but with the transfer of the Redevelopment Agency's liabilities to the 
Successor Agency, the advance is now reported as long-term debt of the Successor Agency. The 
loan was originally required to be repaid by September 7, 2044, however repayment is now 
contingent upon the Successor Agency receiving a Finding of Completion, as defmed in Health 
and Safety Code Section 34179.6. After the Successor Agency receives a Finding of Completion, 
and under the provisions of Health and Safety Code Section 34191.4(b)(2)(A), the loan can be 
repaid by the Successor Agency. However, the Successor Agency must apply for approval of the 
loan by the Oversight Board including a fmding that the loan was for legitimate redevelopment 
purposes. If the Oversight Board finds that the loan is an enforceable obligation, the loan is to be 
repaid in accordance with a defmed schedule over a reasonable term of years. Repayment cannot 
begin prior to fiscal year 2014 and the maximum annual repayment amount is limited based on 
calculations in the Code Section. In addition, the interest rate on the loan is limited to the Local 
Agency Investment Fund interest rate calculated from the inception of the loan. Therefore, the 
loan balance was adjusted in fiscal year 2012 to reflect the revised interest rate. 
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NOTE 16 -REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DlSSOLUTION AM) SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIVITIES 
(Continued) 

During fiscal year 201 1 the Housing Reserve Special Revenue Fund advanced $6,800,000 to the 
Redevelopment Project Capital Projects Fund for the purchase of a land parcel. The advance was 
due on April 17, 2037 and bore simple interest of 5% annually. The balance of the advance, 
including principal and accrued interest, was $7,094,356 as of January 31, 2012. The loan had 
previously been reported as an interfund advance within the Redevelopment Agency. However, 
with the transfer of the associated liability to the Successor Agency, the loan is now payable to 
the Housing Successor to the Agency's housing activities which is the Mipitas Housing 
Authority, and repayment of the loan is also based upon whether the Successor Agency to the 
Redevelopment Agency receives a Finding of Completion as discussed above. The interest rate 
on the loan is also limited to the Local Agency Investment Fund interest rate calculated from the 
inception of the loan. Therefore the loan balance was adjusted to reflect the revised interest rate. 
However, this loan was not deemed an enforceable obligation by the State Department of 
Finance. The balance of the loan as of June 30, 2013 is $6,874,647, but the Successor Agency 
will not record a liability for this loan until it is approved as an enforceable obligation by the 
State Department of Finance. 

5. Debt Service Requirements 

Debt service requirements are shown below for all long-term debt except the Successor Agency 
Loan, because the ultimate repayment terms cannot be determined at this time as discussed in 4. 
above. 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest 

F. COMMITMENTS AND CONTZNGENCZES 

State Approval of Enforceable Obligations 

The Successor Agency prepares a Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) semi- 
annually that contains all proposed expenditures for the subsequent six-month period. The ROPS 
is subject to the review and approval of the Oversight Board as well as the State Department of 
Finance. Although the State Department of Finance may not question items included on the 
ROPS in one period, they may question the same items in a future period and disallow associated 
activities. The amount, if any, of current obligations that may be denied by the State Department 
of Finance cannot be determined at this time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be 
immaterial. 
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NOTE 16 -REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY DISSOLUTION AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTMTIES 
(Continued) 

2. State Asset Transfer Review, Den~ancl for Retttrn ofAssets andStar&tillAgreentent 

The activities of the former Redevelopment Agency and the Successor Agency were subject to 
examination by the State of California and the State Controller's Ofice conducted a review of 
the propriety of asset transfers between the former Redevelopment Agency or the Successor 
Agency and any public agency that occurred on or after January 1,201 1. The review resulted in 
a demand that the City return certain assets to the Redevelopment Agency and as discussed in 
Note 16A, some of the assets were returned and others remain in the possession of the Economic 
Development Corporation. It is the City's position that the funds were legally placed with the 
Economic Development Corporation at the time of the transfer and are not subject to clawback. 
Therefore, assets totaling $54,854,616, comprised of current assets of $3 1,485,664 and capital 
assets of $23,368,952, remain with the Economic Development Corporation as of June 30,2013. 

On February 25, 2013, the City, the Corporation and the Successor Agency executed a Standstill 
Agreement to preserve the assets of the former Redevelopment Agency that had been transferred 
to the Corporation and to the City. Under the Agreement, the Corporation agrees that it will not 
transfer, sell or convey any of the property conveyed by the Agency or purchased with assets 
transferred from the Agency, refrain from incurring new financial obligations and satisfy only its 
specific outstanding obligations and contracts that are listed in the Agreement, including the 
payments required for the Mission West Purchase Agreement discussed in Note 9B. Under the 
Agreement, the City agrees that it will not transfer, sell or convey any of the capital assets or 
property held for resale conveyed by the former Agency, that the General Fund will reimburse 
the Successor Agency for any Corporation payments on the contracts listed in the Agreement if a 
f i a l  judicial determination holds that the transfer was invalid or the obligation should not have 
been paid from Corporation funds, except for the Mission West Purchase Agreement. In the 
event there is a final judicial decision that the transfers to the City and/or Corporation were 
invalid and subject to the "clawback" provisions of AB1484, the City and Corporation agree to 
return the assets to the Successor Agency. 

As noted above, the City was awaiting the results of a Due Diligence Review @DR) to 
determine the amount of the remaining assets that should be transferred to the Milpitas Successor 
Agency. The DDR indicated assets totaling $31,877,702 were to be returned, hut that amount 
was later adjusted by the State Department of Finance to $38,775,908. The City disputes the 
results of the DDR and the City has filed suit against the County of Santa Clara and the State of 
California, claiming amongst other things, the unconstitutionality or other unlawfulness of the 
State legislation under which the State made its DDR orders. The County and State have filed 
responses to the City's complaint. The two cases have been coordinated and will proceed to 
hearing on February 28, 2014. There has not been a final judicial or administrative 
determination regarding the legality of the retroactive provisions of ABxl 26 and AB1484. The 
amount, if any, of assets that may be required to be returned to the Successor Agency cannot be 
determined at this time. 





SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

The supplementmy information provides budget comparisons for major governmental funds which are not the 
General Fund or major special revenue funds. Financial reporting standards require this information for any major 
governmental fund that has adopted budget. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP LEGAL BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JlTNE 30,2013 

Varisnee with 
Budget 

Achlal Amounts Positive 
Budset BudgetaryBasis (Negative) 

Revenues 
Use ormoney and properly 
lntergovemment~l 
Developer contributions 

To14 Revenues 

Expendihlres 
Current: 

Gcnenl Government: 
Nondepamneolal 

Public Works 

Total Expendihlres 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FMANCNG SOURCES (USES) 
Tnnsfen in 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Not change in fund balance 

Adjusbnent to budgetary basis: 
Capital aullay 
Encumbrance adjusbncnts 

Fund balance, July 1 

Fund balance, Junc 30 





L NON-MAJOR GOVERMMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS: 

GAS TAX FUND 

Established to account for the City's share of state gasoline taxes which are restricted for use on construction and 
maintenance of the street system in Milpitas. 

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND 

Established to account for community development block grants and expenditures. 

LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FUND 
Established to account for the proceeds from Federal and State asset seizures. This h n d  also accounts for the 
Supplemental Law Enforcement Services grant, Local Law Enforcement Block grant, Justice Assistance grant and 
expenditures. These funds must be used only for specified law enforcement purposes. 

SOLID WASTE REDUCTION AND SERVICES FUND 
Established to account for landfill tipping fees allocated by Santa Clara County. The County allocates a fee of $1 
per ton to each City to be used in relation to the State of California Waste Reduction Act. Revenue is used for the 
implementation of waste reduction programs to meet the State required landfill deposits percentage reduction. The 
fund also accounts for special charges built into garbage rates specifically for community promotions and household 
hazardous waste activities. 

LIGHTING AND LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE DISTRICT FUND 

Established to account for assessments collected within the district. Revenue is used for servicing and maintaining 
the public landscaping and additional lighting for the district. 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND 
Established to account for assessments collected within the district. Revenue is used for providing City services for 
the district. 

HETCH-HETCHY GROUND LEASE FUND 

Established to account for the lease payment to the City and County of San Francisco for the permitted use of the 
Hetch-Hetchy land. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS: 

PUBLIC ART FUND 

Established to account for the acquisition and installation of public art. Financing provided by a percentage of 
eligible project expendikes within the City's Annual Capital Improvement Program. 

PARK lMPROVEMENT FUND 

Established to account for the construction and maintenance of City parks. A special park improvement fee is 
imposed on developments to provide financing. 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUND 

Established to account for the construction and maintenance of general government projects. Financing provided 
by the General Fund. 

STORM DRAIN DEVELOPMENT FUND 

Established to account for the construction and maintenance of storm drain projects. A special storm drain fee is 
imposed on developments to provide financing. 





CITY OF MILPITAS 
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS 
JUNE 30,2013 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Lighting and 
Housing and Law Solid Waste Landscape 
Community Enforcement Reduction and Maintenance 

Gas Tax Development Services Services Dishict 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments available for operations 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Due iiom other governments 
Interest 

Loans receivable 
Prepaids, materials, supplies and deposits 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll 
Unearned revenue 
Refundable deposits 

Total Liabilities 

FUND BALANCE 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 
Reshicted 
Assigned 

Total Fund Balances 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Total 
Community Hetch-Hetchy General Storm Nonmajor 
Facilities Ground Public Park Government Drdn Governmental 
District Lease Art Improvement Project Development Funds 



REVENUES: 
property taxes 
Other taxes 
Use of money and property 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Developer contributions 
Other 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITCTRES: 
Current: 

General Government 
Public Works 
Engineering and Planning 
Police 

Capital outlay 

Total Expenditures 

NUN-MNOR (iOVliHNMliN'I'AL 1:lJNDS 
COMUININO STA'l'l~MI:N'I'S 01: REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

ANI) ClIAN(iES IN FUND BALANCES 
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

EXCESS @EFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER E X P E N D W  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers (out) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

FUND BALANCES ATBEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

Lighting and 
Housing & Solid Waste Landscape 
Community Law Enforcement Reduction and Maintenance 

Gas Tax Development Services Services District 



SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS W E A L  PROJECTS FUNDS 

Total 
Community Hetch-Hetchy General Storm Nonmajor 
Facilities Ground Public Park Government Drain Governmental 
District Lease Art Improvement Project Development Funds 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
BUDGETED NON-MAJOR FUNDS 

REVENUES 
Other taxes 
Use of money and property 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Other 

COMHlYlNti SCIIEDULE OF REWMJES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGL<S IN I;UND DAI.ANCliS 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NQN-GAAP LEGAL BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

GAS TAX DEVELOPMENT 
Variance Variance 

Actual Amounts Positive Actual Amounts Positive 
Budget BudgetaryBasis (Negative) Budget Budgetary Basis (Negative) 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITLTRES 
Current: 

General Governmenl: 
Fimme 14,800 14,800 
Non-departmental 29,326 23,326 6,000 

Public Works 
Platmiog and Neighborhood Services 657,648 657,648 
Police 

TotalExpenditures 701,774 695,774 6,000 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 1,175,000 1,644,625 469,625 (310,774) (152,022) 158,752 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
T r d e r s  (out) (1,453,000) (1,453,000) (77,778) (77,778) 

Total Other Fin'inancing Sources (Uses) (1,453,000) (1,453,000) (77,778) (77,778) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ($278,000) 191,625 $469,625 ($388,552) (229,800) $158,752 

ADJUSTMENT TO BUDGETARY BASIS: 
Expenditures capitalized for GAAP purposes 292,644 
Capital outlay 
Encumbrance adjustments 

Fwd balances at beginning of year 3,397,154 

Fund balances at end of year $3,459,998 



SOLID WASTE REDUCTION LIGHTING AND LANDSCAPING 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES AND SERVICES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT 

Variance Variance Variance 
Actual Amounts Positive Actual Amounts Positive Actual Amounts Positive 

Budget BudgetaryBnsis (Negative) Budget Budgetary Basis (Negative) Budget Budgetary Basis (Negative) 

500 

372,098 

$469,198 
(Continued) 



CITY OF MILPITAS 

REVENUES 
Other taxes 
Use of money and property 
Mergovemmental 
Charges for services 
Other 

Total Revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General Government: 
Finance 
Non-departmental 

Public Works 
PLvming and Neighborhood Services 
Police 

Total Expenditures 

BUDGETED NON-MATOR FUNDS 
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL WON-GAAP LEGAL BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT HETCH-HETCHY GROUND LEASE 
Variance Vatiance 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

OTHER FINANCNG SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers (out) 

Actual Amounts Positive Adual Amounts Positive 
Budget BudgetaryBasis (Negative) Budget BudgetaryBasis (Negative) 

Total Other F i c h g  Sources (Uses) (1,925) (1,925) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ($22,095) 29,382 $51,477 $9,075 (14,561) ($23,636) 

ADJUSTMENT TO BLlDGETARY BASIS: 
Expenditures capitalid for GAAP purposes 
Capital outlay 
Encumbrance adjusbents 

Fund balances at beginning ofyear 

Fund balances at end of year 



PUBLIC ART TOTALS 
Variance Variance 

Actual Amolu~lts Positive Actual Amounts Positive 
Budget Budgetary Basis (Negative) Budget Budgetary Basis (Negative) 





AGENCY FUNDS 

Financial reporting standards require that Agency Funds be presented separately from the Government-wide and 
Fund financial statements. 

Agency Funds account for assets held by the City as agent for individuals, government entities, and non-public 
organizations. These funds include the following: 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FUND 

Established to account for specific negotiated employee benefits. 

SENIOR ADVISORY COMMISSION FUND 

Established to account for the fund raising activities of the Commission. 

LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (LID) FUNDS 

Established to account for debt service reserves of Local Improvement Districts (LIDS) for which the City acts as 
administrator and paying agent. The City is not obligated for the debt issued by the LIDS. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
AGENCY FUNDS 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Balance Balance 
June30,2012 Additions Deductions June 30,2013 

EmployeeBenefit 

Assefs 

Cash and investments available for operations 
Receivables. 

lntemt 

Told Assets 

&&L& 
Refundable deposits 

Total Liabilities 

Senior Advisory Commission 

Assets 

Cash and investments available far operations 
Receivables: 

Interest 

Tolal Assets 

Linbilities 
Refundable deposits 

Total Liabilities 

LID #I8 - Reassessment and Refunding 

Cash and investments mailable for operations 
Cash and investments held by trustees 
Receivable: 

Interest 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Due to Lacel Improvement Districts 

Total Liabilities 



Cash and investments available for operations 
Cash and investments held bv tmstees 

Total Ass& 

Liabilities 

Due to Local Improvement Districts 

Total Liabilities 

LID #9R and #12R 

Cash and investmcnts available for operations 
Receivables: 

Interest 

Total Assets 

Due to Loenl lmprnvement Districts 

Tofel Liabilities 

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS 

Cash and investments available for operations 
Cash and investments held by tmstees 
Receivables: 

Interest 

Total Assets 

Liabilifies 
Refindabledeposits 
Due to Local Improvement Districts 

Total Liabilities 

Balance Balance 
June 30,2012 Additions Deducuons June 30,2013 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

This pan of the City's Comprehensive Annual Fmancial Report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what 
the infonnatlon in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the City's overall 
financial health. In contrast to the fmancial section, the statistical section information is not subject to independent audit. 

Financial Trends 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial performance and well being 
have changed over time: 

Net Position - Schedule 1 
Changes in Net Position - Schedule 2 
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds - Schedule 3 
Changes in Fund Balance, Governmental Funds - Schedule 4 

Revenue Capacify 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local revenue source, the property tax: 

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property - Schedule 5 
D~rect and Overlapping Property Taxes Rates - Schedule 6 
Principal Property Taxpayers - Schedule 7 
Property Tax Levies and Collections - Schedule 8 

Debt Capncip 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current levels of outstandimg debt and 
the City's ability to issue addrtional debt in the future: 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type - Schedule 9 
Bonded Debt Pledged Revenue Coverage, Redevelopment Agency Tax Allocation Bonds - Schedule 10 
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt - Schedule I1 
Legal Debt Margin Information- Schedule 12 

Demograplric and Economic Informatioft 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within which the 
City's financial activities take place: 

Installment Payment Coverage, Sewer Certificates of Participation- Schedule 13 
Bimonthly Sewer Rates by Customer Class - Schedule 14 
Demographic and Economic Statistics - Schedule 15 
Principal Employers - Schedule 16 
Taxable Sales by Category- Schedule 17 
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates - Schedulel8 
Principal Sales Tax Payers - Schedule 19 

Operating Infommiion 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in the City's fmancial 
report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it peifonns: 

Authorized Full-Time Equivalent Employees by Function/Program - Schedule 20 
Opwating Indicators by FunctionProgram - Schedule 21 
Capital Asset Statistics by FunctionlProgram - Schedule 22 

Sources 
Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived ffom the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports for the 
relevant year. 



Schedule I 

City of Milpitas 
NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Accrual basis of accounting) 

(DoUs~s in Thousands) 

Oavemmeotal activities 
Nctinvcslment in capital assets and capacitynghtr 
Resmcted 
Unrestrioted 

Total govemmntal activtties n d  position 

Business-type activities 
Not investment in capital assets andoapaoityrights 
W c t e d  
umtdc ted  

Total business-gpeactivitiesnetposition 

Primary government 
Net investment in capxtal assets and capacity rights 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total primacy gwemmentnetpmitiM 

Net investment in capital assetsand capacityrights 
Restricted 
Mrestricted 

Total governmental activities net position 

Business-typc activitiw 
Net investment in capital assets andoapacity rights 
Restdcted 
Umestricted 

Total business-typeactivities net position 

Fiscal Year Ended Junc 30 
2004 ZOOS 2006 2007 2008 

$287,073 $313,331 $318,690 $328.141 $316.631 
135,100 96,426 109,921 108,683 122,413 
22,304 (l6.532) (79,229) (45,445) (27,161) 

$444,477 $333,225 $349,382 $391,379 $411,883 

Fiscal Year EndedJune 30 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 (b) 

Pnmary government 
Net invesrment in cap~tsl assets and cspantyrighfs $314,320 $323,248 $325,823 $328,180 $323.491 
Resmcted 135,374 122,485 136.217 116,117 121,036 
Unrestricted (27,402) (20,649) (24,015) 73,255 84,675 

Total primary government net position $422,292 $425,084 $434025 $517,552 $529,202 

(a) The City rostatedlhc balance of capacitynghts to remove improvements Ihatdidnot add to the City's nghts. 
(b) The City implemented the provisions of GASB Statement 63 in fiscal year 2013, which replaced the term "net assefs" with the term "net position 



Schedule 2 

Expenaea 
Oovernmental activities 

General Goyommcnt 
Building and Safely 
Public Works 
Planning andNoighborhoodServices 
Psrkr and Remcation 
Pohm 
Plrc 
Papen t  under developer apements 
Intcmst on Long TemDebt 

Total gavemmental activities expenses 
Business-type activities 

Water Utility 
Recycled Water Utlllty 
Sewer Utility 

Total business-type activities expenses 
Total primary g o v e ~ t  expenses 

ProgramRevenues 
Governmental activities: 

Charges far smites: 
General Govommcnt 
Building and Safety 
Public Woks 
Planning and Neighborhood Services 
Parks andRecrcation 
Polieo 
Pirc 

Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and conhibutions 

Total government activities pro- revenues 
Business-type activities 

Charges for services: 
water Utility 
Recycled Water Utillty 
Sewer Utility 

Operating granb and eontributioos 
Ca~ital ma t s  and contributions . - 

Total business-type activities program revenue 
Total pri- gavernmcntpm- mvenues 

Net (Expense)lRcvenue 
Governmental activihes 
Busmess-type achvnties 
Totll primary government nct expons 

CITY OF MLPlTAS 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
LAST TEN FISCAI, YEARS 

(accrual basis of accounting) 
(Dollam in Thousands) 

Fiscal Year Ended hoe 30 
2004 2005 2006 2007 

(a) In2QO4, the fairvaluc of the City's rnvostmonts dcomsed $3,764 K m government activities and SS5Kin business- 
-type activifios. 

@) InZOM, the Rodcvclopmat Agonoy a p e d  topun:h89etwopareols of landhmthe County of Sanla Clanr. 

(c) In 201 1, the Hedcwlopmcnt Apncy bogan repaning tax increment grass of pars-through payments and admin~slralivr. fees 
withhcld by L o  Caury. Y w r  prior lu 2010 havo not been rcstated to reflcct this ehsngc in prenentation. 

(6) The Redevelopment Agency was dissalvedas ofJanuary 31,2012. 

(ef The Cltyimplemented the pmvislans of OASB Statement 63 m fireal yew 2013, which replaced the tenn'hot ssscts" 
with the tem"net poshon" 

(Q The parks division is part ofthe Publio Works departmcntbcghming in fiscal year 2013. 

(s) Beginning in fiscal year 2013, theRecycled Water Utility is p a t  of the Water Utility 



$18,184 $33,535 (c) $21,474 (c) $17,418 (d) $15,329 
2,401 1,972 1,984 2,029 2,293 
19,605 22,843 16,777 21,787 17,700 (0 
3,249 2,874 2,155 2,144 2,553 
6,518 6,096 6,529 5,823 3,107 (0 
22,514 22.771 22,66 1 22,620 21,702 
15,260 14,748 15,085 14,904 15,810 

(Conlinued) 



Schedule 2 
CITY OF MLLPITAS 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
LAST TENFISCAL YEARS 

General Reveoues and Other Changes in Net Pasition 
Governmental vctivities 

Taxes: 
Property taxes 
Less: Educatianal Revenue Augmentation 

Fund payment 
Sales and use taxes 
HateVMotel taxes 
O~er to re s  

Franchise fees 
Motor vehicle in lieu 
Investment earnings 
Gain on sale ofcapllal nsseWproperty 
Miscellaneous 
Redevelopment expense 
Transfers 
Extnordinary item 

Total govement activilies 
Bus inw- rn  activities 

Investment earnings 
Loss on adjustment ofcapital assets valuation 
Transfers 

TOW business-type nativities 
Total primary government 

(accrual bnsis ofaccounling) 
(Dollan in Thousands) 

Change in net position 
Governmental activities 
Business-type nctivities 
Total primary government 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 
2004 2005 2006 2007 

1,068 (a) 627 924 

(a) ln 2004, the fair value of the Ciws hvwesbnents decreased $3,764 Kin government aotivitles and S55K m bus~ness- 
-type actmbes. 

(b) In2005, the Redevelopment Agency agreed to purchase hvo parcels of land from the Countyofsanta Clara. 

(c) In 201 1 ,  the Redevelopment Agency began reporting tax increment gross of ws-through payments ond administrative fees 
withheld by the County. Years prior to 2010 hove not been m t e d  to refleet this changein presentation. 

(d) The Redevelopment Agency \Ms dissolved as ofJanuary 31,2012. 

(0) The City implemented the provisions ofGASB Statement 63 m fiscal yeyear 2013, which replaced ihc term "net assets" 
\nth theterm "net position" 

(0 The parks drvxion is part of Ule Public Works department beginning in fisoalyear2013. 

(g) Begtming m fiscal year2013, the Recycled Water Uliilty is part ofthe Water Uhlkty 



2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 (e) 

68,882 (d) 
83,327 84,650 80,029 85,829 136.945 55,875 





Genersl Fund 

Resewed 

U ~ r u e d  

NonspmddIe 

Resblcted 

Canmined 

A~simed 

unassigned 

Total General P d  

CITY OF MILPITAS 
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(nmWledaocmal basis ofaccounting) 

(Dol l s  in Thowsnds) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 
2007 2008 2005 2006 2004 2013 2009 2010@) 2011 @) 2012 

All Other Govemm~ntal Fen&. 

Rcswed $41,131 $23,049 $36,812 $54,763 $41,416 $50,608 

Umwe~~ed,  reported m. 

Special revmue Amds 19,493 23745 3,524 4,025 4,213 4,603 

Capital project fund8 179,291 137,415 140,259 74,178 69,028 53,845 

Debt service k d s  
NcmspendabI= $115 $23 $9,788 $11 

Rmlcted 96,873 104,290 80,112 89,821 

Assigned 2,196 2,127 2892 14,244 

Unessigned ------ (0,219) (43,624) (12,234) (12,955) 

Totalallofhargovemm~Ihd6 $239,915 $184,209 $180,595 $132866 $114,657 S1(FI,OS6 $88,965 $62,816 $80558 81,12ld(a) - 

(a) The chaos in toid find balance for the G e m 1  Fund and Mhergovemmcnhl funds 
is explplained in bgement's D i i s i o n  snd Analysis. 

@) The Ciq implemented thoprovisioosof GASB Statement 54 iokca l  year2011, and years pnar to 2010 have notbeen 
restated to conform with the near p~~~entl t ion,  



Schcdulo 4 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(modified accnral basis of accounting) 

(Dollan in Thousands) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Revenues 
Pmperty taxcs 
Less: Educational Rcvonuo 

Augmentation Fund payment 
Sales tsxes 
Other taxes 
Licenscs and fines 
Use of monoy and property 
lntergovom~nontal 
Chargcs for sorvices 
Dovelopor eonhibutions 
Other 

Total Rovenues 

(1,950) 
12,655 
8,555 
3,020 
2,515 (a) 

11,124 
3,277 
3,452 

798 

Expenditures 
current: 

General g o v e r n a t  
Building and safety 
Humanrcsaureos and recreation 
Public works 
Engineering and planning 
Planning and neighborhood services 
Recreation 
Parks and recreation 
Police 
Fire 

Supplernentnl educational rovonuc 
augtnentltion fund payment 

Capital outlay 
Payments undcr dcvclopor agreements 
Debt service: 

Principal 
lntcrcst and fcos 

Total Expondihlrcs 

Excess (dcficicncy) of revenues over 
(under) cxpcndihlros 

10,646 (c) 11,016 
(4 

2,329 (c) 2,528 

Olller Financing Sources (Uses) 
Proceeds from debt issuancc 
Bond issuance premium 
Paymcnts to refunded debt escrow agent 
Proceeds from salc ofprapcrtios 
Loss frorn sale of property 
Transfcn in 
Transfers (out) 

Total other tinsncing sourcos (uses) 

Extraordinary Items 
Assets hansferred to Housing Successor 
Asscts hansferred tofliabilities assumed 

by Successor AgencyIHausing Successor 
Special Item 

Redevelopment cxponsc (48,000) (b) 

Net Change io fund balances $136,397 ($60,666) ($2,376) ($28,440) ($15,671) 

Debt service as apercentage of 
noncapital expenditures 23.4% 18.9% 20.2% 26.5% 21.3% 

(a) In 2004, the fair value of tho invcshaonb dccrcased $3,764 Kin govementll activities. 
@) In 2005, Ulc Redevclapment Agency made a cash payment of $48,000 K to the County of Santa Clara for hvo parcels of land. 
(c) Tho City deparhnents were reorganized in fiscal 2007. 
(d) In 201 1, the Redevelopment Agency bcgan rcparting tax increment gross ofpass-through payments and administrative 

fees withheld bv thc Countv. 
Yrars prior to 2Olll have not been rr.,tatcJ u, rcfleit thl* change in prcscnwt~us. 

(e) T h l  Rcdevehlpocnt r\gcney w.rr Jissulued as oll.#nu,r/ 31,2012. 
(1) I(r8inninr in fibval >c.#r 2UI3, parks maintrnance di\tsion is part oithe publb~. norka dr.nmm~.nr nnll the rcir<.tnun - .  

division is part of human resources department. 



Schedule 4 

Fiscal YmEnded June 30 
2010 201 1 2012 2013 

$58,012 (d) $55,655 (d) $34,0a9 (e) $20,466 

20,602 (d) 19,003 (d) 12,153 (e) 11,871 
1,992 1,975 2,060 2,218 

3,087 (0  
13,619 7,960 8,172 9,124 

11,214 (c) 

(42,431) (4 



Schedule 5 

Fiscal 
Year 

CITY OF MlLPITAS 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Real Property ~ e s s :  Total Taxable 
Residentisl Commercial Indushial Tax-Exempt Assessed Total Direct 

Property Properly Properly Other Umecured Property Value (a)  ax Rate (b) 

Source: Hdl Coren & Cone, Santa Clara County Assessor ComhinedTax Rolls 

Note: 
(a) The State Const~tutiourequues properly to be assessed st one hundred percent of the most recent purchase price, plus an inorement of 

no more than two percent annually, plus any local over-rides. These values are considered to he full market values. 

(b) California cities do not set their own direct tax rate. The state constitution establishes the rate at 1% and allocates aportion of that amount, 
by an annual calculation, to all the taxing entities withina tax rate area. 



Schedule b 

Fiscal 
Year 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Rate per $100 of assessed value) 

City Direct Rates 

Basic Total 
Rate (b) Direct 

Source: County of Santa Clara, Tax Rates & Information 

Notes: 

Overlapping Rates (a) 

County of 
Santa School Special 
Clara Districts Districts 

(a) Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within the 
City of Milpitas. Not all overlapping rates apply to all Milpitas propem owners. These are voter 
approved levies in addition to the 1% State levy. 

(b) The City's basic property tax rate can only be increased by a 213 vote of the City's residents. 



CITY OF MlLPITAS 
PWCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS 
FISCAL YEARS 2012-13 and 2003-04 

(Dollars in thousands) 

2012-2013 
Percentage 

of Total City 
Taxable Taxable 
Assessed Assessed 

Taxpayer Value - Rank Value 

Cisco Technology Inc. $ 920,982,774 1 7.74% 

2003-2004 
Percentage 

ofTotal City 
Taxable Taxable 
Assessed Assessed 

Value Rank - Value 

$207,514,518 2 2.21% 

Milpitas Mills LP 

KLA Tencor Corporation 

Linear Technology Corporation 

BRE Milpitas LLC 

California Diversified 

Headway Technologies Inc. 

Sandbox Expansion LLC 

EQR Fresca 2009 LP 

Silicon Valley California LLC 

Richard T. Peery Trustee 

Great Mall of the Bay Area 

Solectrou Corporation 

Irvme Company 

Fleming Business Park LLC 

Seagate Technology 

Trinet Milpitas Associates 

Subtotal 

Fiscal Year 2012-2013 Total Net Assessed Valuation $1 1,900,712,000 
Fiscal Year 2003-2004 Total Net Assessed Valuation $9,397,562,000 

Source: Hdl, Coreu & Cone, Santa Clara County Assessor 201U13 Combined Tax Rolls 

I~ 



Schedule 8 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Percent Delinquent Total 
Fiscal Taxes Current of Levy Tax Taxes Percent 
Year Levied (a) Collections (a) Collected Collections Collected (a) of Levy 

2009-10 (b) 58,012 

2010-1 1 (b) 55,655 

2011-12 (c) 34,029 

2012-13 (c) 20,469 

(a) The City elected to participate in the "Teeter" plan offered by the County whereby 
cities receive 100% of the taxes levied in exchange for foregoing any interest and penalties 
collected on delinquent taxes. 

(b) In 2011, the Redevelopment Agency began reporting tax increment gross of pass-through 
payments and administrative fees withheld by the County. 
Years prior to 2010 have not been restated to reflect this change in presentation. 

(c) The Redevelopment Agency was dissolved effective January 31,2012 and collections 
of property tax increment ceased as of that date. Subsequent to that date, 
a Suocessor Agency collects property taxes of the former Redevelopment Agency. 

Source: City of Milpitas Comprehensive Financial Annual Report 



Fiscal 
Year 

CITY OF MLPITAS 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Dollars in thousands, except p r  caprta) 

Business-type 
Governmental Activitie Activities 

Certificates Tax Installment Certificates 
of Allocation Purchase Purchase Capital of 

Participation Bonds Agreement Agreement Lease Participation 

0 0 (b) 0 (b) 14,037 

0 0 0 9,828 

Total 
Primary 

Oovernment 

$205,675 

253,351 

244,791 

245,818 

236,953 

228,127 

219,603 

211,008 

21,747 

17,503 

Percentage 
ofPermnal 

Income (a) 

6 92% 

7 95% 

7 50% 

6.71% 

5 79% 

5.46% 

5 29% 

517% 

0.53% 

(CI 

Per 
Capita (a) 

$3,182 

3,898 

3,750 

3,693 

3,413 

3 3 1  

3,069 

2,949 

322 

258 

Note: Details regarding the c iys  outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the finsncial statemenls. 
(a) SeeScheduls 15 for personal incomeand population data. 
[b) The Redevelopment Agency w dissolwd ss ofJanuary 31,2012 and its debt bvas assumed by a Successor Agency. 
(c) Data for fiscaiyearZ012-13 not available until Mayof2014. 
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CITY OF MILPITAS 
BONDED DEBT PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE 

REDEVELOPMENTAGENCYTAXALLOCATIONBONDS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Asesl 
Year 

Redevelopment 
A~enoy mperty LessHousing 

Tax Increments (a) Resene Pmd 

34161A27 
31,162,281 
36,353,'737 
23,311,325 (d) 
Isp1,Oar (0 

Net 
Tax 

Incmment 
Reyenye 

. , 
8,175,650 28i986.631 

11,668,669 (e) 24,685,068 
0 id) 23.317325 

Debt Scrvico Requirements 

$0 (b) $1,494,048 $1,494,048 
5,.S60,000 9,163,896 14.123,896 
3.&0.000 9,062546 12.722546 

(2) Tax ! " m a t s  8% net of pass-through payments and Bdmidsbative fm wtbheld by the County *or lo distribution to tho Agency. 
(b) The. Agenoy issued the 2003 Tax Allocation Bonds andrefunded t h e p n o r o m n d i n ~  debt issues. Therefore, noprimipal payments 

were due in that fiscal y w .  
(o) Bqinnlngin 5scal year 2011, three of the sreaswithin the A@wyYs Me'gedRedeveIopment Projcot Area wererequued to sct aside 

30% oftaxiammeot Thc fouaharea contimcdto setssideUT/o of tax increment. 
I& The Redcvcloomnt Aeen~v was dissolved as of January 31,2012 and its debt was a s w e d b y  s Succcssm Agency. . , - .  

The Successor Agency collects Pmperty Taxes, wtth no distinction behvcen housing and mn-housing revennos, 
which musedforthewayment ofthe former Rodovolopment Agency's Bonds. Included in the 2012amount is both 
tax incrememoollected by the Agency prior to dissalutian endpmpnty Lvrescollected by the Successor Agency a h  the dissoluttoo. 

e Inol~ndes dehttierviechlldbv the Weveloment Aemvmiorto the dissolution and bvthe Successor Aaencv allathe dissolution. .., .~~ ..-. ~~~~~~ r ,  - .. . . 
(0 Tax inncm~w ncported in this tablc is the amount caleulatal by thc Couaty Auditor-Conmller a d  reeeivd by the Successor Agrncy 

Undcr tho mviniuns itf the laws dissolving thc Redcueiopcnt A g c ~ y ,  Un. Sueccssar Agency only rnrivct lhc funds nccrssary to 
fullill its approved obli@iom, Debt t d w ~ e p o r t e d  was paid by the S m s m  Agency. 

121 
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CITY OF MEPITAS 
COMPUTATION OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 

JUNE 30.2013 

PERCENTAGE AMOUNT 
APPLICABLE APPLICABLE 
TO CITY OF TO CITY OF 

JURISDICTION MILPITAS (1) MILPITAS 

2012-13 Assessed Valuation, Direct and Overlapping Debt $1 1,900,711,799 

OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: 
Santa Clara County 3.856% $3 1,071,648 
San Jose- Evergreen Community College District 11.798% 35,618,421 
Milpitas Unified School District 98.928% 95,054,969 
East Side Union High School District 0.340% 2,232,894 
Benyessa Union School District 2.233% 747,899 
Santa Clara Valley Water District Benefits AssessmentDistrict 3.856% 4,746,736 
City of M~lpitas 1915 Act Bonds 100% 11,135,000 

TOTAL OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 180,607,567 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT 
Santa Clara County General Fund Obligations 3.856% 31,617,536 
Santa Clara County Pension Obligations 3.856% 14,614,040 
Santa Clara County Board of Education Certificates of Participation 3.856% 401,024 
San Jose- Evergreen Community College District OPEB Bonds 11.798% 5,598,151 
East Side Union High School District OPEB Bonds 0.340% 105,825 
City of Milpitas 100% 0 
Santa CIara County Vector District Certifications of Participations 3.856% 133,225 

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL. FUND DEBT 52,469,801 

OVERLAPPING TAX WCREMENT DEBT (Successor Agency) 100% 157,935,000 

TOTAL DIRECT DEBT $0 

TOTAL OVERLAPPING DEBT $391,012,368 

COMBINED TOTAL DEBT $391,012,368 (2) 

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable to the city is estimated using taxable assessed property value. 
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the overlapping district's assessed value 
that is witbii the boundaries of the city divided by the district's total taxable assessed valne. 

(2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and 
non-bonded capital lease obligations. 

Ratios to 2012-13 AssessedValuatiun: 
Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 

Ratios to AssessedValuation: 
Direct Debt % 

Total Gross Debt % 

Source: California Municipd Statistics, Inc. 
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CITY OF MILPITAS 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Dollars m Thousands) 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2012-13 

Assessed value (net) -June 30,2013 

Debt limit: 3.75% of assessed value (a) 

Debt applicable to limit 
Total Bonded Debt 
Less: Tax Allocation Bonds 

not subject to limit 

Amount of Debt subjectto limit 

Legal debt margin 

Fiscal 
Year 

Debt 
Limit 

Total Net Debt Legal 
Applicable to L i  Debt Margin 

0 $352,408 
0 350,211 
0 373,520 
0 386,975 
0 416,601 
0 451,001 
0 450,946 
0 446,703 
0 431,188 
0 446,277 

Total Net Debt 
Applicable to the 

Limit as a 
percentage of 

Debt Limit 

0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

(a) California Government Code, Section 43605 sets the debt limit at 15%. The Code section was enacted 
prior to the change in being assessed value to full market value when it was previously 25% of 
market value. Thus, fhe limit shown as 3.75% is one-fourth the limit to account for the adjustment 
of showing assessed valuation at full cash value. 

Source: City of Milpitas Finance Department 
Santa Clara County Tax Assessor's Office 



Fiscal 
Year 

NOTE: 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
INSTALLMENT PAYMENT COVERAGE 

SEWER CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION 
LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS 

Less: Net Installment Payments 
Gross Operating Available 

Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Revenue Principal Interest Total Coverage 

The Certificates of Participation were issuedon November 28,2006. 

Gross Revenues include sewer service charges, other operating revenues, and interest income. 
Gross Revenues exclude connection fees and capital contributions. 
Operating Expenses include sewer treatment services, personnel services, services and supplies, 
and repairs and maintenance expenses. 
Operating Expenses exclude depreciation and amortization expenses. 
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CITY OF MILPITAS 
BIMONTHLY SEWER RATES BY CUSTOMER CLASS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Residential Commercial 
Single Family Multi-Family Mobile Home 

Fiscal ~ e r ~ w e l l i n g  Per Dwelling Parks Per Flat Quantity (a) 
Year Unit Unit Dwelling Unit Rate Charges 

Source: City of Milpitas, Engineering Department 

(a) For each one hundred cubic feet ofwater used. Charge varies depending on the business or type of business. 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Population Per Capita 
Fiscal Density Total Personal Personal School Unemployment Land& 
Year Population (Sq. Mile) Income (a), (b) Income (a) Enrollment Rate (%) (a) (Sq. Mile) 

2003-04 64,629 4,73 1 $2,972,934 46 9,528 6.90% 13.66 

2004-05 64,998 4,758 3,184,902 49 9,602 5.60% 13.66 

2005-06 65,276 4,779 3,263,800 50 9,748 4.40% 13.66 

2006-07 66,568 4,873 3,661,240 55 9,682 4.70% 13.66 

2007-08 69,419 5,082 4,095,721 59 9,590 5.90% 13.66 

2008-09 70,817 5,184 4,178,203 59 9,649 11.80% 13.66 

2009-10 71,553 5,238 4,150,074 58 9,802 11.30% 13.66 

2010-ll 71,552 5,238 4,078,464 57 9,887 10.30% 13.66 

2011-12 67,476 4,940 4,116,036 61 9,949 8.70% 13.66 

2012-13 67,894 4,970 (0) (c) 10,033 6.80% 13.66 

(a) For Santa Clara County. 
(b) Data not available for the City, therefore the balance reported is the product of the County's Per CapitaPersonal Income 

and the City's population. 
(c) Data for fiscal year 2012-13 is not available d l  May of 2014. 

Sources: CaliforniaDepartment of Education 
CaliforniaEmployment Development Department 

I State of California, Department of T' 'mance. 
U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis 
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CITY OF MILPITAS 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

FISCAL YEAR 2011-12 and 2003-2004 

2011-12 (a) 2003-2004 
Percentage Percentage 

Number of of Total City Number of of Total City 
Employer Employees Employment Employees Rank Employment 

Cisco Systems, Inc. 2J41 1 3.36% 3,000 2 3.67% 

KLA-Tencor Corporation 2,099 2 2.57% 1,000 7 1.22% 

SanDisk Corporation 

Milpitas Unified School District 

Headway Technology, Inc. 

Spectra Laboratories 

Vitas Healthcare Corpo~ation of CA 

Linear Technology Corporation 

JDS Uniphase Corporation 

Wal-Mart Store #2119 

Great Mall 

Lifescan, Inc. 

LSI Logic Corporation 

Seagate Technology 

Solectmn California 

Adaptec Inc. 

Subtotal 

Estimated City Day Population, Census 2000 

(a) Data for fiscal year 2012-13 is not available until December 2013. 

Source: Association of Bay Area Governments 
Milpitas Chamber of Commerce 
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CITY OF MILPITAS 
TAXABLE SALES BY CATEGORY 

LAST TEN CALENDARYEARS 
pollarainThousand$) 

CALENDAR YEARS 
7807. 2W3 2001 2005 2006 2W7 2W8 2409 2010 201 1 ---------- 

Apparel rtanr $109.078 $114.599 $123,583 $145,317 $168,985 $181.878 $185,UZ3 5204140 $241,992 $261,414 
General mcmhsndise SWI 115.336 113,574 119,471 120,297 118,348 131.594 lw lY3  101.S61 1DO;iPO 94,828 
Pwd stow 35830 33,765 32,950 33.592 34.979 34362 31,105 34.453 38,004 203,411 
Eating snd d n o l u o g p b  159420 152,736 156,318 164,694 173,424 181,668 183,049 174,016 187.002 39,344 
Homa fumkhmga aod appl~anccs 48,513 45,497 54,460 54.906 (a) (a) 77,669 80.746 108491 130,572 
~ u l a i ~ ~ m ~ t ~ d  sndffmimplement~ 706W (4 (8) (a) 91,571 793m 57,594 d4.818 45,501 48,131 
~ u t o  doah-mandaumsupp~ses 32.433 21.558 19g90 15,M2 IZ,ZZ~ (8) (a) (4 (4 (4 
S m k e  5dom 52369 58491 71,231 76,455 82,868 85,468 933Z4 73380 83100 lDZpl 
Mbermtailsom 156.196 227,373 211,SW 255,805 220,862 266915 225.954 158.982 204.074 215250 
All aheroutl~ts 373,179 301.404 405.111 370253 46026s 373394 417,099 402,516 401,569 420,024 

(a) Sales omilted bccsusethnr publroanonmldrwult inthedtrclosun ofranRdenUsl&rmaaon 
The n m b m  arc included wth MMO1h~cmail slered'. 

Souroe CaliComrs S lS lOBo~rdo fQu l~~~hon  
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CITY OF MILPITAS 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

City 
Fiscal Direct Santa Clara State of 
Year Rate County California 

6.25 (a) 

625 

6.25 

7.25 (b) 

7.25 

7.25 

1.00 6.25 (c) 

125 (a) 6.50 (e) 

Source: California State Board of Equalization 
(a) July 1,2004 the State increasedthe State Rate .25% 
(b) April 1,2009 the State increased the State Rate 1% 
(c) July 1,2011 the State decreased the State Rate 1% 
(d) April 1,2013 the County increased the rate 0.25% 
(e) On both July 1,2012 and April 1,2013 the State increasedthe State Rate 0.125% 

Note: The City's sales tax rate may be changed only with approval of the State Legislature. 
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CITY OF MILPITAS 
PRINCIPAL SALES TAX PAYERS 
CALENDAR YEARS 2012 and 2002 

IN ALPHABETICAL ORDER 

Best Buy Stores 
Burlington Coat Factory 
Chemn Service Stations 

Cico Systems Inc. 
Coach Stores 

Conlract Office Group 
Dave &Busters 

Flextronics 
Forever 2 1 

Headway Technologies 
Home Depot 

KLA Tencor Corporation 
Kohl's Deparhnent Stores 
Leotank Eleclronics USA 

Marshall's Department Stores 
Mazak Corporation 

Milpitas Materials Company 
Neiman Marcus Department Store 

Nike Factory Store 
One Workspace 

Piercey Toyota & Scion 
Pivot Interiors 

Shell Service Stations 
South Bay Honda 
WalMart Stores 

ADAC Laboratories 
Best Buy Stores 

Billings Chevrolet 
Burlington Coat Factory 
Chevron Service Stations 

Chili's Grill &Bar 
Dave & Busters 

Hanson Concrete Products 
Headway Technologies 

Home Depot 
Honda of Milpitas 

KLA Tencor Corporation 
Lifescan 

Marshall's Department Stores 
Maxtor Corporation 

McDonald's Restaurant 
Mervyn's Department Stores 
Milpitas Materials Company 
Old Navy Clothing Company 

One Workplace L. F e m i  
Orchard Supply Hardware 

Pioneer Standard Electronics 
Saks Fifth Avenue 

Solechon Corporation 
WalMart Stores 

Source: MBIA MuniSewices Company 
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CITY OF MILPITAS 
AUTHORIZED FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTIONiPROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Adopted for Fiscal Year Ended June 30 
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 - - - - - - - - 

Function 
General Government 77.0 77.3 77.0 
Building and Safety 23.0 23.0 23.0 
Public Works 79.0 78.8 79.0 
Engineering and Planning 49.5 55.5 55.5 
Planning aud Neighborhood 
Services 
Recreation 29.0 29.0 29.0 
Parks and Recreation 
Police: 

Sworn Police 94.0 94.0 94.0 
Civilians 30.5 30.5 30.5 

Fire: 
Firefighters and Safety 70.0 70.0 70.0 

Civilians 10.0 10.0 10.0 

77.0 78.0 82.0 84.5 83.5 83.5 68.5 
23.0 23.0 23.0 28.0 28.0 28.0 28.0 
97.0 (a) 98.0 99.0 99.0 99.0 109.0 91.0 

(a) 

16.5 (a) 16.5 17.0 17.0 18.0 18.0 16.5 
(a) 25.5 (b) 

50.0 (a) 49.0 48.5 49.5 49.5 49.5 (b) 

94.0 94.0 94.5 94.5 94 5 94.0 91.5 
30.5 30.5 29.0 29.0 29.0 29.0 29.5 

70.0 70.0 70.0 70.0 70 0 70.0 70.0 

10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 100 10.0 10.0 
Utilities 

Total 

(a) The City departments were reorganized in fiscal year 2007. 
(b) Beginning in fiscal year 2013, parks maintenance division is now nuder public works department and reoreation division is part of 

human resources department, hut it is reported separately here. 

Source: City of Milpitas, final budget 



FunctionIF'rogram 
Building and Safety 

Building permits issued 
Plan checked performed 

CITY OF MILPITAS 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTIONL'ROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year 
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

Public Works 
Street miles maintained 
Customer Service Requests 
Development projects reviewed 

Planning and Neighborhood Services 
Customer Service RequestsNiolations abated 
Applications to Planning Commission 

Parks and Recreation 
Sports Center members 
Senior nutrition meals served 
Athletic Field maintenance (hours) 

Police 
Avg response time to emergency calls (minutes) 
Number of anti-terrorist patrol checks 
Crime prevention presentations 
Number of vehicle citations issued 
DARE presentations: schoolslstudents 

Fire 
Emergency calls for senrice 
Public education events 
Permits Inspections 
Plan Review 

Utility 
Clean sewer lines (feet) 
Repair, replace or set water meters 
Average daily consumption (thousands of gallons) 

Source: City of Milpitas, final budget 
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Fiscal Year 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 



CITY OF MILPITAS 
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year 
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 

FunctiodPmgram 
Public Works 
Miles of streets 
Street lights 
Square feet of buildings 

maintained (in thousands) 
City vehicles 
Signs 
Signal lights 
City Parks 
Acres of Parkland 
Playgrounds 

Parks and recreation 
Community centers 
Senior centers 
Sports centers 
Swimming pools 
Tennis courts 
Football field 
Baseball fields 
Soccer fields 
Basketball courts 
Volleyball courts 
Handball courts 

Police 
Police stations 
Police patrol vehicles 

Fire 
Fire stations 
Fire Apparatus 
Fire hydrants 

Utility 
Miles of water mains 
Water Tank Storage 

capacity (million of gallons) 
Miles of sanitary sewers 
Miles of storm drain 
Miles of recycled water main 

Source: City of Milpitas, final budget 



Fiscal Year 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 
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